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Notice 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirtieth(30th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of MADHAV INFRA       
PROJECTS LIMITED will be held on Monday, the 27th day of September, 2023 at 11:30 A.M. through Video Conference /  
Other Audio Visual Means, to transact the following businesses.  

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt: 
 The Audited Financial Statements (Including the Consolidated Financial Statements) of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2023, together with the reports of Directors and Auditors thereon;  
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Ashok Khurana (DIN: 00003617) who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers 

himself for re-election.  
 
3. To Appoint and fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company and in this regards to consider and if thought 

fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution 

    
      “RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with the provisions of the Sections 139, 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and 

other applicable provisions, if any, of the said Act and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 made thereunder and 
other applicable rules, if any, under the said Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force) Sections 139 and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, Messrs. SHAH & KADAM , Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 117413w), be and are hereby appointed as the Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this 
Meeting to hold such office for a period of five years till the conclusion of the Thirty Fifth Annual General Meeting, at a 
remuneration to be fixed by the Audit Committee and/or Board of Directors of the Company, in addition to the 
reimbursement of applicable taxes and actual out of pocket and travelling expenses incurred in connection with the audit 
and billed progressively.” 

 
 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its committee thereof) and / or Company 

 Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be 
 considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
 

  

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 

4.   Authorisation and Ratification to Advance any Loan or Give Guarantee or to provide Security under section 185 of the    
Companies Act, 2013 and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT in suppression of earlier resolution passed and in pursuant to Section 185 and all other applicable  

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) read with Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 and Rules made there   
under as amended from time to time, the consent of the shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to ratify 
and authorize the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the Board, which term shall be deemed to 
include, unless the context otherwise required, any committee of the Board or any director or officer(s) authorized by the 
Board to exercise the powers conferred on the Board under this resolution) to advance any loan including any loan        
represented by a book debt or give any guarantee or provide any security over the Company’s assets in respect of any loans 
or advances taken/granted by Company or any entity which is a subsidiary or associate or joint venture of the Company or 

any Partnership Firm / LLPs or any other person in whom any of the Directors of the Company is interested / deemed to be 
interested up to an aggregate sum of Rs.500,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Hundred Crores Only), in their absolute discretion 
as may be deemed beneficial and in the interest of the Company, provided that such loans are utilized by the borrowing 
company for its business activities. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, the Board of Directors of the    
Company be and is hereby authorized, to approve, decide, vary or modify the terms and conditions applicable for the   
aforesaid loan, Investment, any Guarantee, providing any security and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as 
they may, in their absolute discretion deem necessary, desirable or expedient and things in connection therewith and    
incidental thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion deem fit without being required to seek any further consent or 

approval of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 
expressly by the authority of this resolution.”  
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5. Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditors and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification (s), the following resolution as a Ordinary Resolution: 
  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification (s) or re-enactment 
thereof, for the time being in force), the Remuneration payable to M/s. Kiran J Mehta & Co., Cost Accountant (Firm     
Registration No. 000025) appointed as cost auditors of the Company by the Board of Directors of the Company to conduct 
audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year 2023-24, amounting  Rs.45,000 (Rupees Forty  Five Thousand 
Only), be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.” 
  

 

6. Re-appointment Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah (DIN: 07502838), as an Independent Director and in this Regard to 
consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution as an Special Resolution: 
     

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the   provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Rules made thereunder and applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“the LODR Regulations”) [including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force], and Articles of Association of the Company, approval and  
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and that of the Board, Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah 
(DIN: 07502838), who holds office as an independent director up to September 29, 2023, be and is hereby reappointed as 
an independent director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a second term of 5 (five) years with effect from September 25, 

2023 up to September 25, 2028.  
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers to any 
committee of directors with power to further delegate to any other officer(s) / authorized representative(s) of the Company 
to do all acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.”  
 

 

 
 By order of the Board of Directors 

For, Madhav Infra Projects Limited 
 
 
 

Date: August 03, 2023                                                                                                             Dharmesh Chauhan     
Place: Vadodara                                                                                                                       Company Secretary 

NOTES: 

1. As the AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM, the facility for appointment of Proxy by the Members is not available 
for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip including Route Map are not annexed to this Notice.  

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the 
Company a certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf 
at the Meeting. 

3.  A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special Business to be transacted at 
the    Meeting is annexed hereto. 

4.  Pursuant to regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015, in respect of 
the    directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, as furnished as annexure to the 
Notice. The     Directors have furnished consent/ declaration for their appointment/ re-appointment as required under 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. 

5. Participation of members through VC/ OAVM will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per Section 103 
of the Act. 

6. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Act, 
and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the 
Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM, based on the request being received  

on secretarial@madhavcorp.com 
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7. Trading / Transfer in the shares of the Company shall compulsorily be done in dematerialized form only w.e.f. April    
       01,  2019. Pursuant to SEBI Press Release No. 12/2019 dated 27th March, 2019, SEBI had clarified that the investors may  

       continue to hold such shares in physical form even after the 1st April, 2019 subject to condition that investor who is  
       desirous of transferring shares (which are held in physical form) after April 01, 2019 can do so only after the shares are  
       dematerialized. Shareholders are therefore advised to dematerialize your physical shareholding at the earliest, if not yet  
       already done. Dematerialization would facilitate paperless trading through state-of-the-art technology, quick transfer of  
       corporate benefits to members and avoid inherent problems of bad deliveries, loss in postal transit, theft and mutilation of     
       share certificate and will not attract any stamp duty. It also substantially reduces the risk of fraud. Hence, we request all    
       those members who have still not dematerialized their shares to get their shares dematerialized at the earliest. 

8. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are requested to send to the 
Company or Registrar, the details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holdings in one 
folio. A             consolidated share certificate will be issued to such Members after making requisite changes.  

9. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, September 21, 2022 
to Wednesday, September 27, 2022 (both days inclusive). 

10. The Annual Report of the Company, circulated to the Members of the Company, will be made available on the Company’s 
website at www.madhavcorp.com 

11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by 
every participant (s) in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit 
their PAN to their Depository Participant (s). Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their PAN details to the 
Company/RTA.  Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited is the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (R&T Agent) of the 
Company. All Investor    related communications may be addressed to Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited at the 
following address: 

Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited,  

Office No. 106 & 107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound, Andheri Kurla Road, Safedpul, Sakinaka, Mumbai—400 072  
Ph. No. 022-28520461/462 Email: service@satellitecorporate.com  

 
The Annual Report and Notice of 30th Annual General Meeting, is being sent by electronic mode to all members whose email      
addresses are registered with the Registrar/ Depository Participant (s) unless a member has requested for the hard copy of the 
same. For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical copies of aforesaid documents on demand are sent 
by the permitted mode. Members may also note that Notice and Annual Report 2022-23 will be available on the Company’s 

website: www.madhavcorp.com. 

 
VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS  

AND  
INSTRUCTION FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING THROUGH VC OR OAVM 

 

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and pursuant to 
the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 

2021 and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of the Members to the EGM/AGM 
venue is not required and general meeting be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). 
Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM. 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to 
appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates 
are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at 

and cast their votes through e-voting. 

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 
EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 

include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without 
restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 

08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in 
respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement 
with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized 
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the 
EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the 
EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.madhavcorp.com The Notice can also be accessed 
from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the EGM/AGM Notice is also available on the website of 
NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

http://www.madhavcorp.com
http://www.madhavcorp.com
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7. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA 
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, September 24, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Tuesday, September 26, 
2023 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose 

names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Wednesday 
September 20, 2023, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their 
share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Wednesday September 20, 2023. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their 
demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders    Login Method  

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 

icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL.   

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/

IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 

to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience. 
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Type of shareholders    Login Method  

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 

The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab 
and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL.   

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there 
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ 
website directly.  

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New 
System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 

by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.  

Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) login 
through their depository participants  

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 

Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository 
site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 
be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.   

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at above mentioned website. 

 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type  Helpdesk details  

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 
4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000  

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

 B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?  

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 

existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can 
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 
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4. Your User ID details are given below : 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) 
or Physical  

 Your User ID is:  

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with 
NSDL.  

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 

12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.  

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account 
with CDSL.  

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 

your user ID is 12**************  

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form.  EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the company 
 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
101456 then user ID is 101456001***  

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

 (a) If are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote you.  

 (b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was 
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 
system will force you to change your password  

 (c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
 
I. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 
email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 
digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

II.   If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose   
      email ids are not registered.  

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

 (a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 (b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

 (c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

 (d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of 
NSDL.  

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.  

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.  

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.  

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and 
whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your 
vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join 
Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
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4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to khassociates2016@gmail.com with a copy 

marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload 
their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority 
Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User 

Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 
022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre at evoting@nsdl.co.in   

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to secretarial@madhavcorp.com 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), 
Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (Company email id). If you are an Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login 
method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password 
for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 

correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-
voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, they will not 
be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the 
day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting 
system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After 
successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You 

are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available 
in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do 
not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same 
by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
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2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting. 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance 
mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
secretarial@madhavcorp.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

6. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may pre-register themselves as a 
speaker by     sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client 
ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at secretarial@madhavcorp.com between September 05, 2023 (9:00 a.m. IST) 

to September 26, 2023 (5:00 p.m. IST). The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and 
speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. Further, the sequence in which the shareholders will be 
called upon to speak will be solely determined by the Company. 

7. Mr. Haresh Kapuriya, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No. 16749), Partner of M/s. KH & Associates (Practicing  
Company Secretaries), Vadodara has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of  
the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.  

8. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the 
meeting and there after unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not 
in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a 

consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

9. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.madhavcorp.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a 
person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

Item No. 3 
The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’), on the recommendation of the Audit Committee (‘the Committee’), 
recommended for the approval of the Members, the appointment of M/s. SHAH & KADAM., Chartered Accountants, as the 

Auditors of the Company for a period of five years from the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of the 35th  AGM. On 
the recommendation of the Committee, the Board also recommended for the approval of the Members, the remuneration of 
M/s SHAH & KADAM. for the financial year 2023-24 as set out in the Resolution relating to their appointment i.e. as 
decided by the Board. The Committee considered various parameters like capability to serve a diverse and complex 
business landscape as that of the Company, audit experience in the Company’s operating segments, market standing of the 
firm etc., and found M/s. Bipin & Co. to be best suited to handle the scale, diversity and complexity associated with the 
audit of the financial statements of the Company. 

 
M/s. SHAH & KADAM., have given their consent to act as the Auditors of the Company and have confirmed that the said 
appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the conditions prescribed under Sections 139 and 141 of the Act. 
 
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives, is in any way concerned or 
interested in the said Resolution. The resolution as set out in item No. 3 of this Notice is accordingly recommended for your 
approval. 

 

Item No. 4 
Pursuant to Section 185(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the Company shall not advance any loan (including any loan          
represented by a book debt) or give any guarantee or provide any security in connection with any loan taken by any person in 
whom any of the director of the company is interested in (as defined in the explanation provided in Section 185(2)) without the 
consent of the company by way of a special resolution passed by its shareholders in a general meeting. 
 
The Company may have to render support for the business requirements and for that to advance any loan including any loan          
represented by a book debt or give any guarantee or provide any security over the Company’s assets in respect of any loans or 
advances taken/granted by Company or any entity which is a subsidiary or associate or joint venture of the Company or any 
Partnership Firm / LLPs or any other person in whom any of the Directors of the Company is interested / deemed to be interested, 
from time to time.   However, owing to certain restrictive provisions contained in Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), 
the Company was    unable to extend financial assistance by way of loan to such Entities except to the Subsidiary Company.  
 
The Board of Directors seek consent of the Members for ratification and authorization to the Board by way of a Special Resolution   
pursuant to Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 or as amended time 
to time) for making loan(s) or providing financial assistance or providing guarantee or securities in connection with the loans taken 
or to be taken by the  Entities for its business activities and other matters connected and incidental thereon for their principal 
business  activities to the extent of Rs. 500 Crore (Rupees Five Hundred Crore).  
 
None of the Directors (except Chairman and Managing Director), Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is in 
any way concerned or interested in the said Resolution. The resolution as set out in item No. 4 of this Notice is accordingly 
recommended for your approval.  

 
Profile of Director(s) recommended for appointment / re-appointment as required under to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 
 
 

Name of Director Mr. Ashok M. Khurana Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah  

Age 80 Years 30 Years 

Experience 60 years  8 Years 

Nationality Indian Indian 

Date of Appointment on Board February 14, 2019 29/09/2018 

Qualifications Commence Graduate Company Secretary, B.Com, LLB 

Expertise 
Finance, Admin and Construction 
etc. 

Company Law, Listing 
Regulations 

Remuneration NIL NIL 

Relationship with Other Directors/ KMP 
of the       Company 

Father of Shri Amit A. Khurana, 
Managing Director of the 
Company 

NO 

Directorship held in other Public 
Companies (excluding foreign, private 
and Section 8 Company) 

1. D. A. Finvest Limited 
2. Infinity Infrabuild Ltd 

NIL 

Directorship held in other Public Listed 
Companies 

NIL 1. Bloom Dekor Ltd 

Shareholding in the Company 7,61,29,440 0 
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Item No. 5 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 (the Rules), the Company is required to appoint a cost auditor to audit the cost records of Company and 
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is to be ratified by the Members of the Company. The Board of Directors of the 
Company on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment of M/s. Kiran J Mehta & Co., Cost 
Accountant (Firm Registration No. 000025) as Cost Auditor to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the 
financial year 2023-24 at a remuneration of Rs. 45,000 (Rupees Forty  Five Thousand Only). In view of the requirement of the 
Act as set out above, the approval of members are required to ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Audit for the 

financial year 2023-24 and hence being placed for approval of members. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is in any way concerned or interested in 
the said Resolution. The resolution as set out in item No. 5 of this Notice is accordingly recommended for your approval. 

 
Item No. 6 
Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah (DIN: 07502838) is an Independent Non Executive Director of the Company. She is also 
Chairman of Stakeholders Relationship Committee and member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Audit 
Committee and CorporateSocialResponsibilityCommittee of Directors of the Company.  
 
Pursuant to the requirement of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Clause 49 of erstwhile Listing Agreement, Ms. Pooja 
Rajeshkumar Shah  was appointed as an IndependentDirector of the Company whose terms of appointment is valid up to the 
conclusion of the 38thAnnualGeneralMeeting ofthe Company tobe held inthe calendar year2019.  
 
As per Section 149(10) of the Act,an Independent Director can hold office for a term up to 5 (Five) consecutive years on the 
Board of a Company and may be re-appointed for another term up to 5 (Five) consecutive years, with the approval of members 
of the Company by way of Special Resolution.  
 
In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah  fulfills the conditions for appointment 
of Independent Director as specified in the Act and the rules made there under and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 (Listing Regulations)to be appointed as an IndependentDirector of the Company 
and is Independent of the Management. Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah has done CS, Bachelor of Commerce and She is also a 
Law Graduate and possesses vide and varied experience in the field of Accounts,Administration and Management. 
 
 The Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 28, 2023 on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and based on the performance evaluation, considers that given his background and experience and contributions 
made by her during her tenure, the association of Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah would be beneficial to the Company and it is 
desirable to re-appoint Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah  as an Independent Director for another term of 5 (Five) consecutive year 
to hold office of Independent Director till conclusion of Annual General Meeting for thefinancial year 2028-29.  
 
Copy of the draft letter of appointment of Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah  setting out the terms and conditions of appointment 
are available for inspection by the members of the Company without any fees. The details of Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah  as 
required under the provisions of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and other applicable provisions are provided 
inAnnexure II to this notice.  
 
Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah doesn't hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in Company. 
She has given his consent to act as a director of the company, along with the declaration stating that she is not disqualified 
from being appointed as director of the company in the terms of section 164 of the CompaniesAct, 2013. Further she has 
submitted the declaration as required pursuant to section 149(7) of the act stating that she meets the criteria of independence 
as provided in subsection (6) of section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations.  
 
None of the Directorsors Key ManagerialPersonnel of the Company ortheirrelative except Ms. Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah ,in any 
way,concerned orinterested, financially orotherwise, in the Special Resolution set out at Item No.5 of the Notice. The Board 
recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No.6 of the Notice for approval by the members.  
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To, 
The Members, 
Madhav Infra Projects Limited 

 
Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their 30th Annual report on the business and operations of the Company along 
with the Audited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
1.   FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  

 Financial Results of the Company for the year under review along with the figures for previous year are as follows:— 
 (Rs. in Crore) except per equity share data 

2.   TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
 The Board of Directors have decided to transfer the net profit after tax and adjustment for FY 2022-23 in the General  

Reserve account.  
 
3.    OPERATION AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW  

Standalone Results 
The Company recorded revenues of Rs.350.66 Crore in the year under review as against Rs. 389.16 Crore in the previous 
year. The Company  faced reduction in Revenue this year because due to in certain projects land was not handed over by 
the clients . The EBIDTA for the year was Rs. 74.93 Crore as compared to Rs. 52.29 Crore in the previous year. The Profit 
after tax was Rs 40.55 crore against Rs. 7.42 Crore for the previous year. The Company’s net worth touched Rs. 165.34 
Crore as on March 31, 2023 from Rs. 136.28 Crore as on March 31, 2022. 
 

Consolidated Results 
The Company recorded revenues of Rs. 541.55 Crore in the year under review as against Rs. 462.62 Crore in the previous 
year. The Company took several initiatives during the last financial year, such as strengthening its presence across the 
present operating areas, capitalize on new opportunities that helped in achieving and consolidating growth. The growth in 
revenues was positive on y-o-y basis. The EBIDTA for the year was Rs. 86.42 Crore as compared to Rs. 53.64 Crore in the 
previous year. The Profit after tax was Rs. 33.92 crore against Rs. 6.23 Crore for the previous year. The Company’s    
consolidated net worth touched Rs. 166.62 Crore as on March 31, 2023 from Rs. 135.20 Crore as on March 31, 2022. 

9.9Particulars 
Year Ended on 

31.03.2023 
Year ended on 

31.03.2022 
Year Ended on 

31.03.2023 
Year ended on 

31.03.2022 

  Standalone Results Consolidated Results 

Net Sales/ Income from Operation 321.95 386.69 512.70 460.06 

Other Income 28.71 2.48 28.85 2.56 

Total Income 350.66 389.15 541.55 462.62 

Profit before interest, Depreciation & Tax 74.93 52.29 86.42 53.64 

Less Interest (Financial Cost) 22.13 27.00 25.25 28.41 

Depreciation 11.11 15.04 13.17 15.74 

Profit Before Tax 41.69 10.25 48 9.49 

Less Previous years Adjustments - - - - 

Provision for Wealth Tax - - - - 

Provision for Current year Income Tax 9.60 2.84 11.43 2.79 

Net Profit after tax 32.09 7.42 36.57 6.70 

Add: Balance carried from Profit & Loss A/c - - - - 

Less: Provision for earlier year taxation - - - - 

         Minority Interest  - 2.21 0.10 

        Share of Profit/(Loss)of Associates & JV                    (0.44) (0.37) 

Add: Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)  8.46 - 8.46 - 

Net Profit after tax and adjustments 40.55 7.42 42.38 6.23 

Dividends: Interim Dividend - - - - 

Dividends: Final Dividend (Proposed) - - - - 

Transferred to general Reserve 40.55 7.42 42.38 6.23 

Balance carried to the balance sheet     

EPS (Basic) 1.51 0.29 1.58 0.24 

EPS (Diluted) 1.51 0.29 1.58 0.24 
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 4.    DIVIDEND 
 Your Directors feel that it is prudent to plough back the profits for future growth of the Company and do not recommend 

any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2023. Your Directors have not recommended dividend for the period ended 

March 31, 2023. 
 
5.    TRANSFER TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
   In terms of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, there is no unclaimed dividend due for remittance to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund established by the Central Government. 
 

6.    PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION  

 During the year under review, Your Company has various projects through various clients were as under: 
 

  Design, Engineering, Supply & Procurement, Construction, Erection, Testing, Commissioning, Operation and Maintenance 

of 35 MW Solar Photovoltaic grid connected power plant at Lakadiya of Bhachau Taluka of Kutchh District around 
substation of GETCO in the State of Gujarat. Project owner: Gujarat State Electricity Corporation Limited. 

 Design, Engineering, Supply, Installation, Testing & Commissioning of 15 MW (AC) Solar Photovoltaic Grid-connected 

Power Plant at ONGC site Vagra, Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat and post warranty Comprehensive Operation & Maintenance for 

10 years. Project owner: Oil and Natural Gas Corporation of India. 

 Design, Engineering, Procurement & Supply, Construction & Installation, Testing, Commissioning, associated 

transmission system and Operation & Maintenance for 07 years of 5 MW (AC) solar photovoltaic grid-connected power 
plant at ONGC, Hazira plant, dist. Surat, Gujarat. Project owner: Oil and Natural Gas Corporation of India. 

 Design, Engineering, Supply & Procurement, Construction, Erection, Testing, Commissioning, Operation and Maintenance 

of 35 MW Solar Photovoltaic grid connected power plant at Chhatar of Jamnagar District around substation of GETCO in 
the State of Gujarat. Project owner: Gujarat State Electricity Corporation Limited. 

 Design, Supply, Installation, Testing, Commissioning, Operation and Maintenance of various capacities Grid connected 

Rooftop Solar PV Power Project on BOT basis at various WTP sites of MIDC in Maharashtra. Project owner: Madhav Infra 
Projects Limited 

 Design, Engineering, Supply & Procurement, Construction, Erection, Testing, Commissioning, Operation and Maintenance 

of 5 MW Solar Photovoltaic grid connected power plant at Songaon of Amravati District around substation of MSETCL in 
the State of Maharashtra. Project owner: Energy Efficiency Services Limited. 

 Design, Engineering, Supply & Procurement, Construction, Erection, Testing, Commissioning, Operation and Maintenance 

of 5 MW Solar Photovoltaic grid connected power plant at Sambhora of Amravati District around substation of MSETCL in 
the State of Maharashtra. Project owner: Energy Efficiency Services Limited. 

 
 
7.    SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
 The Company have a Subsidiary Companies. All the Subsidiaries involved in the business of developing the                

infrastructure and Renewables at pan India. The mainly company doing an ease of business for Build, developing,     
Maintaining of highways, bridges and roads. MI Solar (I) Private Limited is engage in Business of Renewable energy 
through solar generation, trading and transmitting etc. The Company having following subsidiaries, during the year end. 
 

 

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we have prepared consolidated financial statement    
Company, which form part of this Annual Report. A detailed financial statement containing of Subsidiaries in prescribed 
format AOC-1, has been annexed as Annexure - A to this report. 
 

8.    CREDIT RATING 

 Your Company has been assigned a rating of CARE BBB- (Minus) for Long Term Bank Limits of Rs. 104.85 Crores and 
Long term/Short term Rs. 355.92 Crores CARE BBB- (Minus) /CARE A3. This credit rating assigned by CARE for the 
short term is CARE A3. The rated LOC carries lowest credit risk. The  rating is assigned by CARE. 

 
9.    MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required in Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and           

Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 is annexed to this Annual Report. 
  

10.  INSURANCE & RISK MANAGEMENT 
 The assets of the Company are adequately insured against the loss of fire, riot, earthquake, terrorism, loss of profits, etc. 

and other risks which considered necessary by the management.  
  
11.  FIXED DEPOSITS 

 The Company has not accepted any Deposit as defined under section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed 
thereunder from the members or the general Public as on March 31, 2023. There are no small depositors in the         
Company. 

1. Madhav (Aaron Sindh Road) Private Limited            2. Badi Baktara Toll Private Limited 

3. MI Solar (I) Private Limited                                      4. Seabird Exploration Private Limited  



14
MIPL 

12.  PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GAURANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 
 The Company has disclosed the full particulars of the loans given, investments made or guarantees given or security  
provided as required under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in Note No. 12  forming part of the  financial 
statements (Standalone and Consolidate).  
 

13.  LISTING OF SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY 
 Your Company is listed in Bombay Stock Exchange (“BSE”) Limited and having Scrip Code is 539894. The Company has 

paid the Annual Listing Fees to the Stock Exchange as required.  
 
14.  DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 In accordance with the provisions of section 134(5) the Board confirm and submit the Directors' Responsibility         
Statement:— 
(a)  in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures; 
(b)  the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and         

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at 

the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period; 
(c)  the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records for safe 

guarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
(d)  the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
(e)  the directors had laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and operating effectively. 
 “Internal Financial Controls” means the policies and procedures adopted by the company for ensuring the orderly 

and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the  accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information; 

(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
15.   BOARD EVALUATION  

 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosers Requirements) Regulations, 2015, mandates that, the Board has carried out an 
annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the 
Act.   The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of 
the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, 
etc.  The above criteria are based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India on January 5, 2017. 

 

 The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members. The 
Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the 
basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the Board and committee meetings. The    
Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance 
of non-independent directors, performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, 
taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors. 

 
16.  NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS 

 The Board of Directors met 5(Five) times during the year under review. The details of board meetings and the            
attendance of the directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 

 
  1. 19/05/2022, 2. 13/08/2022, 3. 14/11/2022, 4. 17/01/2023, 5. 14/02/2023 
 
17.  CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 During the year, Following Changes in appointment and resignation of Directors and Key Managerial Personal.   
  

 *On January 6, 2023, Shri Gopal Shah resigned from the Post of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 

Company and Shri Dharmesh Chauhan, having membership no. – A40003 has been appointed as Company Secretary 

and Compliance Officer with effect from January 23, 2023.  

 *On August 13, 2022, Shri Tanmay Kabra resigned from the Post of Chief Finance Officer of the Company and Shri 

Rajendrasinh Rana, has been appointed as Chief Finance Officer with effect from August 13, 2022.  

 The Company had obtain certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary on None of the Directors are disqualified,     
Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing          
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is annexure to the Corporate Governance Report. 

 
18.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for approval. Prior omnibus approval 

of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature. The transactions 
entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board of      
Directors for their review and approval on a quarterly basis.   
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  All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the previous financial year with the related  
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. The above disclosures on material            
transactions are based on threshold of 10 percent of consolidated turnover and considering wholly owned subsidiaries are 

exempt for the purpose of Section 188(1) of the Act. The Company has made full disclosure of transaction with the      
related parties as set out in Note no. 49 of the Standalone Financial Statement, forming part of Annual Report.  

 
 The Company in terms of the Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, submit same days on the date of publication of its Standalone and Consolidated financial results for the half year, 
disclosure of related party transaction on consolidated basis, in the format specified in the relevant accounting standards 
to the stock exchanges. The said disclosures can be accessed on the website of the Company at http://madhavcorp.com/

Certificateregulation23(9).html. The Company’s policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions is available on the 
website of the Company.   

   Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in 
the prescribe Form AOC- 2, has been annexed herewith as Annexure - B to this report.   

 
19.  ANNUAL RETURN 
 In Accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules thereunder, the Annual Return in the prescribed     

format is available at htttp://www.madhavcorp.com/investor/annualreport.html. 
 
20. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI 
 The Directors have devised proper systems and processes for complying with the requirements of applicable Secretarial 

Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.  

 

21.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTIONS AND FOREIGN    
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange  earnings and outgo, as 
prescribed under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is given 
as per 'Annexure C' and forms part of the Directors' Report. 

 
22.  AUDITOR'S AND THEIR REPORT 

 M/s. Bipin & Co., Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 101509W), who were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company at the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company for the year 2021-22 for their first year to five financial 
years i.e., till the 33rd AGM.  

 
  The Auditors report for financial year ended on March 31, 2023 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 

remark. The Auditors report enclosed with the financial statements in the Annual Report. 

 

23.  SECRETARIAL AUDITORS  

 Mr. Haresh Kapuriya of M/s. KH & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, was appointed to conduct secretarial  
audit of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2022, as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rules thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report given by Secretarial Auditors in Form No. MR-3 has been annexed 
herewith as Annexure –D to this report. 

  
 The Board has appointed Mr. Haresh Kapuriya of M/s. KH & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as secretarial 

auditor of the Company. 
 
24. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 Your Company strives to incorporate the appropriate standards for corporate governance. Report on Corporate             

Governance and a Certificate from the secretarial Auditors M/s. K H & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary,       
regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing            
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been annexed herewith as Annexure - E to this report.  

 

25.       CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 The Company has formulated CSR policy as provided under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is 

committed to discharging its social responsibility as a good corporate citizen. The Corporate Social Responsibility Report 
has been annexed herewith as Annexure– F to this report. 

 
26. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL EVENTS AND ORDERS 

       The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (‘NCLT’) has been passed order on June 6, 2023 for                      
 amalgamation of  RB Real Estate Private Limited, Madhav Urja Private Limited, Madhav Heights Private Limited, the 
wholly owned subsidiaries with Madhav Infra Projects Limited. 

 
27.     DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 The Independent directors have submitted their disclosure to the Board that they fulfil all the requirements as to qualify 

for their appointment as an Independent Director under Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he meets the 
criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing       
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

  
28.  FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 Your company organizing Familiarization programme time to time for Independent Directors newly appointed. Further 

your Company issue a formal letter of appointment delineation his/her Role, Function, Duties and Responsibilities. 



16
MIPL 

29.  PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 None of the employee was drawing in excess of the limits prescribe under section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been 

annexed herewith as Annexure - G to this report. 
  
30.  POLICIES 
 The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 mandate to formulations of certain     

policies for all listed Companies. Accordingly, the Company has formulated the Policies for the same as the Company   
believed to retain and encourage high level of ethical slandered in business transactions. All our Corporate Governance 
Policies are available on our website www.madhavcorp.com.  

 
31.  DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION &      

REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 The Company has adopted policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace in accordance with The 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH ACT) and has also 
created an Internal Complaints Committee who directly reports to the Chairman & Managing Director. During the       
financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has not received any complaints pertaining to sexual harassment.  

  

32.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the overwhelming co-operation and assistance received from        

investors, customers, business associates, bankers, vendors, as well as regulatory and governmental authorities. Your 

Directors also thank the employees at all levels, our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, 

cooperation and support.  

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Madhav Infra Projects Limited 

 
 

 

Date: August 3, 2023                                                                                                                                        Ashok Khurana 
Place: Vadodara                                                                                                                                                            Chairman  

[DIN:00003617]   

http://www.madhavcorp.com
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Annexure A 

 
FORM NO. AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures 

 

                                                                                   Part “A”: Subsidiaries 
      
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
                1 Madhav (Aaron Sindh Road) Private Limited (*unaudited)                           2 Badi Baktara Toll Private Limited 

           3 MI Solar (India) Private Limited                                                                 4 Seabird Exploration Private Limited  

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Details Details Details Details 

1 Name of the subsidiary MASRPL1* BBTPL2 MISPL3 SeaBird4 

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 

3 
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of 

the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries 
NA NA NA NA 

4 Share capital 957.00 1.00 301.00 1.00 

5 Reserves & surplus (388.18) 313.99 48.89 439.60 

6 Total assets 4,437.96 468.97 857.80 7,634.54 

7 Total Liabilities 3,869.15 153.98 507.91 7,193.94 

8 Investments - - - - 

9 Turnover 3,716.11 580.50 389.17 14,388.86 

10 Profit before taxation (114.80) 139.54 22.73 583.88 

11 Provision for taxation 4.30 24.07 4.04 151.29 

12 Profit after taxation (119.10) 115.48 18.68 432.59 

13 Proposed Dividend - - - 423.00 

14 % of shareholding 100.00% 99.99% 51.66% 51.00 

Part “B”: Associates Companies/ Joint Ventures   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1 Mansha Textile Private Ltd 
 2 M/s. Madhav Infra Projects Ltd - M S Khurana Engineering Ltd JV                  3 M/s. Eagle Infra India Ltd - Madhav Infra Projects Ltd JV 
 4 M/s. Madhav Infra Projects Ltd - Chetak Enterprise Ltd JV                                                     5  M/s. Madhav Infra Projects Ltd - Chetak Enterprise Ltd JV 

 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Madhav Infra Projects Limited 

 
 

Date: August 3, 2023 
Place: Vadodara                                                                                                                                                     Ashok Khurana                    

                                                                                                                                         Chairman 
[DIN: 00003617] 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Associates/  

Joint Ventures 
MTPL1 

M/s. MIPL-

MSK JV2 

M/s. Eagle-

MIPL JV3 

M/s. MIPL– 

Chetak JV4 

M/s. MIPL– 

Eagle JV5 

1 Latest Audited B/S Date 31/03/2023 31/03/2023 31/03/2023 31/03/2023 31/03/2023 

2 
Shares of Associate/Joint  Ventures held by the 

company on the year end: 
21.57% 70% 49% 50% 70% 

3 No. of Shares 46,365 - - - - 

4 
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint 

Venture 
10.00 - - - - 

5 Extend of Holding % 21.57% 70% 49% 50% 70% 

6 Description of how there is significant influence 
Common 

Management 

Common 

Management 
NA NA 

Common 

Management 

7 
Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 

consolidated 
NA NA NA NA NA 

8 
Net worth attributable to shareholding as per 
Audited B/S 

(146.52) (10.54) )21.78) 2.81 4.22 

9 Profit/Loss for the year (6.42) (67.40) (18.37) (0.15) 1.79 

i. Considered in Consolidation (1.39) (47.18) (9.00) (0.075) 0.88 

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation (5.03) (20.22) (9.37) (0.075) 0.91 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 



18
MIPL 

Annexure B 
FORM NO. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in            
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto. 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note: All the transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis, hence approval of Board is not required under section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

a. Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship 

NA 

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 

c. During of the contracts/arrangements/transactions 

d. Salient terms of contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any 

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions 

f. Date of approval by the Board 

g. Amount paid as advance, if any 

h. Date on which (a) the requisite resolution was paased in the general meeting as required under first proviso 
to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

a. Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship 

NA 

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 

c. During of the contracts/arrangements/transactions 

d. Salient terms of contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any 

e. Date of approval by the Board 

f. Amount paid as advance, if any 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Madhav Infra Projects Limited 

 
 
Date: August 3, 2023 

Place: Vadodara                                                                                                                                                     Ashok Khurana                    
                                                                                                                                         Chairman 

[DIN: 00003617] 
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Annexure C 
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
Information as required under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out  

hereunder. 
 

1)  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
 

a) Steps taken for conservation of energy 

 Utilization of energy is the one of the core area used during the construction. Total cost of construction includes large part of 
energy consumption. Energy conservation continues to be the key focus area of your Company. The Company is making    
continuous effort for energy conservation. Effective measures have been taken to monitor consumption of energy during the 
process of construction. Continuous monitoring and awareness amongst employees has helped to avoid wastage of energy. 

Major steps taken for energy conservation including some of the proposed steps are as under: 

 Your company’s head office, corporate office and toll booths are so well constructed which required minimum power    

consumption during daylights. 

 Your company has acquired highly efficient machinery/equipment which gives maximum output by using optimum    

resources. 

 Continuously we take necessary activities to educate and encourage employees to establish energy efficient      

practices. 
 

b) Steps taken by the Company for Utilizing alternative source of energy 
 Solar panels turn energy from the sun’s rays directly into useful energy that can be used in homes and businesses. There are 

two main types: solar thermal and photovoltaic, or PV. Solar thermal panels use the sun’s energy to heat water that can be 
used in washing and heating. PV panels use the photovoltaic effect to turn the sun’s energy directly into electricity, which can 
supplement or replace a building’s usual supply. 

  

 Your Company has set up solar panel at your registered office which generate photovoltaic electricity from sunlight/sun heat.  
 
c) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment 
 During the year, Your Company has not invested towards energy conservation equipment up to March, 2021. 

 
2) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
 

a) Efforts made towards technology absorption 

 Your Company has made efforts towards utilization of best technology available in the market to curb cost. Your Company lays 
considerable emphasis on quality maintenance and product enhancement. Your Company has spent money towards          
technology absorption as when required. 

 
b) Expenditure on R & D 

 Your Company has not been spend any money towards research and development. 
 

3) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 

                                                                                                                                            
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Madhav Infra Projects Limited 

 
 
Date: August 3, 2023 

Place: Vadodara                                                                                                                                                     Ashok Khurana                    
                                                                                                                                         Chairman 

[DIN: 00003617] 

       Particulars 2023-22 2021-22 
a)   Total Foreign Exchange Used in Import 4.82 112.41 

b)   Total Foreign Exchange Earned from Export Nil Nil 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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Annexure D 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT—MR -3 

(For the Financial year ended on March 31, 2022) 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of          

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
To, 

The Members, 
MADHAV INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 
Madhav House, 
Near Panchratna Building, 

Subhanpura, Vadodara 390023 
 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

practice by MADHAV INFRA PROJETS LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained by the Company, for the 
financial year ended on 31st March 2023, according to the provisions of: 
 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
I. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

II. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended).   
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards 
etc. mentioned above. Further, as per representation of management letter, the company has complied with all the clauses of the 

contractual agreement entered by it and all relevant industry specific provisions of laws are compiled by the Company . 
 
We further report that; 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 

Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the year under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 7 days  

in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the  
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder. 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment and Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. – Not Applicable to the Company during 
the Audit period; 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’). 

A. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. 

B. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

C. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018  

D. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014. - Not Applicable to the 

Company during the Audit Period; The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008. - Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period. 

E. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008. - Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period. 

F. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 

the Companies Act and dealing with client. 

G. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009. - Not Applicable to the 

Company during the Audit Period; and 

H. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998. - Not Applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period;  
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During the Audit period, all the decisions were taken by the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board without any dissent by any  
of the Directors of the Company as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the  
case may be. 
 

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has passed following Special Resolutions at the Annual General Meeting  
of the Company held on 25.09.2022: 
 
Authorization and Ratification to Advance any Loan or Give Guarantee or to provide Security under section 185 of the Companies Act,  

2013 up to up to an aggregate sum of Rs.500,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Hundred Crores Only). 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the  
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines.  

For K H & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 
 

Place: Vadodara                                                                                                                                                   Haresh Kapuriya  
Date: 24/08/2023                                                                                                                                      ACS No. 26109; CP No. 16749 
UDIN: A026109E000855982  
(Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral part of this report.) 

Annexure-I 
To, 
The Members, 
MADHAV INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 
We believe that the processes and the practices, we followed provided a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening 
of events etc. 

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. 
Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which 
the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For K H & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

UDIN: A026109E000855982 
Place: Vadodara                                                                                                                                                               Haresh Kapuriya   
Date: 24/08/2023                                                                                                                                                   ACS No. 26109; CP No. 16749 

Annexure E 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE 

  
To  
The Members of 
Madhav Infra Projects Limited 
 

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Madhav Infra Projects Limited (‘the Company’) for the year   
ended on March 31, 2023, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E of 
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing 
Regulations”).  
 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the review of 
procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.  
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations made by the Directors 
and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing 
Regulations for the year ended on March 31, 2023.  
 

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended March 31, 2023, no investor grievance is pending against the  
Company, as per the records maintained by the Company and presented to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 
 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  
 

For K H & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

 
 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: August 28, 2023                                                                                                                                                              (Haresh Kapuriya)  
UDIN: A026109E000880151                                                                                                                                    ACS No. 26109; CP No. 16749 

 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
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Annexure F 

 
REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 
1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a 

reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs 
 In adherence to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 

2014, the Board of Directors upon the recommendation of CSR Committee, in its Meeting held on February 27, 2014 and on         

January 21, 2021, approved a CSR Policy of the Company and as amended time to time. The Policy available on the website of the 
Company www.madhavcorp.com. 

 

CSR policy of the Company encompasses the Company’s philosophy for describing its responsibility as a corporate citizen and lays 
down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful programmes for welfare & sustainable development of the 
community at large. 

 

2. The Composition of CSR Committee 

The Company’s CSR Committee comprises three members of which two are Non- Executive Director of the Company, and is chaired 
by an Independent Director. The composition of the Committee is set out below: 
 
 

 
 
 
 

3.  Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years 

               The Average Net Profit for three financial years preceding the reporting financial year (i.e. 2021-22, 2020-21 & 2019-20) calculated      

       in accordance with section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is Rs. (0.79) Lakhs. 

 

4.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of amount stated in item 3 above) 
The prescribed CSR Expenditure to be incurred during the financial year i.e. 2022-23 is Rs. Nil. 

 

5.  Details of CSR spent during financial year 

(a) Total amount to be spent for Financial Year: Nil 
(b) Amount unspent, if any: Nil 

(c) Manner in which amount spent during the financial year: Nil 
 
6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any 

part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report. 
 NA 

  
7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance 

with CSR objectives and Policy of the company. 
The CSR Committee hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR activities is in compliance with CSR         
objectives and the CSR Policy of the Company. 

                                                                                       
 
 
 
                                                                                                                            (Mayur Parikh)                             (Ashok Khurana) 

Date: August 3, 2023                                                                                           Chairman of CSR Committee                       Director  
Place: Vadodara                                                                                                            [DIN: 00005646]                                  [DIN:00003617] 

Name Category Designation 

Mr. Mayur Parikh Non- Executive Independent Chairman 

Mrs. Pooja Shah Non Executive Independent Member 

Mr. Ashok Khurana Executive Non- Independent Member 

To,  

The Members of,  
Madhav Infra Projects Limited  
 

Declaration by the Managing Director & CEO  

 
I, Amit Khurana, Managing Director of Madhav Infra Projects Limited hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and 
Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct, as applicable to them, for the year ended 31st 
March, 2023.  

 
 
Place: Vadodara                                                                                                                                 Amit Khurana  
Date: August 3, 2023                                                                                                                   Managing Director [DIN:00003626] 

 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

http://www.madhavcorp.com
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Annexure H 
DISCLOSURE IN THE BOARD’S REPORT UNDER RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION OF      

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Directors Name 
Ratio to median  
Remuneration 

1 
The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median 
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the      
financial year 2022-23 

Mr. Amit Khurana Nil 

Mr. Ashok Khurana Nil 

Mr. Mayur Parikh Nil 

Ms. Pooja Shah Nil 

Ms. Jaini Jain Nil 

Ms. Heena Parikh Nil 
  

2 
The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, 
Chief Financial officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company  
Secretary or Manager if any in the financial year 

Directors’/CFO/CEO/CS/
Manager Name 

 % increase in  
Remuneration 

Mr. Amit Khurana,  

Managing Director 
Nil 

Mr. Ashok Khurana 
Director 

Nil 

Mr. Dharmesh Chauhan  

Company Secretary 
Nil 

Mr. Rajendra Rana 

Chief Financial Officer 
Nil 

3 
Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees 

in the financial year 2021-2022 
0% 

4 Number of employees on the rolls of the Company 
As on 31.03.2023 

549 

As on 31.03.2022 

698 

5 
Explanation on the relationship between average increase in 
remuneration and Company performance 

The Profit Before Tax for the year ended on 31.03.2022    

increased by 306.67 % whereas the increase in the median 
remuneration was 0%. The average increase in median    
remuneration was in line with the performance of the     
Company. 

6 
Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial     
Personnel against the performance of the Company 

Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel has increased by 
0%, in comparison to a increase of 306.67 % in PBT before   
extraordinary items 

7 

Variation In 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Market Price (Rs. Per Share) 3.88 4.97 

Market Capitalization 104.60 CR 127.34 CR 

Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 1.51 0.29 

Price Earning Ration 2.57 17.14 

% Increase over/ Decrease of Market quotation of shares as 
compared to last public offer 

The Company had come out with IPO in 1996 at Rs. 10 per 
share at par. The Company get listed on BSE on May, 2016. 
The Number of Shares get increase due to  Sub-division of 
shares and the Company issued the Bonus issue.  

8 

Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees other 

than Managerial Personnel in last financial year and its 
comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration. 

The average increase in employees’ salary during the year 

2022-23 is nil and the average increase in managerial     
remuneration is nil. 
The Profit Before Tax for the year ended 31.03.2023         
increased by 306.67 %. Normal industry standards are     

followed for increase in Managerial Remuneration. Increase 
of Managerial Remuneration by 0% includes nil increment on   
account of fixed salaries.  

9 

Comparison of Remuneration of each of the Key                 
Managerial Personnel against the Performance of the       
Company. (The total revenue of the Company has decreased 

to Rs. 350.66 Crores from Rs. 389.16 Crores and increased in 
Profits Before Tax by 306.67% in F.Y. 2022-23) 

Name of KMP 
Increment in  
Remuneration 

Mr. Amit Khurana  
(Managing Director) 

0.00 % 

Mr. Dharmesh Chauhan  
(Company Secretary) 

0.00 % 

Mr. Rajendra Rana 
(Chief Financial Officer) 

0.00 % 

10 
Key Parameter for any variable component of remuneration 

availed by the Directors 
The variable component of remuneration of Directors is as 

0% of Profits and is based on performance 

11 

Ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director to that 

of the employees who are not directors but receive 
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the 
year 

Not Applicable 

The Board of Directors of the Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 
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1. FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Report contains statements that constitute ‘forward looking statements’ including, without restraint, statements relating to 
the expectations, projections and implementation of strategic initiatives and other statements relating to the  future business 
growth/ developments and economic performance. This statements based on certain expectations, believes, projections and future 
expectations concerning, the development of strategic growth, market risks, uncertainties and other factors depends on the      

management’s thoughts. It could be differ from actual performance and results, to differ significantly from Management’s 
thoughts / expectations. 

 
2. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS  

The Indian economy is the bright spot in the global landscape, becoming one of the fastest-growing big emerging market economies 
in the world. The Indian infrastructure Research report provides a realistic estimate of investment opportunity in infrastructure 
amid the stiff challenges facing the sector. Infrastructure is the second largest economic activity in India  after agriculture, and has 
been growing rapidly. The production of industrial machinery has also been on the rise – and the increasing flow of goods has 

spurred increases in rail, road and port traffic, necessitating further infrastructure improvements.  
 
The government’s policy to increase Private sector has emerged as a key player in the development of road infrastructure in India. 
Increased industrial activities, along with increasing number of two and four wheelers have supported the growth in road transport 

infrastructure projects. The Government’s policy to increase private sector participation has proved to be a boon for the 
infrastructure industry with many private players entering the business through the public-private partnership (PPP) model.  The 
Government permitting 100 per cent foreign direct investment (FDI) in the road sector, several foreign companies have formed  
partnerships with Indian players to capitalise on the sector's growth. FDI in construction development (townships, housing, built-

up infrastructure, and construction development projects) and construction (infrastructure) activity sectors stood at US$ 26.23 
billion and US$ 28.95 billion, respectively, between April 2000-September 2022. The government’s focus on building infrastructure 
of the future has been evident given the slew of initiatives launched recently. The US$ 1.3 trillion national master plan for 
infrastructure, Gati Shakti, has been a forerunner to bring about systemic and effective reforms in the sector, and has already 

shown a significant headway.  
 
(a) Road Infrastructure 

Road Infrastructure is vital to India’s economy. Roads are a major mode of Transportation in India today. India has the    

second largest road network in the world at 5.89 million km. This net-traffic Road movement has gradually increased over 
the years with the improvement in connectivity between cities, towns and villages in the country. 
 
India currently has the fifth-largest metro network in the world and will soon overtake advanced economies such as Japan 

and South Korea to become the third-largest network. Metro rail network reached 810 kms and is operational in 20 cities as 
of September 2022. At almost 20 kms, Mumbai monorail is the third largest route in the world after China with 98 kms and 
Japan with 28 kms.   
 

The private sector has emerged as a key player in the development of road infrastructure in India. Increased industrial   
activities, along with increasing number of two and four wheelers have supported the growth in the road transport 
infrastructure projects. The government’s policy to increase private sector participation has proved to be a boon for the 
infrastructure industry with a large number of private players entering the business network transports more than 64.5 per 

cent of all goods in the country and 90 per cent of India’s total passenger through the public-private partnership (PPP) 
model.  

 
 India plans to spend US$ 1.4 trillion on infrastructure through ‘National Infrastructure Pipeline’ in the next five years. In 

FY21, infrastructure activities accounted for 13% share of the total FDI inflows of US$ 81.72 billion. India will need to 
construct 43,000 houses every day until 2022 to achieve the vision of Housing for All by 2022. As of August 22, 2022, 
122.69 lakh houses have been sanctioned, 103.01 lakh houses have been grounded, and 62.21 lakh houses have been 

completed, under the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojna scheme (PMAY-Urban).  
  
 India, it is estimated, needs to invest $840 billion over the next 15 years into urban infrastructure to meet the needs of its 

fast-growing population. This investment will only be rational as well as sustainable, if we additionally focus on long-term 

maintenance and strength of our buildings, bridges, ports and airports.  
    
 
 

(b) Solar Energy 

 In the Union Budget 2022-23, the government allocated Rs. 19,500 crore (US$ 2.57 billion) for a PLI scheme to boost 
manufacturing of high-efficiency solar modules.  Non-conventional energy sector received FDI inflow of US$ 14.12 billion 
between April 2000-March 2023.  

 

 India launched the Mission Innovation CleanTech Exchange, a global initiative that will help accelerate clean energy 
innovation. The Central Electricity Authority estimates India’s power requirement to grow to reach 817 GW by 2030. Most of 
the  demand will come from real estate and transport sectors. 59 solar parks of aggregate capacity 40 GW have been 

approved in India. The world’s largest renewable energy park of 30 GW capacity solar-wind hybrid project is under 
installation in Gujarat. 

Management Discussion & Analysis 
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In August 2022, Norfund, who manage the Norwegian Climate Investment Fund, and KLP, Norway’s biggest pension 
company, signed an agreement to buy a 49% share of a 420 MW solar power plant in Rajasthan for Rs. 2.8 billion (US$ 
35.05 million). The Solar Energy Corporation of India (SECI) implemented large-scale central auctions for solar parks and 
has awarded contracts for 47 parks with over 25 GW of combined capacity. 

  
   

3. OPPORTUNITIES 
Infrastructure sector is a key driver for the Indian economy. The sector is highly responsible for propelling India’s overall 

development and enjoys intense focus from Government for initiating policies that would ensure time-bound creation of world class 
infrastructure in the country. Infrastructure sector includes power, bridges, dams, roads, and urban infrastructure development. 
The infrastructure sector has become the biggest focus area for the Government of India. India has to enhance its infrastructure to 
reach its 2025 economic growth target of US$ 5 trillion.  

 
 
Budget 2023-24 is complemented with the continuation of the 50-year interest-free loan to state governments for one more year to 
spur investment in infrastructure and to incentivize them for complementary policy actions, with a significantly enhanced outlay of 

₹ 1.3 lakh crore (US$ 16 billion).  
 
 
In Budget 2023-24, capital investment outlay for infrastructure is being increased by 33% to Rs.10 lakh crore (US$ 122 billion), 

which would be 3.3 per cent of GDP. As per the Union Budget 2023-24, a capital outlay of Rs. 2.40 lakh crore (US$ 29 billion) has 
been provided for the Railways, which is the highest ever outlay and about 9 times the outlay made in 2013-14.  
 
 

According to the data released by the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT), FDI inflow in the Indian non
-conventional energy sector stood at US$ 12.57 billion between April 2000-June 2022. More than Rs. 5.2 lakh crore (US$ 70 billion) 
has been invested in India’s renewable energy sector since 2014.  
 

 
India has set a target to reduce the carbon intensity of the nation’s economy by less than 45% by the end of the decade, achieve 
50% cumulative electric power installed by 2030 from renewables, and achieve net-zero carbon emissions by 2070. Low-carbon 
technologies could create a market worth up to $80 billion in India by 2030.  

 
4. THREATS 

Factors, which can threaten the business model and the Company’s market standing, emerge from changes in government policies, 
safety and security concerns and so on. Some possible threats include:  

 Market competition: The Company competes with a number of Indian and international infrastructure operators in acquiring 

concessions for both new and existing road projects. The competition, which had increased manifold in the past decade, has 
now eased out relatively in the last two years with market players turning cautious, leading to more rational bids. Considering 
the ever-changing market competition, the Company adapts its policies and procedures to ensure a sustained business model. 

With the government keen on promoting EPC contracts, the duplicity of participants in both the EPC and the PPP sector are 
expected to reduce considerably, with very few and established players remaining in the PPP sector. There are also giant 
companies in the competition with highly technologic equipment which make hurdles to your Company to get tender at best 
price.  

  Our profitability and result of operations may be adversely affected in the event of increases in the prices of raw materials, sub-

contracting costs, and costs of consumables and spares or other inputs, or a delay in the supply of raw materials. 

  Working capital cycle has been lengthened mainly due to overextended receivables, which has affected the cash flow position of 

companies in the sector. The Sector continues to face rising material and labor costs. High inflations have diminished private 
sector investments in capital expenditure. These along with the high interest rates have led to drops in margins.  

  Infrastructure financing has been a major problem particularly in the roads sector and banks needs to make modifications to 

meet financing needs of road sector. Long-term funding has been a  problem for banks as it has to borrow short-term to lend 
long-term projects. Funds are required and so is innovation. Long term market instability and uncertainty may damage the 
opportunities and prevent the expansion. 

 
5.  OUTLOOK 

 The history of infrastructure Industry in India has witnessed higher growth and will continue to be so because of the following   
reasons. Sectors like power transmission, roads & highways and renewable energy will drive the investments in the coming years.  
India must enhance its infrastructure to reach its 2025 economic growth target of US$ 5 trillion. India's population growth and 

economic development requires improved transport infrastructure, including through investments in roads, railways, and aviation, 
shipping and inland waterways. The government has also suggested an investment of $750 billion to strengthen railway 
infrastructure and envisioned the Maritime India Vision 2030 which estimates massive investments in world-class infrastructure 
development at Indian ports. India, it is estimated, needs to invest $840 billion over the next 15 years into urban infrastructure to 

meet the needs of its fast-growing population. This investment will only be rational as well as sustainable, if we additionally focus 
on long-term maintenance and strength of our buildings, bridges, ports and airports. It is expected that by 2040, around 49% of the 
total electricity will be generated by renewable energy as more efficient batteries will be used to store electricity, which will further 
cut the solar energy cost by 66% as compared to the current cost. Use of renewables in place of coal will save India Rs. 54,000 crore 

(US$ 8.43 billion) annually. Around 15,000 MW of wind-solar hybrid capacity is expected to be added between 2020-25.  
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6. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 An overview of the financial performance is given in the Directors’ Report. The Audit Committee constituted by the Board of        
Directors periodically reviews the financial performance and reporting  systems. 

 
7.  SUBSIDIARIES COMPANY 

 The Company having mainly Four Subsidiaries at the end of the Financial year March 31, 2023.  
Badi Baktara Toll Private Limited 

The Company is engaged in the business of the strengthening, construction, Operation, Maintenance and Transfer of Badi- 

Baktara-Shahganj (SH-15) Road under OMT Basis in the state of Madhya Pradesh.  
Madhav (Aaron Sindh Road) Private Limited 

The Company is engaged in the business of the Rehabiliation, strengthening, construction, Operation, Maintenance and  
Transfer of Aaron via Vidoriya - Raghogarh & Ashoknagar (up to Sindh River) awarded package no. 14 by MPRDC in the state 

of Madhya Pradesh.  
MI Solar (I) Private Limited 

 The Company is engaged in generating power and trading, purchasing, marketing, selling, importing, exporting, producing, 
manufacturing, transmitting, commissioning, distributing, supplying, exchanging or otherwise dealing in all aspects of       

thermal, Hydro, Nuclear, Solar, Solar Rooftop, Wind power and for installation, maintenance of solar power plant, roof tops 
and any kind of equipment system related to solar and to provide services for maintenance, renovation and modernization of 
all kinds of equipment required for Solar Power and Renewable Energy. 

Seabird Exploration Private Limited  

The Company is engaged in any activity in India or elsewhere relating to providing Oil and Gas exploration, production and 
participation, seismic data service onshore/offshore, managerial and technical support services, technical surveys, data 
analysis, data processing services, staffing and Technical Equipment renting or leasing for a seismic survey in oil and gas 
companies including wholly owned subsidiaries in India and overseas and any other person or bodies corporate in India 
 

During the year, the Management had amalgated of its wholly own Subsidiary Company viz. Madhav Urja Private Limited, Madhav 

Heights Private Limited and RB Real Estate Private Limited, with Madhav Infra Projects Limited 
 

8. RISK AND CONCERNS 

 The Company’s main business is the construction of Infrastructure Projects. In every projects there are various type of Risk      
involved, such as non-availability/ shortage of Resources viz., raw material, steals, and cements etc., Projects not completed in 
time due to various reasons viz., cost overruns, force majeure etc., sometime legal encumbrances and technical problems. The  

Failure of BID competitively may adverse effects to its operations. Bidding high will mean it doesn’t win contracts and bidding too 
low will mean incurring loss or operating at very thin margins.  Your Company has taken a number of initiatives such as           
deployment of risk mitigations strategies, cost management and also improve its operational efficiencies.  

 

9. HUMAN RESOURCES 
 Human Resources continued to be one of the biggest assets of the Company. The management has been paying special  attention 

to various aspects like training, welfare and safety and thereby further strengthening the human resources. Presently, our         

company has over 698 employees at various levels under its direct employment.  
 
 Your Company knows the value of manpower and continues to maintain constructive relationship with its employees with a       

positive environment so as to improve efficiency. Your Company confirms its commitment to take initiative to further align its HR    

policies in order to meet the growing needs of the business. Your Company has employee focus in the sense that it provides 
fulfillment, stretch and opportunity for development of its employees at all levels. It is because of the considerable skill and 
motivation of the employees, that your Company is able to deliver performance satisfaction. Your Board would like to express its 
sincere        appreciation and gratitude to all employees on behalf of the stakeholders of your Company, who getting benefit from 

their hard work.  
 
10. INTERNAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

Your Company has adequate internal control systems to monitor business processes, financial reporting and compliance with   

applicable regulations. It has documented procedures covering all financial, operating and management functions. These controls 
have been designed to provide a reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining proper accounting controls, monitoring of       
operations, protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliances with regulations and for ensuring reliability of financial   
reporting. The Company has continued its efforts to align all its processes and controls with best practices in these areas as well. 

The systems are periodically reviewed for identification of control deficiencies and formulation of time bound action plans to      
improve efficiency at all the levels. 
 
The Audit committee of the Board reviews internal control systems and their adequacy, significant risk areas, observations made by 

the internal auditors on control mechanism and the operations of the company, recommendations made for corrective action and 
the internal audit reports. The committee reviews with the statutory auditors and the management, key issues, significant        
processes and accounting policies. The company continues its efforts in strengthening internal controls to enable better            
management and controls over all processes. 

 
11. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 Some of the statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates 
and expectations may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable Laws and Regulations. Actual results might 

differ substantially from those expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect Company’s Operations include 
changes in economic conditions affecting demand, supply and price movements in the domestic and overseas markets in which 
your Company operates, changes in the Government regulations, Tax Laws and other Statutes or other incidental factors. Market 
data and products information contained in this Report have been based on information accumulated from various published and 

unpublished reports and their accuracy, reliability and completeness cannot be assured. The Company assumes no responsibility 
in respect of forward looking statements which may be amended or modified in future. 
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1.   CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY 

 The fundamental principle of Corporate Governance is achieving sustained growth ethically and in the best interest of all     
stakeholders.  Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful commercial          
enterprises are built to last. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal     
accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers,       

vendors, investors and the society at large.  The Company has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices 
and it believes that good Corporate Governance is essential for achieving long-term corporate goals and to enhance stakeholders’ 
value.  
 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct (COC) for its employees in all matters relating to business. This is further      
strengthened by the adoption of COC the for its employees, including the Managing Director. In addition, the Company has   
adopted a COC for its Non-Executive Directors including COC for Independent Directors which suitably incorporates the duties of 
Independent Directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). The Company’s Corporate Governance philosophy is 

also reinforced through adoption of the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading, Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices 
and the Tata Business Excellence Model. The Company has also adopted the Guidelines on Board Effectiveness to fulfill its            
responsibilities towards its stakeholders.  
 

The Company has adhered to the requirements stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 read with Para C and D of Schedule V and 
clauses (b) to (i) of Corporate Governance Report sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) as applicable, with regard to Corporate Governance.  
 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

(a) Composition 

The Board of Directors of the Company is the highest governance authority within the management structure of the        
Company. Further, the Board of Directors of the Company is totally committed to the best practices for effective Corporate 
Governance. The Board of your Company consists of 6 (six) Directors as on March 31, 2023, out of which 1(One) is Executive 

Director and 5 (Five) are Non-executive Directors including the woman director. The Chairman of the Board is an Non-
Executive Director and half of the Board consists of Independent Directors.  
 
The Composition of the Board is in compliance with Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Regulation 17 of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) along with Listing       
Agreement as amended, entered into with Stock Exchanges.  
 
None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees and Chairperson of more than 5 Committees 

(Committees being Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, as per Regulation 26(1) of the Listing        
Regulations), across all public companies in which he/she is a Director. The necessary disclosures regarding committee   
positions have been made by all the Directors.  
 

None of the Directors hold office in more than 20 companies and in more than 10 public companies as prescribed under  
Section 165(1) of the Act. No Director holds Directorships in more than 7 listed companies and none of the Independent   
Directors (‘ID’) served as ID in more than 7 listed companies as per Regulations 17A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and  
Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018. The Managing Directors did not serve as an Independent Director 

in any listed company.  
 

The composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2022 is as follows: 
 

# Membership/chairmanship in committees include membership/chairmanship of Audit Committee and Stakeholders’     

Relationship Committee of Boards are reported for listed companies including Madhav Infra Projects Limited. 

Report on Corporate Governance 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Category 

No. of Directorship 

in other public Co.  

Details of  

Committee #  Directorship in other listed entity 
(Category of Directorship)   

Chairman Member Chairman Member 

1 

Ashok M. Khurana 

(Chairman) 
DIN: 00003617 

Chairman, 
Non-Executive 

- 2 - 3 - 

2 

Amit Ashok Khurana 

(Managing Director) 
DIN: 00003626 

Non Independent, 

Executive 
1 1 - 1 

1. Waa Solar Limited 

(Non Independent, Executive) 

3 
Mayur Rajendrabhai 
Parikh 

DIN: 00005646 

Independent  
Director 

- 6 3 3 

1. Bloom Dekor Ltd (Independent 

Director) 
2. Rose Merc Limited (Independent  

Director) 
3. Amrapali Industries Ltd 

(Independent Director) 
4. Interactive Financial Services 

Ltd. (Independent Director) 

4 
Pooja Rajeshkumar Shah 
DIN: 07502838 

Independent  
Director 

- 2 1 2 

1. Rose Merc Limited  

(Independent Director) 
2. Bloom Dekor Ltd  

(Independent Director) 

5 
Jaini Shaileshbhai Jain 

DIN: 07859496  

Independent  

Director 
- 1 1 2 

1. Waa Solar Limited 

(Independent Director) 

6 
Heena Ullash Parikh 
DIN: 02879703 

Independent  
Director 

- 1 - 1 
1. Waa Solar Limited 
(Independent Director) 
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(b)  Dates of Board Meetings and Attendance at the Board Meetings and AGM 

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Board of Directors of your Company met 6 (Six) times on  1. 19/05/2022, 2. 
13/08/2022, 3. 25/09/2022 (AGM), 4. 14/11/2022, 5. 17/01/2023, 6. 14/02/2023 
 
The details of attendance of each Directors at Board Meetings and the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held in the Financial 

Year ended March 31, 2023 are as follow: - 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

(c) Disclosure of relationships between Directors inter-se 
Mr. Ashok Khurana, Chairman on the Board is the father of Mr. Amit Khurana, Managing Director. 

          
(d)         Code of Conduct for Board & Senior Management Personnel 

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior Management Personnel and the declaration 
from the Managing Director, stating that all the Directors and the Senior Management Personnel of your Company have  
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct has been included in this Report. The Code has been posted on your       
Company’s website www.madhavcorp.com. 

 

(e)          Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors 

During the reporting financial year, a separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company, was held on February 
14, 2023, at the Registered Office of the Company situated at Madhav House, Plot No. 04, Near Panchratna Building,        
Subhanpura, Vadodara – 390 023, Gujarat, whereat the following items as enumerated under Schedule IV to the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 were         

discussed: 
a)         Review of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
b) Review of performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Directors and 

Non-Executive Directors; 

c) Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the 
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.  

 

(f)       Company’s Policy on Prohibition of Insider Trading 
The Company has also formulated a Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor, and Report Trading by Insiders to deter the   
insider trading in the securities of the Company based on the unpublished price sensitive information. The Code envisages 

procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing in the securities of the Company. The Code is available 
on the website of Company at www.madhavcorp.com. 
 

(g)       Profile of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment 
 As required under Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard - 2, particulars of the 

Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment are given in the Explanatory Statement to the Notice of the AGM.  
 

(h)         Materially significant related party transactions 

The Board of Directors has approved a Policy on materiality of related party transactions and also on dealing with related 
party transactions. The Policy is available on the website of the Company at www.madhavcorp.com Detailed information on 
materially significant related party transactions is enclosed as Annexure B to the Director’s report.  

 

3.      SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
The Company has 4 (Three) Subsidiary Companies, all of which are incorporated in India. The Board has approved a Policy 

Statement for determining Material Subsidiaries of the Company which is available on the website of the Company at 
www.madhavcorp.com.The financial statements of the subsidiary companies are presented to the Audit Committee. The Company 
has a material subsidiary – Seabird Exploration Private Limited as of the date of this Report, having a net worth exceeding 10% 
of the consolidated net worth or income of 10% of the consolidated income of your Company.  
 

4.     COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

(a)  Composition, Meetings and Attendance 
The Audit Committee of your Company has been constituted as per the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)  Regulations, 2015, as amended time 

to time (specified in Part C of Schedule II).   
 

The Audit Committee comprises 4 (four) Non-Executive Directors, as members. All members are financially literate and    
possess sound knowledge of accounts, finance and audit matters. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary 
to the Audit Committee. The Auditors of the Company attend the Meetings of the Audit Committee on invitation of the  
Chairman of the Committee. 

 
During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Audit Committee met 4 (four) times on 1. 19/05/2022, 2. 13/08/2022, 3.  
14/11/2022. 4. 14/02/2023 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of  

Director 

No. of Board 
Meetings 

Held 

No. of Board  
Meetings entitle to  

attend 

Board Meetings 

Attended 

Previous AGM  

Attended 

1 Mr. Amit Khurana 6 6 5 Yes 

2 Mr. Ashok Khurana 6 6 6 Yes 

3 Mr. Mayur Parikh 6 6 6 Yes 

4 Ms. Pooja Shah 6 6 6 Yes 

5 Ms. Jaini Jain 6 6 6 Yes 

6 Mrs. Heena Parikh 6 6 5 - 

http://www.madhavcorp.com
http://www.madhavcorp.com
http://www.madhavcorp.com


29
MIPL 

The Composition, Meeting and Attendance of Audit Committee as on March 31, 2023, is given below:  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

(b)         Terms of Reference 

1)  Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 

2)  Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the    
Statutory Auditors and the fixation of audit fees. 

3) Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors. 
4) Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of Internal Auditors. 
5) Reviewing, with the Management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval, with 

particular reference to; 

a) Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s Report in 
terms of clause (c) of sub section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

b) Changes, if any, in Accounting Policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the Management; 

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of Audit findings; 
e) Compliance with Listing and other Legal requirements relating to the financial statements; 
f) Disclosure of any related party transactions; 
g) Qualifications in the draft Audit Report; 

6)  Reviewing with the Management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval; 
7) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, 

rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of 

proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this 
matter; 

8) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 
9) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 

10)  Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
11) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 
12) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
13) Reviewing, with the Management, performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, and adequacy of the internal control 

systems; 
14) Reviewing the adequacy of Internal Audit function, if any, including the structure of the Internal Audit department, 

staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure, coverage and frequency of Internal  
Audit; 

15) Discussions with Internal Auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon; 
16) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected 

fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board; 
17) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-

audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 
18) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in 

case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

19) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 
20) Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function 

or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 
21) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

22) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management; 
23) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
24) Internal Audit Report relating to internal control weaknesses; 
25) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of Chief Internal Auditor.     

 
B.  STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

(a)         Composition, Meetings and Attendance 
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of your Company has been constituted as per the requirements of Section 178 of 

the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 20 the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
as amended time to time. (specified in Part D of Schedule II). 

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee comprises 4 (four) Non-Executive Directors as members.  

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee met 4 (four) times on 1. 19/05/2022, 2. 

13/08/2022, 3. 14/11/2022, 4. 14/02/2023 

The Composition, Meeting and Attendance of Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2023, is given below:  

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the  
Director 

Designation Category 
No. of  

Meetings Held 
Meetings 
Attended 

1 Mr. Mayur Parikh Chairman Non-Executive Independent 4 4 

2 Ms. Jaini Jain Member Non-Executive Independent 4 4 

3 Ms. Pooja Shah Member Non-Executive Independent 4 4 

4 Mr. Ashok Khurana Member Non Executive Non-Independent 4 4 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the  
Director 

Designation Category 
No. of  

Meetings Held 
Meetings 
Attended 

1 Ms. Pooja Shah Chairman Non-Executive Independent 4 4 

2 Mr. Mayur Parikh Member Non-Executive Independent 4 4 

3 Mrs. Heean Parikh Member Non-Executive Independent 4 4 

4 Mr. Ashok Khurana Member Non Executive Non-Independent 4 4 
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(b)     Terms of Reference 

1) Efficient transfer of shares, including review of cases for refusal of transfer/ transmission of Shares and Debentures, 

demat/ remat of shares; 

2) Redressal of Shareholder and Investor complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of  Balance Sheet, non-receipt of 

declared dividends etc.; 

3) Issue of new / duplicate / split / consolidated Share Certificates; 

4) Allotment of Shares; 

5) Review of cases for refusal of transfer / transmission of Shares and Debentures; 

6) Reference to Statutory and Regulatory authorities regarding Investor Grievances; and 

7) To otherwise ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of Investor’s queries and Grievances. 

 

(c)    Status of Investors’ complaints 
The status of Investor’s complaints as on March 31, 2023 is as follows: 

 
The complaints received were mainly in the nature of delay in Share Transfer Process and non receipt of Annual Report. 
There were no pending requests for transfer of shares of the Company as on March 31, 2023. 
 

(d) Name and Designation of Compliance Officer 

Mr. Gopal Shah, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company. (01/04/2022 to 06/01/2023) 
Mr. Dharmesh Chauhan, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company. (23/01/2023 to 31/03/2023) 
 

C.  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

(a)    Composition, Meetings and Attendance 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of your Company has been constituted as per the requirements of Section 
178 of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)           
Regulations, 2015, as amended time to time. (specified in Part D of Schedule II). The Chairman of the Committee is an    

Independent Director.  
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises 3 (Three) Non-Executive Directors as members.  
 
During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 1 (one) time on 17/01/2023 

The Composition, Meeting and Attendance of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2023, is given  
below:  
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
(b) Terms of Reference 

1) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and      
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other 

employees and carry our evaluation of every director’s performance;  
2) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 
3)  Devising a policy on Board diversity; 

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in  senior management in accordance 
with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. 
 

(c)  Remuneration Policy 

Remuneration Policy of your Company has been designed to ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is     
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors/Employees of the quality required to run the Company 
successfully and Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance bench marks. 
Remuneration policy of the Company has been uploaded on the Company’s website and can be accessed at 
www.madhavcorp.com. Salient features of the policy on remuneration of executive and non-executive directors are as under: 
 
1) Executive Directors:  

The Board of Directors in consultation with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee decides on the remuneration 

payable to the Managing Director / Whole Time Director. The total remuneration to the Managing Director comprises 
fixed component consisting of salary and perquisites in accordance with Company’s policy and a profit linked incentive. 
The said remuneration is approved by the members in the Annual General Meeting the Company. 
 

2) Non – Executive Directors: 

 Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the Board and Committee meetings, plus the reimbursement 
of actual expense directly related to the travel and out of pocket expenses, if any, incurred by them. 
 

(d) Details of remuneration and pecuniary benefits to the Directors during financial year 2022-23  

During the year, the Companies had paid the remuneration and setting fees to the Directors, as applicable under the       
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Details of payment made to the Directors is mentioned in the financial         
statement.  

Number of complaints as on March 31, 2023 - 

Number of complaints received during the year ended on March 31, 2023 - 

Number of complaints resolved up to March 31, 2023 - 

Number of complaints pending as on March 31, 2023 - 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the  
Director 

Designation Category 
No. of  

Meetings Held 
Meetings 
Attended 

1 Ms. Pooja Shah Chairman Non-Executive Independent 1 1 

2 Mr. Mayur Parikh Member Non-Executive Independent 1 1 

3 Ms. Jaini Jain Member Non-Executive Independent 1 1 
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(e) Performance Evaluation 

 In adherence of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the  Committee, in its Meeting 
held on February 14, 2023, has carried out the annual performance  evaluation of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. 
The Board of Directors also carried out annual performance evaluation of Independent Directors and Committees of the 
Board. Performance evaluation was carried out based on approved criteria such as adherence to ethical standards and code 

of conduct, constructive participation in Board Meetings, implementing good corporate governance practices etc. The     
Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. The independent directors also held separate meeting to 
review the performance of Non-independent Directors and overall performance of the board. 
 

D.   CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE 

(a)  Composition, Meetings and Attendance 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of your Company has been constituted as per the requirements of Section 
135 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The      

Chairman of the Committee is an Independent  Director. The Corporate Social Responsibility policy of the Company is   
available on the website of the Company at www.madhavcorp.com.  
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises 3 (Three) Non-Executive Directors. The Company Secretary of the 

Company acts as Secretary to the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.  
 
During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met 1 (One) times on 14/02/2023. The 
Composition, Meeting and Attendance of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as on March 31, 2022, is given below: 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

(b) Terms of Reference 

1) To review the existing CSR Policy and to make comprehensive so as to indicate the activities to be undertaken by the 
Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 

2)  To provide guidance on various CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company and to monitor process. 

 
5.    GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 (a)   The details of last three Annual General Meetings and summery of Special Resolution passed therein are as under: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 6.  As required by item 10(i) of part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended, A certificate has been      

received from KH & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.   
 
 
7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS  
 

(a) Quarterly Results 
The Company publishes limited reviewed Un-audited financial results on a quarterly basis. In respect of the fourth quarter 
the Company publishes the Audited Financial results for the complete financial year. The results are published in Free 

Press and Lok Mitra in English and Gujarati Respectively.   
 

(b) Website, where displayed 
 The Financial results and the official news releases are also placed on the website of the Company at www.madhavcorp.com 

in the “Investor” Section. 
 

(c) Official news release 
 The Company regularly publishes an information update on its financial results and also displays official news releases in 

the “Investor” Sections. 

Financial 
Year 

Date-Time-Venue Particulars of Special Resolutions passed 

2021-22 
September 25, 2022 at 11:30 AM through VC/ 
OAVM 

 Authorisation and Ratification to Advance any Loan or Give Guarantee or 

to provide Security 

2020-21 
September 25, 2021 at 11:30 AM through VC/ 
OAVM 

 Issue of Convertible Equity Warrants to Person other than 

Promoter / Promoter Group 

 Reclassification of the Authorised Share Capital of the   

Company 

2019-20 October 17, 2020 at 11:30 AM through VC/OAV  Sale and Transfer of Business Undertaking  

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the  
Director 

Designation Category 
No. of  

Meetings Held 
Meetings 
Attended 

1 Mr. Mayur Parikh Chairman Non-Executive Independent 1 1 

2 Mr. Ashok Khurana Member Non-Executive Non-Independent 1 1 

3 Ms. Pooja Shah Member Non-Executive Independent 1 1 

http://www.madhavcorp.com
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8.  GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION  

 
(a)  Annual General Meeting:      Date           :    September 27, 2023 

Time        :    11:30 A.M. 

Venue     :    Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing/ other Audio Visuals 
              Means Facility [OAVM] 

 
(b) Financial Year 

 The Financial year of the Company starts from April 01 of a year and ends on March 31 of the following year. 
 
(c) Dividend 
 The Board of Directors feel that it is prudent to plough back the profits for future growth of the Company and do not       

recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
  
 The Company has issued 1% & 0% Non – Cumulative Preference Shares. Your Directors not recommended dividend for the 

period ended March 31, 2023. 

 
(e) Name and Address of Stock Exchanges at which the Company securities are listed 
 
 The equity shares of the Company Listed at:        BSE Limited [BSE] [Scrip Code:  539894], ISIN: INE631R01026 

25,  Phiroz Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai -01 
 

(f) Payment of Listing Fees 
 The Company has paid the annual listing fees for the year 2023-24. 

 
(g) In case the securities are suspended from trading, the Directors Report shall explain the reason thereof: 
 Not Applicable. 
 
(h) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:      Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited 

Office No. 106 & 107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound,  
Andheri- Kurla Road, Safedpul, Sakinaka, Mumbai - 072 
Ph. 022 – 28520461/462 Email: service@satellitecorporate.com 

 
(i) Share Transfer System 
 Trading in equity shares of the Company through recognized Stock Exchanges can be done only in dematerialized form. In 

case of shares held in physical form, the transferred share certificates duly endorsed are dispatched within 15 days from the 

date of receipt of documents, provided documents are valid and complete in all respects. In compliance of the relevant    
provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the share transfer system of the 
Company is audited every six months by a Practicing Company Secretary and a certificate to that effect is issued by him/
her. 

 

 Trading / Transfer in the shares of the Company shall compulsorily be done in dematerialized form only w.e.f. April 

01, 2019. Pursuant to SEBI Press Release No. 12/2019 dated 27th March, 2019, SEBI had clarified that the investors may 

continue to hold such shares in physical form even after the 1st April, 2019 subject to condition that investor who is      

desirous of transferring shares (which are held in physical form) after April 01, 2019 can do so only after the shares are  

dematerialized. Shareholders are therefore advised to dematerialize your physical shareholding at the earliest, if not yet  

already done. Dematerialization would facilitate paperless trading through state-of-the-art technology, quick transfer of  

corporate benefits to members and avoid inherent problems of bad deliveries, loss in postal transit, theft and mutilation of 

share certificate and will not attract any stamp duty. It also substantially   reduces the risk of fraud. Hence, we request all 

those members who have still not dematerialized their shares to get their shares dematerialized at the earliest. 

 

 In case of request for dematerialization of shares, confirmation of dematerialization is sent to the respective depository i.e. 

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) or Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), expeditiously. 

 

(j) Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2023 

 
 Shareholding of 

Nominal Value of Rs. 

1/-  each 

Share-
holders 

% of Total 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares 
Nominal Value 

(Rs.) 

% of  
Nominal 

Value 

Upto -100 8,146 34.49 3,29,914 3,29,914 0.12 

101  -  500  5,985 25.35 17,81,271 17,81,271 0.66 

501  - 1000  3,400 14.40 30,09,517 30,09,517 1.12 

1,001- 2,000  2,247 9.52 36,47,309 36,47,309 1.35 

2,001- 3,000  950 4.02 25,07,713 25,07,713 0.92 

3,001 - 4,000 455 1.93 16,68,370 16,68,370 0.62 

4,001– 5,000  616 2.61 29,82,649 29,82,649 1.11 

5,001-10,000  825 3.49 65,83,454 65,83,454 2.44 

10,001-20,000  519 2.20 82,09,153 82,09,153 3.05 

20,001 -50,000  304 1.29 96,97,166 96,97,166 3.60 

50,001 & Above  165 0.70 22,91,65,044 22,91,65,044 85.0.1 

Total 23,612 100.00 26,95,81,560 26,95,81,560 100.00 

mailto:service@satellitecorporate.com
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(k) Categories of Shareholders as on March 31, 2023 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

(l)         Bifurcation of shares held in physical and demat form as on March 31, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(m)      Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments  

 Your Company has not issued GDRs/ADRs. Hence, there are no Outstanding GDRs/ADRs as on March 31, 2023.  
 
(n) The shareholding of Directors as on the March 31, 2023  is as under:  

 

 

 

 

 

(o)     Share Price Data  
The monthly high and low prices and volumes of shares of the Company after getting trading permission from BSE Limited 
(BSE) for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as under:  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(p)             Address for Correspondence with the Company :                  The Company Secretary 
Madhav Infra Projects Limited 
 Madhav House, Plot No.-04, 
 Nr. Panchratna Building, 

 Subhanpura, Vadodara – 390 023, GJ. 
 Tel. Fax – 0265 -2290722 
Email – gopal.shah@madhavcorp.com 

 
(q)   Nomination Facility 

 Provision of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 19(1) of the rules made thereunder extends nomination 
facility to individuals holding shares in the physical form. To help the legal heirs/ successors get the shares transmitted in 
their favour, shareholder(s) are requested to furnish the particulars of their nomination in the prescribed Nomination Form. 

Shareholder(s) holding shares in Dematerialized form are requested to register their nominations directly with their        
respective DPs. 

Category 
No. of  

Shareholders 
No. of  

Shares Held 
% of Total  

Shareholding 

Promoter 8 18,60,15,976 69.00 

Banks/FI - - - 

Insurance Companies - - - 

Mutual Funds - - - 

Bodies Corporate 40 1,76,31,844 6.54 

Non Resident Indians 110 7,82,714 0.29 

Public 23,454 6,51,51,026 24.17 

Total 23,612 26,95,81,560 100.00 

Category 
No. of  

Shareholders 
No. of  

Shares Held 
% of Total  

Shareholding 

Physical Segment 150 39,72,000 1.47 

Demat Segment       

NSDL 4,580 2,56,84,192 9.53 

CDSL 18,882 23,99,25,368 89.00 

Total 23,612 26,95,81,560 100.00 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Shareholding Percentage (%) 

1 Mr. Amit Khurana 47,91,240 1.78 

2 Mr. Ashok Khurana 7,84,64,646 29.11 

3 Mr. Mayur Parikh Nil Nil 

4 Ms. Pooja Shah Nil Nil 

5 Ms. Jaini Jain Nil Nil 

6 Mrs. Heena Parikh Nil Nil 

Month High  Low Volume 

Apr-21 5.79 4.65 61,76,705 

May-21 5.35 4.21 51,26,026 

June-21 5.29 3.55 34,21,214 

July-21 4.40 3.79 19,47,219 

Aug-21 4.39 3.80 38,81,341 

Sept - 21 5.17 3.86 54,55,703 

Oct - 21 5.05 3.97 48,13,966 

Nov - 21 5.50 4.07 1,07,75,898 

Dec - 21 6.83 4.56 1,41,87,217 

Jan - 22 6.00 4.50 37,46,199 

Feb - 22 5.25 3.75 29,08,367 

Mar - 22 4.47 3.60 28,20,409 

mailto:gopal.shah@madhavcorp.com
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8. OTHER DISCLOSURES 
(a)  Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions 

 During the year under review, there were no materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the       
Company of material nature, with its promoters, their subsidiaries, the Directors, the KMP, the management or relatives or 
other designated persons, that may have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.  

 

 All related party transactions entered into during the year were on arms’ length basis, in the ordinary course of business 
and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. The Board’s approved policy for 

related party transactions is uploaded on the website of the Company.  
 

(b) Details of non-compliance with regard to capital markets during last three years 

 The Company is in compliance with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and Statutory Authorities on all matters 
related to the capital markets. No penalty or strictures were imposed on the Company by these authorities during the last 
three years except in case of delay submission of Financial results pursuant to Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations and 

Regulation 295(1) SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.  
 

(c)  Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 

 The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the        
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 and other relevant provisions of the Act.  

 

(d) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no personnel has been    
denied access to the Audit Committee  

 The Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy. The details in this regard have been mentioned in the Board’s Report 
forming part of this Annual Report. No person has been denied access to the  chairman of Audit Committee for any       
grievance. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company.  

 

(e) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements 
 The Company has complied with all mandatory and non-mandatory requirements of the Listing  Regulations relating to  

Corporate Governance and also complied with Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) relating to dissemination of information 
on the website of the Company.  

 

(f) Policy on Determination of Materiality for Disclosures  
 As per Regulation 30 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Company has adopted a Policy on Determination of Materiality for 

Disclosures.  
 

(g)      Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading 
 The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015 (‘Code’). The Code lays down guidelines for procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made 
by insiders while trading in the securities of the Company.  

 

 During the year under review, both the above Codes were amended to align them with the amendments to SEBI (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. As per the revised Code, the Company has also adopted Policy on Enquiry in case of 
leak or suspected leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and Policy for Determination of Legitimate Purposes. The 

Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices along with the Policy for Determination of Legitimate Purposes is also available on 
the website of the Company.  

 

(h)  Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report  
 Pursuant to Regulation 76 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 

and SEBI Circular No D&CC / FITTC/ Cir- 16/2002 dated December 31, 2002, A qualified practicing Company Secretary 

carried out a share capital audit to reconcile the total admitted equity share capital with the National Securities Depository 
Limited (“NSDL”) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) and the total issued and listed equity share 
capital. The audit report confirms that the total issued / paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in 
physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL. 

 
(i)  CEO/CFO Certification 
 The Managing Director as CEO and Chief Financial Officer [CFO] of the Company have certified to the Board in accordance 

with Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations pertaining to CEO/ CFO certification for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2022 is annexed with the report.  
 
(j) Disclosure of compliance of regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of regulation 46 
 The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of 

sub–regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
(k) Disclosures with respect to Demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account 

 The Company does not have any shares in the Demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account. 
 
(l) Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding compliance of          

conditions of corporate governance 

 The Certificate from the practicing company secretaries, regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance is    
annexed with the Directors’ Report and forms an integral part of the Annual Report. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Madhav Infra Projects Limited 

 
 

Date:  August 3, 2023                                                            Ashok Khurana 

Place: Vadodara                                                                                                                                                                          Chairman  
[DIN:00003617] 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION  

 
To 
The Board of Directors 
Madhav Infra Projects Limited 

 
We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Madhav Infra Projects Limited 
(“the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that: 

 
(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and to the best 

of our knowledge and belief, we state that:  
 

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain any statements that 
might be misleading;  

 
(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing      

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 

(b) We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Company during the 
year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct. 

 
(c) We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Management Committee have confirmed compliance with the 

Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company. 
 

(d) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness of the same over the   
financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the  design or   
operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these        
deficiencies. 

 
(d) We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit Committee:  
 

(i) significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;  

 
(ii)  significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been disclosed in the notes 

to the financial statements; and  
 

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.  

 
 

 
                                                                                                         (Rajendrasinh Rana)                                 (Amit Khurana) 
Place: Vadodara,                                                                                      Chief Financial Officer                             Managing Director 
Date: August 3, 2023                                                                                                                                                       [DIN:00003626] 
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Annexure to Corporate Governance Report 

Certificate by a Company Secretary in Practice 
 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 
 
 

To, 

The Members of 

Madhav Infra Projects Limited 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

For K H & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 
 

 

Place: Vadodara                                                                                                                                                 (Haresh Kapuriya)  

Date: August 28, 2023                                                                                                                               ACS No. 26109; CP No. 16749 
UDIN: A026109E000880567 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director 
Director Identification  

Number (DIN) 
Date of  

Appointment 
Date of  

Cessation 

1 Mr. Ashok Khurana 00003617 14-02-2019 NA 

2 Mr. Amit Khurana 00003626 14-02-2019 NA 

3 Mr. Mayur Parikh 00005646 01-01-2020 NA 

4 Ms. Pooja Shah 07502838 29-09-2018 NA 

5 Ms. Jaini Jain 07859496 01-07-2021 NA 

We have examined the following documents: 

 
i)  Declaration of non-disqualification as required under Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’); 
ii)  Disclosure of concern or interests as required under Section 184 of the Act; (hereinafter referred to as ‘relevant documents’) 

as submitted by the Directors of Madhav Infra Projects Limited (‘the Company’) bearing CIN: L45200GJ1992PLC018392 and having its 

registered office at Madhav House, Plot No. 04, Near Panchratna Building, Subhanpura, Vadodara – 390023, to the Board of Directors 
of the Company (‘the Board’) for the financial year 2022-23 and relevant registers, records, forms and returns maintained by the 
Company and as made available to us for the purpose of issuing this Certificate in accordance with, Regulation 34(3) read with 
Schedule V Para C Clause 10(i) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. We have considered non-disqualification to include non-debarment 

by Regulatory/ Statutory Authorities. 

It is the responsibility of Directors to submit relevant documents with complete and accurate information in accordance with, the 

provisions of the Act. 

Ensuring the eligibility for appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. 

Based on our examination as aforesaid and such other verifications carried out by us as deemed necessary and adequate (including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in), in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
knowledge and according to the explanations provided by the Company, its officers and authorised representatives, we hereby certify 
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company, as listed hereunder for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by Securities and Exchange Board of India / 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

This Certificate has been issued at the request of the Company to make disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report of the financial 

year ended March 31, 2023. 
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To the Members of MADHAV INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 
 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
1. Opinion  

 We have audited the accompanying statement of standalone financial results of MADHAV INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED (the 
company) for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2023 (the “Statement”), attached herewith, being submitted by the company 
pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing Regulations”). 

  
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement: 
 
i. is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations in this regard; and 

 
ii. Give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the applicable Indian          
    accounting standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the net profit and other comprehensive  
    income and other financial information for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2023. 

 
                  Basis for Opinion 

          We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, as              
         amended (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone   
         Financial Results” section of our report. We are independent of the Company, in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of  
         Chartered  Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial  results under the  
         provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and  
         the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence  we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
     
2. Emphasis of Matter: 

 We refer to note 4 of standalone accompanying result, detailing the Scheme of Arrangement and it’s effect in these standalone 
accompanying result. The Board of Directors of the Company had at their meeting held on 13th August, 2022 inter alia approved 
the Scheme of Arrangement in nature of Amalgamation of  RB Real Estate Private Limited, Madhav Urja Private Limited, Madhav 
Heights Private Limited    (‘the Transferor Company’) with Madhav Infra Projects Limited (‘the Transferee Company’) and their 

respective shareholders (‘the Scheme’) with effect from the appointed date i.e. 1st April, 2020 has been sanctioned by the Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (‘NCLT’) vide its order dated 6th July, 2023.  The Scheme has become effective 
upon filing of the certified copy of order of the NCLT, sanctioning the Scheme with Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at Ahmedabad 
by way of filing required e-forms with Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ portal within one month. Basis the Order of NCLT approving the 

Scheme, these standalone financial result for the year ended March 31, 2023 are prepared and presented after giving effect to the 
Scheme.  
 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 
 

3. Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results 
        The statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone financial statements. The Company’s Board of Directors are            
        responsible for the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial results that give a true and fair view of the net profit   
        and other comprehensive income and other financial information in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles  
        laid down in Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and  

        other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. This           
         responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for            
        safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and           

        application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,  
        implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy   
        and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial results that  
        give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

        In preparing the standalone financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to  
        continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of  
        accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic  

       alternative but to do so. 
 
       The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
 

  

 

Independent  Auditor’s Report 
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4. Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial results as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial results. 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial results, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion through a separate report on 
the complete set of standalone financial statements on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 

in the standalone financial results made by the Board of Directors. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial results, including the disclosures, and whether 

the standalone financial results represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
5. Other Matter 
 

 The Statement includes the results for the quarter ended 31st March, 2023 being the balancing figures between the 
audited figures in respect of full financial year ended 31st march, 2023 and the published unaudited year to date 
figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year, which were subjected to a limited review by us, as 
required under the Listing Regulations. 

 

FOR BIPIN & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  

FRN: 101509W  

 

 

AMIT D. SHAH 

PARTNER 

M. No.: 126337  
 

UDIN: 23126337BGSPIB7788 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 13/06/2023 
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  
 

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the financial statements for the year 
ended 31st March 2023. 
 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the company and the books of account and records 
examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 

 

 

1(a) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:  

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of the 

property, plant and equipment;  

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets;  

1(b) The company has a phased programme of physical verification of its Property, plant and equipment’s so as to cover all 

assets once in three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, plant and equipments were 
verified by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification;  

1(c) Based on our verification of the documents provided to us and according to the information and explanations given by the 

Management, the title deeds of all the immovable properties as disclosed in the financial statements, are held in the name 
of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date;  

1(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the year;  

1(e) The Company does not have any proceedings initiated or pending for holding any benami property under the Benami 

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Hence the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(e) of the 
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") are not applicable to the Company;  

2(a) The inventory have been physically verified by the Management at reasonable intervals. Considering the size of the 

Company, the frequency of verification is reasonable and the procedures are adequate. No discrepancies have been noticed 
on such verification;  

2(b) The Company has working capital limits sanctioned from banks or financial institutions exceeding Rs. 5 crores during the 

year and the quarterly returns / statements filed by the Company are generally in agreement with the books of accounts 
and no material discrepancy was observed;  

3 The Company has made investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and granted unsecured loans to 

other parties, during the year, in respect of which: 
 
a. The Company has provided unsecured loan to Nine parties with aggregate amount granted/provided during the year is 

Rs.5825.76 lakhs during the year and where balance outstanding as at Balance Sheet date is Rs.250.01 lakhs. 

b. In our opinion, the investments made are prima facie not prejudicial to the Company’s interest, however the terms and 
conditions of aforesaid loans granted by the company are prejudicial to the company’s interest on account of the fact 
that the aforesaid loans have been provided interest free which is not as per requirement under section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

c. There is no stipulation of schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest and we are unable to make 
specific comment on the regularity of repayment of principal & payment of interest in aforesaid loan;  

d. In respect of the aforesaid loan, there is no stipulation of schedule of repayment of principal and we are unable to 
make specific comment on overdue for more than ninety days; 

e. No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans 
granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties; 

f. The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying 
any terms or period of repayment during the year. Details are as follow: 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

4 The Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans 

granted, investment made, and guarantee and securities provided, as applicable except following on which no interest has 
been charged;  
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

5 The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the provisions of sections 

73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, therefore, the 
provisions of paragraph 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company;  

Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of 

loans  

Related Parties  

- Repayable on demand (A) 

- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of 
repayment (B)  

 - 

 
Rs. 250.01 Lakhs 

Total (A+B)  Rs. 250.01 Lakhs 

Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to 

the total loans  
100 % 

Name of the Party  Year end Balance  
(Rs. in lakhs)  

Maximum Balance  
(Rs. in lakhs)  

Madhav (Aaron Sindh Road) Pvt. Ltd.  130.00 253.50 

Mansha Textiles Pvt. Ltd.  120.01 120.01 
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6. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the 

Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima 
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed 
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete;  

7(a) In our opinion, the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service tax , 

provident fund, employee state insurance,  income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added 
tax, cess and other statutory dues as applicable to the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable 
with respect to above statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of six months from the date they became 
payable;  

7(b) Details of statutory dues referred to above which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2023 on account of disputes are 

given below: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

8 The Company has no transactions which were not recorded in the books of account, have been surrendered or disclosed as 

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961;  

9(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 

lender;  

9(b) The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;  

9(c) The term loans taken by the company were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained;  

9(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, 

not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company;  

9(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 

associates or joint ventures;  

9(f) We report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 

ventures or associate companies;  

10(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during 

the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable;  

10(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 

debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable;   

11(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year;  

11(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under 

rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of 
this report.  

11(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year;  

12 The Company is not a nidhi company and hence the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the 

Company;  

13 The Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act where applicable, for all transactions with 

the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required 
by the applicable accounting standards;  

14(a) In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business;  

14(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under audit.  

15 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-

cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are not applicable;  

16(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable;  

16(b) There is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 

Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable;  

17 The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year;  

18 There is no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year Hence provision of Clause 18 of the Companies (Auditor’s 

Report) order 2020, is not applicable to the Company.;  

Name of the statute  Nature of dues  Amounts  
(Rs. in 

lakhs)  

Period to which 
the amounts 

relates  

Forum where dispute is pending   

Central Excise Dept.  Service Tax  21.48 F.Y. 2015-16 TO 

2017-18 

Gujarat High Court  

Maharastra State VAT Act  VAT Tax  44.80 F. Y. 2011-12 Maharastra Sales Tax Tribunal  

Madhya Pradesh State 

VAT Act  

VAT Tax  32.09 F.Y. 2016-17 Madhya Pradesh Sales Tax 

Commisioner  
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FOR BIPIN & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  

FRN: 101509W  

 

 

AMIT D. SHAH                                   UDIN: 23126337BGSPID8231  

 PARTNER                                          Place: Vadodara 

 M. No.: 126337                                                                                               Date: 13/06/2023                                                          

19 Based on our examination financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans, there is no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date; 

 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and 

when they fall due;  

20(a)

(b) 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided by the management, the company do not fall 

under the prescribed classes of the Companies mentioned under the section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the 
year;  
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the  
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  

 

 We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MADHAV INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 
March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements for the year ended on that date.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 

and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 

the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the      

Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the  

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance    
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a   
material effect on the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or      
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,         

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal  financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of    
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  
 
Opinion  

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the   

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 
 
FOR BIPIN & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  

FRN: 101509W  

 

 

AMIT D. SHAH                                            UDIN: 23126337BGSPID8231   
PARTNER 

M. No.: 126337  

Place: Vadodara                                             Date: 13/06/2023 
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  BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2023   

        

PARTICUALRS 
NOTE   AS AT  AS AT 

NO   31-03-2023  31-03-2022 

I ASSETS          

(1) Non Current Assets         

  (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 8,205.43  6,906.01  

 (b) Intangible Assets 3 1,164.14  1,218.81  

 (c) Capital work in Progress  710.44    

 (d) Investment in subsidiaries & Associates 4 3,218.84  4,692.86  

 (e) Financial Assets       

   (i) Investments 5 979.82  136.58  

  (ii) Other Financial Assets  6  2,108.91  1,780.49  

 (f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 - 16,387.58 230.71 14,965.46 

 (2)  Current Assets         

  (a) Inventories 8 7,847.25  10,287.63  

 (b) Financial Assets          

  (i) Trade Receivable 9 14,897.39   9,476.60   

  (ii) Cash and cash Equivalents 10 915.72  246.59  

  (iii) Other Balances with Banks 11 2,602.22  4,214.35  

  (iv) Loans 12 36.94  70.59  

  (v) Other Financial Assets 13 193.53  432.99  

 (c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 -  971.63  

 (d) Other current Assets 15 4,120.00 30,613.04 6,166.11 31,866.48 

 TOTAL ASSETS   47,000.63  46,831.94 

        
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      

 Equity      

 (a) Equity Share Capital 16 2,695.82  6,352.29  

 (b) Equity Warrants  -  1,335.26  

 (c) Other Equity 17 13,838.22 16,534.04 5,940.49 13,628.04 

 Liabilities      
 Non Current Liabilities      

 (a) Financial Liabilities      

  (i) Borrowing 18 11,847.24  13,986.96  

  (ii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 1,051.54  1,780.57  

 (b) Other Non Current Liabilities 20 679.51  1,548.97  

 (c) Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net) 21 6.78  -  

 (d) Provisions 22 80.16 13,665.23 - 17,316.50 

 Current Liabilities      

 (a) Financial Liabilities      

  (i) Borrowings 22 6,393.81  5,538.42  

  (ii) Trade Payable 24     

 
 (a) Total outstanding due of Micro Enterprises 

and Small Enterprises 
 64.48  126.42  

 
 (b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 

than  Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 
 9,367.67  9,293.55  

  (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 25 19.77  34.34  

 (b) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 26 282.95  -  

 (c) Other Current Liabilities 27 574.12  780.35  

 (d) Provisions 28 98.57 16,801.32 114.32 15,887.40 

 TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES    47,000.63   46,831.94 

  Significant Accounting Policies and  1 TO      

  Notes on Financial Statements   60        

  As per our Report of even date       FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD  

 FOR BIPIN & CO.  (CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)  

  FIRM REGISTRATION NO.101509W  MANAGING DIRECTOR  CHAIRMAN 

  (AMIT D SHAH - PARTNER)  AMIT A. KHURANA ASHOK M. KHURANA 

  MEMBERSHIP NO.126337  [DIN: 00003626] [DIN:00003617] 

     COMPANY SECRETARY  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

  Place: Vadodara  DHARMESH CHAUHAN  RAJEDNRASINH RANA 

  Date: 13/06/2023    

      

                            

       

(INR in Lakhs) 
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 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023   

      (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICUALRS 
NOTE   YEAR ENDED   YEAR ENDED 

NO   31-03-2023   31-03-2022 

I  INCOME           

  Value of Sales & Services 29 37,030.29  43,374.84  

  Less: GST Recovered  (4,835.19)  (4,706.39)  

  Revenue from Operation  32,195.10  38,668.45   

  Other Income 30 2,871.35  247.49   

  Total Revenue     35,066.45   38,915.95 

II  EXPENCES           

   Cost of Materials Consumed 31 18,963.89  18,653.17   

   Changes in Construction Work in  Progress 32 (170.17)  (1,567.06)   

   Construction Expenses 33 6,711.66  14,147.83   

  Employee Benefits Expenses 34 1,149.02  1,695.03   

  Finance Costs 35 2,212.61  2,699.87   

  Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 36 1,111.22  1,503.88   

  Other Expenses 37 919.30  758.09   

   Total Expenses    30,897.51   37,890.82 

III 

 

Profit Before Exceptional Items & Tax  
(I-II) 

  
  

4,168.94 
  

1,025.13 

IV  Exceptional Items     - 

V  Profit Before Tax (III-IV)   4,168.94  1,025.13 

VI  Tax Expense:          

  1 Current tax   836.85  295.54   

 2 Earlier years’ Tax  (114.81)  -  

  3 Deferred tax   237.49 959.52 (12.00) 283.55 

VII  Profit for the year (V-VI)     3,209.40   741.58 

VIII  Other Comprehensive Income      

 
A 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit 

or loss 
 

 845.50  - 

 
B 

Items that will  be reclassified to profit or 

loss 
 

 -  - 

 
 

Total Comprehensive Income for the  
period  

 
 

4,054.90 
 

741.58 

IX 
 

Earnings per equity share of face value 
of Rs.1 each (VII-VIII) 

  
       

  1 Basic     1.51   0.29 

 2 Diluted     1.51   0.29 

   Significant Accounting Policies and 1 TO          

    Notes on Financial Statements  60         

               

  As per our Report of even date      

 FOR BIPIN & CO.       FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD  

  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS      

  FIRM REGISTRATION NO.101509W      

        

     MANAGING DIRECTOR  CHAIRMAN 

  (AMIT D SHAH - PARTNER)  AMIT A. KHURANA ASHOK M. KHURANA 

  MEMBERSHIP NO.126337  [DIN: 00003626] [DIN:00003617] 

       

      COMPANY SECRETARY  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

  Place: Vadodara  RAJENDRASINH RANA DHARMESH CHAUHAN  

  

Date: 13/06/2023   
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STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY   

(INR in Lakhs) A- Equity Share Capital       

PARTICULARS Nos. Amount 

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid     

Balance as at  1st April, 2021 25,62,28,960 2,562.29 

Change in Equity share capital due to sub division of face value of Equity share during the 

year 

- - 

Change in Equity share capital due to Bonus shares issued  during the year - - 

Balance as at  31st March, 2022 25,62,28,960 2,562.29 

Balance as at  1st April, 2022 25,62,28,960 2,562.29 

Change in Equity share capital during the year 1,33,52,600                     133.53 

Balance as at  31st March, 2023 26,95,81,560 2,695.82 

          

Warrant of Rs.10/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid   

Balance as at  1st April,2022 1,33,52,600 1,335.26 

Equity warrant converted into share capital during the year (1,33,52,600) (1,335.26) 

Balance as at  31st March, 2023 - - 

 

1%  Non-Cumulative- Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each 
issued, subscribed and fully paid (refer note no. 42) 

    

Balance as at  1st April, 2021 51,252,600 5,125.26 

Redemption of Preferance share capital during the year  (1,33,52,600) (1,335.26) 

Balance as at  31st March, 2022 3,79,00,000 3,790.00 

Balance as at  1st April, 2022 3,79,00,000 3,790.00 

Change in Preference share Capital during the year  (3,79,00,000) (3,790.00) 

Balance as at  31st March, 2023 - - 

            

  As per our Report of even date       FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD  

 FOR BIPIN & CO.    

  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  MANAGING DIRECTOR  CHAIRMAN 

  FIRM REGISTRATION NO.101509W  AMIT A. KHURANA ASHOK M. KHURANA 

     [DIN: 00003626] [DIN:00003617] 

  (AMIT D SHAH - PARTNER)    

  MEMBERSHIP NO.126337   COMPANY SECRETARY  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

  Place: Vadodara  DHARMESH CHAUHAN RAJENDRASINH RANA 

   
  Date: 13/06/2023 

   

      

  

 

    
  

 

B– Other Equity-Attributable to Owners                                                                                                      (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars  Total Reserve and Surplus 

Reserve on 
Amalgamation 

Financial 
Instrument 
Reserve 

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve 

Retained 
Earing 

Investment in 
Equity Reserve 

Balance as at  1st April,2021 
Profit for the year 

423.13 
- 

- 
- 

409.83 
- 

4,365.95 
741.58 

- 
- 

5,198.91 
741.58 

Balance as on March 31, 2022 423.13 - 409.83 5,107.53 - 5,940.49 

Balance as at  1st April,2022 423.13 - 409.83 5,107.53 - 5940.49 

On Preference Share liabilities - 3,118.93 - - - 3,118.93 

 Received on Conversion of Equity 
Warrants in to Equity Shares 

- - 1,201.73 - - 1,201.73 

Addition during the year (423.13) - - (54.70) 845.49 367.65 

Profit for the year - - - 3,209.41 - 2,309.41 

Balance as on March 31, 2023 0 3,118.93 1,611.56 8,262.25 845.49 13,838.22 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 

  PARTICUALRS 
YEAR ENDED  
31-03-2023 

YEAR ENDED  
31-03-2022 

        

A  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:     

  Net Profit before Tax  4,168.94 1,025.13 

  Adjustments for :   

  - Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1,111.22 1,503.88 

  - Interest paid 2,212.61 2,699.87 

  - Interest Received (233.38) (192.46) 

  
- Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of Assets (2,542.86) (29.15) 

 - profit on Sale of Investments (39.88) (9.26) 

  Total 507.71 3,972.88 

  OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 4,676.64 4,998.01 

  Adjustments for :    

  - (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 2,440.38 (3,538.14) 

  - (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (5,420.79) (157.93) 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in Financial Asset (55.31) 127.59 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in Other Asset 2,046.11 (129.45) 

 - Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 76.59 5,063.76 

 - Increase/(Decrease) in Financial Liabilities (743.60) 703.40 

 - Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities (1,075.69) (3,883.65) 

  Total (2,732.31) (1,814.42) 

  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATION 1,944.33 3,183.59 

  - Income Tax  713.31 (783.30) 

  NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,657.64 2,399.79 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

  - Purchase of Fixed Assets (3,192.07) (102.64) 

  - Purchase of Investments 630.78 (355.00)  

 - Capital Subsidies received - 158.25 

  - Sales of Fixed Assets 2,668.52 6,104.45 

 - Profit/(loss) carried with amalgamated Companies (484.20) - 

 - Profit on sale of Investments 39.88 9.26 

 - Increase in term deposits 1,612.13 (1,042.51) 

  - Interest Received 233.38 192.46 

  NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,508.42 4,964.27 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

  - Issuance of Equity Warrants - 1,335.26 

 - Redemption of Non Cumulative Preference share - (1,335.26) 

  - Borrowings (Long term) (2,139.72) (2,951.15) 

 - Borrowings (Short term) 855.39 (2,393.24) 

  - Interest paid 2,212.61 (2,699.87) 

  NET CASH  IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3,496.94) 8,044.26 

  NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 669.13 (680.19) 

  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31ST, March ( Opening Bal.) 246.59 926.78 

  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31ST, March ( Closing Bal.) 915.72 246.59 

        

 As per our Report of even date FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

 FOR BIPIN & CO.    

 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS                                           MANAGING DIRECTOR                CHAIRMAN 

 FIRM REGISTRATION NO.101509W                                 AMIT A. KHURANA                         ASHOK M. KHURANA 

 (AMIT D SHAH - PARTNER)                                              [DIN: 00003626]                                 [DIN:00003617]  

 MEMBERSHIP NO.126337                                                    COMPANY SECRETARY               CHIEF FINANCIAL 

 Place: Vadodara                                                                    DHARMESH CHAUHAN                 RAJENDRASINH RANA 

 Date: 13/06/2023   

(INR in Lakhs) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 

     GENERAL INFORMATION  

Madhav Infra Projects Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in India (CIN: L45200GJ1992PLC018392) 
having its registered office in Vadodara. The Company is engaged in the business of Infrastructure Development & Solar Power 
generation. 

 

These standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors vide its  
Resolution dated June 13, 2023. 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2016.  

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial 

liabilities (including financial instruments) which have been measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as 
explained in the accounting policies stated below.  

1.3 CURRENT VS NON – CURRENT CLASSIFICATION  

 The Company has classified all its assets and liabilities under current and non-current as required by Ind AS 1- Presentation 

of Financial Statements. The asset is treated as current when it is: 

 Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 

 Held primarily for purpose of trading; 

 Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period.. 
 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 

All liabilities are current when: 

 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or  

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

1.4 REVENUE RECOGNITION 

 All revenue and expenses are accounted for on accrual basis except to the extent stated otherwise.The Company follows the 

percentage of completion method, based on the stage of completion at the Balance sheet date taking in to account the 
contractual price and revision thereto by estimating total revenue and total cost till completion of the contract and profit so 
determined has been accounted for proportionate to the percentage of the actual work done. 
 

In the case of lump-sum contract revenue is recognized on the completion of milestone as specified in the contract or as 
identified by the management. Foreseeable losses are accounted for as and when they are determined except to the extent they 
are expected to be recovered through claims presented or to be presented to the customer or in arbitration. 
 

Amount due in receipt of the price escalation claim and/ or variation in contract work approved by the customers are 
recognized as revenue only when there are conditions stipulated in the contracts for such claims or variation and/ or the same 
are evidenced inter alia by way of confirmation of the same are accepted by the customers. 
 

Disputed amount under the contract works are recognized as revenue when the same are settled and amounts are received. 
 
Liquidated damages payable, if any, as per the terms of contract, for the delays, if any, are accounted only when such delay is 
attributable to the company. 

 Dividend 

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when 

shareholders approve the dividend.  

 Interest income 

 Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 

and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. 
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1.5 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION  

 Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency 
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the 
date of Balance Sheet. 
 
Exchange rate differences resulting from foreign currency transactions settled during the period including year-end translation 

of assets and liabilities are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Non-monetary assets, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, 
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction. 

 
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the 
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line 
with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair 

value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognized in OCI or Statement of Profit and 
Loss, respectively). 

1.6 GOVERNMENT GRANTS 

 Monetary government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 

attached conditions will be complied with. 
 
The grant related to an expense item is recognized as income in the year in which it is received. Grant in the form of cash 
benefit is recognized in the Balance Sheet as deferred income and it is transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss over the 

useful life of the concerned asset. 

1.7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  

 Short Term Employee Benefits: 

 A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of short term employee benefits in the period the related 

service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. 
 
The Liabilities for Gratuity and Leave encashment is accounted as and when paid. 

1.8 TAX EXPENSES 

 Current Tax 

 Current tax payable is calculated based on taxable profit for the year. Current tax is recognized based on the amount expected 

to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities based on applicable tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the balance sheet date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax return with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

 Deferred Tax 

 Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities  in the financial 

statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary timing difference. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
for deductible temporary differences to the extent that they are probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 

deductible temporary difference can be utilized. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. 

 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realized or liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted on the 
reporting date. 

 
Current and deferred tax for the year are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT ) Credit  

 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company 

recognises MAT credit available as a deferred tax asset only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the Company 
will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. 
The MAT credit to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the Company will utilise the credit is recognised in the 
Statement of profit and loss and corresponding debit is done to the Deferred Tax Asset as unused tax credit.  

1.9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 Freehold Land is stated at historical cost 

 
All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost 
directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use. 
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 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciates them 
separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognized as expense in the 
statement of profit and loss account as and when incurred. 

 
Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior to its intended use, are 
considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work- in- Progress. 
 

Cost of the assets less its residual value (estimated at 5% of the cost) is depreciated over its useful life. Depreciation is provided 
using written down value method on depreciable amount. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following assets, where useful life is different 
than those prescribed in Schedule II; 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The management believes that the estimated useful lives are realistic and reflects fair approximation of the period over which 

the assets are likely to be used. At each financial year end, management reviews the residual values, useful lives and method 
of depreciation of property, plant and equipment and values of the same are adjusted prospectively where needed. 

1.10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets 

are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles are 
not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure 
is incurred. 
 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 
 
The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the 

end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as 
changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 

 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at 
the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life 
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. 

 
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognized. 

1.11 BORROWING COST 

 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are considered as a part of cost of 

such assets less interest earned on the temporary investment. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial 
period of time to get ready for the intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss in the year 
in which they are incurred. 

1.12 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 

 The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any property, plant and equipment 

and intangible assets or group of assets, called cash generating units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists the 
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which 
the asset belongs. 

 
An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in 
use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. 
 
The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable 
amount.  

1.13 INVENTORY  

 I. Inventory is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on FIFO basis  

II. Unbilled cost are carried as construction work in progress which is valued considering the stage of completion and 
forseeable losses in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard - 11.  

III.  Stores and spares are written off in the year of purchase. 

Particular Depreciation 

Plant & Machinery of Solar Power Generation Plant  25 years 
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1.14 PROVISIONS, CONTIGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTIGENT ASSETS  

 Provisions 

 Provisions are recognized when the company has present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event and it is 

probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense related to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss 
net of any reimbursement/contribution towards provision made. 
 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, estimate for the provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 

 Contingent Liability 

  When there is a possible obligation which could arise from past event and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or; 

 

 A present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized as expense because it is not probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or; 
 

 The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

 Commitments 

 Commitments include the value of the contracts for the acquisition of the assets net of advances 

 Contingent Assets 

 Contingent asset is disclosed in case a possible asset arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 
 
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

 Onerous Contract 

 A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower expected costs of terminating the contract and 

the expected cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognizes impairment on the 
assets with the contract. 

1.15 LEASES  

 A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time 

in exchange for consideration. 
Company as a lessee  
(A) Lease Liability At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease 

payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using incremental borrowing rate.  

 
(B) Right-of-use assets Initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. 
Subsequent measurement 

(A) Lease Liability Company measure the lease liability by (a) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease 
liability; (b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (c) remeasuring the carrying amount to 
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications.  
(B) Right-of-use assets Subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use 

assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of 
the under lying asset.  
Impairment Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher 

of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not 
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 
 

Short term Lease  
Short term lease is that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less. A lease that contains a purchase 
option is not a short-term lease. If the company elected to apply short term lease, the lessee shall recognise the lease payments 
associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis. The 

lessee shall apply another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the lessee's benefit. 
 
As a lessor  
Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever, the terms of the lease 

transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All 
other leases are classified as operating leases. Lease income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on straight line 
basis over the lease term. 
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1.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

 The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes party to the contractual provision of the 

instrument. 
 
i. Financial Assets 
Initial recognition and measurement: 

Financial assets are initially measured at its fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair 
value of the concerned financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to 
acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss. However, trade 

receivable that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. 

 Subsequent measurement: 

 For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial asset in following broad categories: 

 
• Financial asset carried at amortized cost. 
• Financial asset carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
• Financial asset carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

 Financial asset carried at amortized cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any): 

 Financial assets are measured at amortized cost when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets 

for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized costs using Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR) method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. Cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial asset of the Company are covered under this 

category. 
 
Under the EIR method, the future cash receipts are exactly discounted to the initial recognition value using EIR. The 
cumulative amortization using the EIR method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and maturity amount is 

added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial asset over the relevant period of the 
financial asset to arrive at amortized cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the amortization under EIR 
method is recognized as interest income over the relevant period of the financial asset. The same is included under “other 
income” in the statement of profit or loss. The amortized cost of the financial asset is also adjusted for loss allowance, if any.  

 Financial asset carried at FVTOCI:  

 Financial asset under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, when asset is held 

with a business model whose objective is to hold asset for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. 
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income. 

 Financial asset carried at FVTPL: 

 Financial asset under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Changes in fair value 

are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

 Investment in subsidiaries: 

 The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries at cost. 

 Other Equity Investments: 

 All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes ecognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 Derecognition : 

 A financial asset is primarily derecognized when rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has 

transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially transferred all the risk and 
reward of the ownership of the financial asset. 

 Impairment of financial asset: 

 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financial 

assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). 
 
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all 
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

 
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset. 
12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months from the 
reporting date. 

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be ecognized from initial 
recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade 
receivables.   
At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed. 

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in 
credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used. 
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 ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’. 
 
 ii. Financial liabilities: 
Initial recognition and measurement: 

 
The Company recognizes a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. 
 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

 Subsequent measurement: 

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in 
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 

 
The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

 Derecognition of financial liabilities: 

 A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

 iii.Derivative financial instrument: 

Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to mitigate its foreign currency fluctuation 
risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is 
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at each reporting date. Gain or loss arising from changes in the 
fair value of heading instrument is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

 
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is 
negative. 

 Derecognition: 

On derecognition of hedged item, the unamortized fair value, of the hedging instrument adjusted to the hedged items is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 
 
iv. Fair value: 

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies 
mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 

takes place either:  
 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability or; 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure 
value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

(Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs). 
 
Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly 
Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability 
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 

nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

1.17 EARNING PER SHARE ( EPS )  

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by 

dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which 
includes all stock options granted to employees. 
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1.18 ADVANCES, PROGRESS PAYMENTS AND RETENTIONS  

 Advance received from customers in respect of contracts are treated as liability. Progress payments received are adjusted 

against receivables from customers in respect of the contract work performed. 
 
Amount (s) retained by the customers until the satisfactory completion of the contract are recognized in the final statement as 
receivables. Where such retention has been released by the customers against submission of bank guarantee the amount so 

released is adjusted against receivables from the customers and value of Bank Guarantees is disclosed as contingent liability 
under bank guarantees outstanding  

1.19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed deposit/highly liquid investments with 

original maturity period of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

1.20 CASH FLOW STATEMENT  

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a 

non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or 
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of 
Company is segregated 

1.21 EXPENDITURE IN RESPECT OF BUILD, OPERATE & TRANSFER PROJECT  

 Expenditure incurred on construction (net of corresponding interest income incurred on deployment or other wise of fund 

attributable to the project) of build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) Project which does not represent Company’s own assets is 
classified as “BOT PROJECT EXPENDITURE” (Lease collection Right) and shown under the head ‘Intangible Assets’. 

1.22 INVESTMENT IN THE NATURE OF EQUITY IN SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES 

 The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries and associates at cost in the 

separate financial statements in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’ 

1.23 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION 

 Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognized as a liability in the Company’s annual accounts in the year 

in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s equity holders. 

1.24 SEGMENT REPORTING  

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 

maker. The chief operating decision maker of the Company is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance 
of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.  

2.1 KEY ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS; ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS : 

 The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgments’, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that 
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 
 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, 
are described below:  

 (A) INCOME TAXES AND DEFERRED TAX ASSETS : 

 The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the purpose of 

paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain 
tax positions. Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. The management assumes 
that taxable profit will be available while recognizing the deferred tax assets.  

 (B)DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION AND USEFUL LIVES OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT / 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS  : 

 Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible Assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful lives, after taking 

into account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets 
annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The 
useful lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into account 
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for future periods is revised if there are significant changes 

from previous estimates. 
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 (C) INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 Internal technical or user team assesses the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. Management believes that assigned 

useful lives are reasonable. 

 (D) IMPAIRMENT OF NON FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 

exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or 
Cash Generating Units (CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or a group of assets. 
Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 

down to its recoverable amount.  
 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair 

value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an 
appropriate valuation model is used. 

 (E) IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. 

The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on 
Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

 (F) CONTIGENCIES 

 Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/

litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy 

 (G) PROVISIONS 

 Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds 

resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition 
and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgment to existing facts and circumstances, which can be 
subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of 
changing facts and circumstances.  

 (H) ALLOWANCES FOR UNCOLLECTED TRADE RECEIVABLE AND ADVANCES 

 Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for 
estimated amounts which are irrecoverable. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not 
collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the 
expected life of the financial assets. The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of 
default and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment 

calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each 
reporting period. 

2.2 RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS:  

 On March 31, 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Amendment Rules, 2023. This notification has resulted into following amendments in the existing Accounting Standards which 
are applicable from April 1, 2023. 

Ind AS 101 – First time adoption of Ind AS – modification relating to recognition of deferred tax asset by a first-time 
adopter associated with (a) right to use assets and related liabilities and (b) decommissioning, restoration and 

similar liabilities and corresponding amounts recognised as cost of the related assets. 
 
Ind AS 102 – Share-based Payment – modification relating to adjustment after vesting date to the fair value of equity 

instruments granted.  

 
Ind AS 103 – Business Combination – modification relating to disclosures to be made in the first financial statements 

following a business combination. 
 

Ind AS 107 – Financial Instruments Disclosures – modification relating to disclosure of material accounting policies 
including information about basis of measurement of financial instruments. 

 
Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments – modification relating to reassessment of embedded derivatives.  
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(INR in Lakhs)           2.   PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

          

 PARTICULARS 
LAND : 

Free hold 
BUILDING  

PLANT & 
MACHINE

RIES 

OFFICE 
EQUIPM

ENT 
FURNITURE 

COMPUTER 
& PRINTERS 

VEHICLE 
COMM. 

VEHICLE 
TOTAL  

At cost or deemed cost                   

As at March 31, 2021 1591.49 638.27 20937.59 39.92 277.97 62.45 488.13 2937.80 26141.27 

Additions # - - 22.66 0.88 4.91 18.30 55.88 - 102.64 

Disposals 1298.45 638.27 8847.22 0.09 3.67 1.94 95.24 487.97 11372.85 

Subsidies received  - - 158.25  -  -  -  -  - 158.25 

As at March 31, 2022 293.04 0.00 11954.78 40.71 279.21 78.81 448.78 2449.83 14712.81 

Additions 2289.47 - 88.25 1.78 1.10 6.96 89.82 4.25 2481.63 

Disposals - - 240.87 - - - 117.96 256.99 615.82 

Subsidies received - - - - - - - - 0 

As at March 31, 2023 2582.51 0 11802.16 42.49 280.31 85.77 420.64 2197.09 16578.61 

Accumulated 

depreciation and 
Impairment 

                  

As at March 31, 2021 - 251.29 9889.27 36.96 187.43 53.70 315.25 1753.61 12487.51 

Depreciation for the year - 12.29 1202.60 2.02 25.31 9.22 38.60 159.17 1449.20 

Eliminated on disposals 
of assets 

 - 264 4515.23 0.09 3.16 1.84 85.53 428.12 5297.55 

As at March 31, 2022 - 0.00 6576.63 38.89 209.58 61.08 268.32 1484.66 8639.16 

Depreciation for the year - - 857.13 1.38 18.45 8.38 49.57 121.62 1056.54 

Eliminated on disposals 
of assets 

 - - 175.31 - - - 105.45 209.40 490.16 

As at March 31, 2023 - - 7258.45 40.27 228.04 69.46 212.44 1396.88 9205.54 

Carrying amount                   

As at March 31, 2022 293.04 0 5378.14 1.82 69.52 17.74 180.46 965.19 6906.01 

As at March 31, 2023 2582.51 0 4543.70 2.21 52.28 16.31 208.20 800.23 8205.43 

 Ind AS 1      - Presentation of Financials Statements – modification relating to disclosure of ‘material accounting 

policy information’ in place of ‘significant accounting policies’. 
Ind AS 8      - Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors – modification of definition of 

‘accounting estimate’ and application of changes in accounting estimates. 
Ind AS 12   – Income Taxes – modification relating to recognition of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets. 

Ind AS 34   – Interim Financial Reporting – modification in interim financial reporting relating to disclosure of 
‘material accounting policy information’ in place of ‘significant accounting policies’.  

 

The Company is evaluating the amendments and the expected impact, if any, on the Company’s financial statements on 
application of the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. 
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(INR in Lakhs) 
 3.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS    

    

 PARTICULARS MINI HYDRO POWER GENERATION PROJECT AT CHAMBAL ON BOT BASIS 

  BUILDING  PLANT & MACHINERIES TOTAL  

At cost or deemed cost       

As at March 31, 2021 136.01 1,407.25 1,543.26 

Additions               -  -              - 

Disposals  -  -  - 

As at March 31, 2022 136.01 1,407.25 1,543.26 

Additions  -  -  - 

Disposals  -  -  - 

As at March 31, 2023 136.01 1,407.25 1,543.26 

Accumulated amortisation and Impairment       

As at March 31,2020 23.49 246.27 269.77 

Amortisation for the year 4.70 49.98 54.68 

Eliminated on disposals of assets -   -  - 

As at March 31, 2022 28.19 296.25 324.44 

Amortisation for the year 4.70 49.98 54.68 

Eliminated on disposals of assets  -  -  - 

As at March 31, 2023 32.89 346.23 379.12 

Carrying amount    

As at March 31, 2021 107.82 1,111.00 1,218.81 

As at March 31, 2023 103.12 1,061.02 1,164.14 

4. Investment in Subsidiaries & Associates    

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY     

 In Subsidiaries Companies—UN QUOTED,  AT COST     

  Nil (Previous year : 14,900) Equity Shares of Madhav Industrial Park Pvt. Ltd. of Rs.10 

Fully Paid up 

0 1.49 

  15,55,100 (Previous year : 15,55,100) Equity Shares of MI  Solar (India)  Pvt. Ltd. of Rs.10  

Fully Paid up 
155.51 155.51 

  9,999 (Previous year: 9,999) Equity Shares of Badi Baktara Toll Pvt. Ltd. of Rs.10 each, 

Fully Paid up 

1.00 1.00 

  Nil (Previous year: 250,000) Equity Shares of RB Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. of Rs.10 each, Fully 

Paid up 

0 594.00 

 Nil (Previous year: 400,000) Equity Shares of Madhav Heights Pvt. Ltd. of Rs.10 each, Fully 

Paid up 

0 40.00 

 Nil (Previous year: 500,000) Equity Shares of Madhav Urja Pvt. Ltd. Of Rs.10 Fully Paid up 0 50.00 

 5100 (Previous year : Nil) Equity share of Seabird Exploration Pvt. Ltd, of Rs. 10/- each 

Fully paid up 

0.51 - 

 95,69,900 (Previous year:49,09,900 ) Equity Shares of Madhav (Aaron Sindh Road) Pvt. Ltd. 

Of Rs.10 Fully Paid up 

956.99 956.99 

  In Associate Companies—UN QUOTED,  AT COST    

  10,000 (Previous year : 10,000) Equity Shares of Mansha Textiles Pvt. Ltd. of Rs.100/-each 

Fully Paid up 

10.00 10.00 

  Less:-Provision for Diminution of Value of Investment (10.00) (10.00) 

 140000(Previous year : 140000)Equity share of Vikrama Architecture & Design Pvt. Ltd. Of   

 Rs. 10 Each Fully paid up 14.00 - 

 128000 (Previous year: Nil) Equity Share of Madhav Power Pvt. Ltd. Of Rs. 10 each Fully   

 Paid up 316.93 0 

INVESTMENT IN PREFERENCE  SHARE    

  In Subsidiaries Companies—UN QUOTED ,  AT COST    

  94,92,000 (Previous year :94,92,000) Redeemable Preference Shares of Madhav (Phoolsagar 

Niwas Shahpura Corridor) Highways Pvt. Ltd. of Rs.10 Fully Paid up 

949.20 949.20 

  82,47,000 (Previous year : 82,47,000,) Redeemable Preference Shares of Madhav (Sehora-

Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt. Ltd. of Rs.10 Fully Paid up 

824.70 824.70 

  In Partnership Firm   

  Aarav Developer 0 1,119.97 

TOTAL 3,218.84 4,692.86 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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5. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS-  INVESTMENT   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY     

  QUOTED ,NON TRADE,AT COST     

  Nil  (Previous year: 100) Equity Shares of MSK Projects (I) Ltd. of Rs.10 Fully Paid up - 0.07 

  
Nil (Previous year : 130,000) Equity Shares of Pressure  Sensitive Systems (I) Ltd. of Rs.10/- 

each  Fully Paid up - 13.00 

 
1,35,93,008 (previous year :Nil ) Equity shares of Pressure Sensitive System(I) Ltd. Of Rs. 1/- 

each fully paid up 845.49  

  
Nil (Previous year: 118) Equity Shares of Reliance Industries Ltd. of Rs.214/-each Fully Paid 

up - 3.11 

  
200,000 (Previous year : 200000) Equity Shares of Punjab Lease Financing Ltd. of Rs.10/- 

each  Fully Paid up 20.00 20.00 

  Less:-Provision for Diminution of Value of Investment (20.00) (33.00) 

 UN QUOTED , TRADE, AT COST    

 In Other Companies    

 
181,000 (Previous year : 181000) Equity Shares of  Gadhidham Developers (P) Ltd. of Rs.10 

Fully Paid up 18.10 18.10 

 
10,000 (Previous year : 10000) Equity Shares of New Millenium Mica Ltd. of Rs.10/-each 

Fully Paid up 1.00 1.00 

 
Nil (Previous year : 3000) Equity Shares  of  Baroda Slim Easy Pvt. ltd. of Rs.10 each, Fully 

Paid up 
0.00 6.00 

 
100  (Previous year : 100) Equity Shares of  Prestige Infrastructure Pvt. ltd. Of Rs.10 each, 

Fully Paid up 
0.01 0.01 

INVESTMENT IN MUTUAL FUND    

 DSRA - Aditya Birla Sun Life Credit Risk Fund 115.23 108.29 

 DSRA - Aditya Birla Sun Life Banking of PSU  Debt Fund  - 

    

 TOTAL 979.82 136.58 

(INR in Lakhs) 

6.  NON-CURRENT OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

  Security Deposits 913.32 1,043.52 

 
Fixed Deposit having maturity more than 12 month 740.49 204.70 

 Deferred Lease Long term 75.36 83.74 

 Others 379.74 448.54 

      
TOTAL 2,108.91 1,780.49 

(INR in Lakhs) 

7. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

     

 Deferred Tax Assets - 584.62 

 
MAT credit entitlement - - 

 Unabsorbed depreciation/ carried forward losses - 584.62 

    

  Deferred Tax liability   

  Depreciation - 353.09 

 
Fair Valuation of Equity Shares - 0.81 

  - 353.91 

    

TOTAL 0.00 230.71 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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8. CURRENT ASSETS -INVENTORIES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

INVENTORIES     

  (As Taken Valued and Certified by The Managing Director)     

  Work-In-Progress  5,956.64 5,786.46 

  Raw materials 1,890.61 4,501.17 

      
TOTAL 7,847.25 10,287.63 

(INR in Lakhs) 
9. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS-TRADE RECEIVABLES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

    

 
Trade Receivables considered Good-Secured - - 

 Trade Receivables considered Good-Unsecured    

  Receivable from Related Parties  2,117.34 3,534.23 

 
Others 12,780.05 5,942.36 

   14,897.39 9,476.60 

 Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 69.82 55.57 

 Trade Receivables credit impaired   

 Total 14,967.21 9,532.16 

 Less : Expected Credit Loss Allowance 69.82 55.57 

     

TOTAL 14,897.39 9,476.60 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 
10. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS -CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

  
Cash on hand 14.37 22.75 

  Balances in current accounts with banks 901.34 223.84 

      
TOTAL 915.72 246.59 

11. OTHER BALANCES WITH BANKS    

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

CASH AND BANK BALANCES     

# Balances in deposits accounts with banks 2,602.22 4,214.35 

       

TOTAL 2,602.22 4,214.35 

# Balances in deposits accounts with banks held as margin money deposits against Guarantee, Letter of Credit or as Debt service reserve account  

(INR in Lakhs) 

12. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS LOANS   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD     

  Loans and advances to employees 36.94 70.59 

    
 TOTAL 36.94 70.59 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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13. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS—OTHERS   

 
 

  

(INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

  Accrued Interest on FDR 11.78 57.04 

 Earnest Money Deposit 38.98 254.00 

 Deffered Lease Short term 8.37 8.37 

 Sundry Deposits 134.40 113.58 

     

TOTAL 193.53 432.99 

    
14. CURRENT TAX  ASSETS (NET)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

  Tax paid - 1,275.46 

  Less: Provision for Tax - (303.83) 

      
TOTAL - 971.63 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 
15. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD     

  Advances to Suppliers & Service providers 219.20 625.30 

  Advances to related parties 250.91 1,954.33 

  Pre-Paid Expenses 403.24 386.31 

  Income Receivable 37.83 53.70 

  Retention Money 3,208.82 2,692.82 

  Balance with Statutory Authorities - 453.65 

      

TOTAL 4,120.00 6,166.11 

16. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
  

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

AUTHORISED CAPITAL     

  38,00,00,000 (Previous Year 30,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each 3,800.00 3,000.00 

  5,20,00,000 (Previous Year 5,20,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs.10/-each 5,200.00 5,200.00 

   9,000.00 8,200.00 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED, AND PAID-UP CAPITAL      

  26,95,81,560 (Previous Year 25,62,28,960) Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- Each fully paid Up 2,695.82 2,562.29 

  Out of the Above :-    

 19,21,71,720  Bonus Equity Shares of Rs.1/- Each fully paid up, issued out of Security 

Premium account 

  

  22,60,200 Equity Shares issued to Share Holders of Aashka Construction Pvt. Ltd. on 

amalgamation during the year 2012-13 

   

  831,750 Equity Shares issued to Share Holders of Elia Construction Pvt.Ltd. on 

amalgamation during the year 2012-13 

   

  129,414 Equity Shares issued to Share Holders of Madhav Infra Projects Pvt. Ltd. on 

amalgamation during the year 2012-13 

   

  174,360 Equity Shares issued to Share Holders of MSK Finance Ltd. on amalgamation 

during the year 2012-13 

   

  Nil (Previous Year 3,79,00,000) 1% non-Cumulative-Convertible Preference Shares of 

Rs.10/- each fully paid up 

- 3,790.00 

TOTAL 2,695.82 6,352.29 

    

(INR in Lakhs) 
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16.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding    

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

Number of shares at the beginning   25,62,28,960 25,62,28,960 

Add:- Increased due to Conversion of Equity Warrants in toi Equity Shares  133,52,600 - 

Number of shares at the end 26,95,81,560 256,228,960 

Preference Share    

Number of shares at the beginning 3,79,00,000 5,12,52,600 

Less:- Treat as Liabilities as per Ind AS 3,79,00,000 1,33,52,600 

Number of shares at the end - 3,79,00,000 

    
16.2 Details of the share holders holding more than 5% shares in company   

NAME OF SHARE HOLDERS 

AS AT                       

31-03-2023         

AS AT                       

31-03-2022 

No. of Shares                  

% of Holding 

No. of Shares                  

% of Holding 

 # Ashok A Khurana 7,61,29,440 7,61,29,440 

    28.24% 29.71% 

  Armaan Amit Trust 8,13,60,000 8,13,60,000 

    30.18%  31.75% 

  Nilmesh Infrabuild LLP - - 

    - - 

  Manju A Khurana 1,31,96,970 1,32,12,000 

    4.90% 5.16% 

16.3 Term/rights of  Share holders    

 The Company has Two kind of Share Capital namely Equity & Preference    

     

 a) Equity    

 The Company has one class of equity share of Rs.1 each, each holder of equity share is entitled to One vote per share. 

     

 b) Preference    

 
The Company has one class of Non-Cumulative, non - voting Preference Share of Rs.10 per share. 

# Refer note no. 57.A 

17. OTHER EQUITY   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

 Security Premium Reserve 409.83 409.83 

 Add: Received on Conversion of  Equity Warrants in to Equity Shares 1,201.73 - 

  1,611.57 409.83 

 Financial Instrument recerve 3,118.93 - 

 Investment in Equity recerve 845.49   

    

 Reserve on Amalgamation 423.13 423.13 

 Less : Amalgamation during the year  (423.13) - 

    

 Surplus in the statement of Profit & Loss    

  As per the Previous year Balance Sheet 5,107.53 4,365.95 

  Add:Net Profit /(Loss) Transfer on Amalgamation (54.70)                    -    

  Add:- Net profit for the year 3,209.41 741.58 

   8,262.24 5,107.53 

      

TOTAL 13,838.22 5,940.49 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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18. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS     

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

  

Non  

Current Current 

Non  

Current Current 

(INR in Lakhs) 

  3,79,00,000 (Previous Year : 3,79,00,000) Non– Cummulative-Preference Shares of 

Rs. 10– Each fully paid up 
756.18 -     

 TERM LOAN     

 SECURED     

         
  Mahindra & Mahindra Fin Ser. Ltd. - 8.98 8.98 141.05 

  Security :- (i)  first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  assets 
(Construction Equipment's) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal Guarantee 

of Directors 

      

          
  Yes Bank Ltd.  - - 0.42 64.41 

  Security :- (i)  first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  assets 
(Construction Equipment's) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal Guarantee 

of Directors 

      

          
  SIDBI 803.00 184.78 1,001.85 156.28 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of Plant, Machinery, 
Equipment, tools, spares ,accessories and all other assets which have been or 
proposed to be acquired under the Project. (ii) Joint & several Personal Guarantee of 
Directors (iii) The loan shall be repayable in 108 monthly instalments, commencing 

from Dec'16 

      

          
  State Bank of India 482.70 90.00 573.66 90.00 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of Gross Margin of 
the Chambal Project (ii) Joint & several Personal Guarantee of Directors (iii) The loan 

shall be repayable in 160 monthly instalments, commencing from Dec'15 

      

  282.42 137.44   

      

  Axis Bank Ltd. 282.42 137.44 134.34 213.12 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 
Guarantee of Directors (iii) The loan shall be repayable in 36 monthly instalments, 

commencing 

      

          
  HDFC Bank Ltd. 64.31 34.04 59.92 121.45 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  

assets (Vehicle ) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal Guarantee of Directors  

      

          
  Shriram City Union Finance Ltd - 0.19 - 0.19 

 Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothication of the company's  

assets (Vehicle ) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal Guarantee of Directors  

    

      
 Shriram Housing Finance Ltd 104.50 106.79 94.33 59.66 

   Security :- (i) Registered Mortgage of the immovable residential property of Director 

for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal Guarantee of Directors  

        

      
  ICICI Bank Ltd. 252.65 489.79 404.92 312.28 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

      

          
  Tata Motor Finance Solutions Ltd. 107.68 70.21 141.35 85.10 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

      

          
  TVS Credit Services Limited 232.25 136.50 72.87 38.71 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothication of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  
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  Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd  - - - 5.38 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

      

          
  HDB Financial Services Ltd. 16.83 130.52 153.29 116.98 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

      

          
  IFCI Ltd. - - 370.90 363.38 

  Security :- (i) Exclusive charge on immovable  properties of M/S. R B Realestate  Pvt. 
Ltd.& Approx.25293 Sq.mtr.NA Land at Chapad, Vadodara (ii) Joint & several     

Personal Guarantee of Promoters 

      

          
  Bajaj Finance Ltd 8.30 30.75 - - 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

      

 Cholamandalam Inv. And Co. Ltd. 182.04 75.77 - - 

 Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

    

      
          
  Aditya Birla Finance Ltd 1,336.73 641.41 2,046.50 663.62 

  (i) Secured by way of Second charge, on book debts, operating cash flows, 
receivables, commissions, revenues, any other current  assets of whatsoever nature 
arising of  the company, , both present and future ; (ii) Collateral of Corporate 
Guarantee of RB Real Estate Private Ltd.in the form of land property to the extent of 

1X of the loan amount.  (iii) Unconditional  & irrevocable personally  guaranteed by 
Shri Ashok Khurana, Shri Amit Khurana & Smt. Neelakshi Khurana (iv) Demand 
Promissory Note for the entire loan amount executed under the common seal of the 
company  Repayment :-  Term Loan shall be payable in 84 structured monthly 

instalments, commencing from May, 2019. Rate of Interest shall be 12.00% floating. 

      

      
 Kotak Mahendra Bank Ltd. (1 Crore) 49.74 46.73   

      

 Working Capital Term Loan:-     

 BOB Working Capital Term Loan - - - 3.30 

 SBI Working Capital Term Loan - - - - 

 UBI Working Capital Term Loan 889.44 38.75 928.19 2.78 

 SBI - WCCT - A/c No - 40279714678 249.63 115.25 374.54 76.83 

 IDBI WCCT A/c No.0375672200001175 149.92 64.25 214.17 42.83 

 Indian Bank Working Capital Term Loan 0.00 0.00 1.62 20.00 

     
UNSECURED     
     
 Inter-Corporate Loan 5878.96  7,405.10              

        

TOTAL 11,847.24 2,402.16 13,986.96 2,577.36 

19. NON CURRENT OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

    

  Security deposit from sub contractor 1,051.54 1,780.57 

     

TOTAL 1,051.54 1,780.57 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

20. OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

     

  Other advances  679.51 1,548.97 

     

TOTAL 679.51 1,548.97 

21. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

  Deferred Tax Liability   

 Deprecialtion 362.52 - 

 Fair Valuation of Equity Shares 85.21 - 

  447.73 - 

    

 Deferred Tax Assets   

 MAT Credit entitlement  440.95  

 Unabsorbed depreciation / carried forward losses 0.00  

  440.95  

    

     

     

TOTAL 
6.78 - 

22. PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

     

  Provision for Gratuity  80.16 0 

     

TOTAL 
80.16 0 

    

23. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2021 

SECURED     

  Working Capital Loans from Banks    

  Bank of Baroda (Dena Bank)  490.72 316.07 

 IDBI Bank Ltd 1,492.30 996.14 

  Indian Bank Ltd 408.71 363.17 

 State Bank of India 1,116.00 1,127.45 

(INR in Lakhs) 



64
MIPL 

  Union Bank of India 483.92 158.23 

  (Secured by (i) First pari-passu charge on the current assets and the unencumbered movable 
fixed assets of the company. (ii) Collaterally secured by (a)  first pari-passu charge in form of 
equitable mortgage of immovable properties /FDs  (iii) Secured by personal Guarantees given 

by Mr. Ashok Khurana, Mr. Amit Khurana & Mrs. Neelakshi Khurana. 

   

    

 Current maturity of Long Term Debts (Refer Note No. 18) 2,402.16 2,577.36 

    
UNSECURED     

  Inter-corporate Loan  - 

      
TOTAL 6,393.81 5,538.42 

24. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES -TRADE PAYABLES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

  Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMED) 64.48             126.42 

  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than  Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises   

  Trade Payables    

  Against Supplies 8,554.93 8,297.56 

  Against expenses 495.66 936.03 

  Against Capital Expenditure 317.08 59.97 

   
9,367.67 9,293.55 

TOTAL 9,432.15 9,419.97 

#  Refer note no. 57.C   

25. CURRENTS OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

  Interest Payable  19.77 34.34 

      

TOTAL 19.77 34.34 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

26. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

  Provision for Tax 845.10 - 

  Less : Tax Paid (562.15) - 

     

TOTAL 
282.95 - 

(INR in Lakhs) 

27. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Statutory Liabilities 308.32 69.89 

  Advances from Customers - 38.61 

  Advances from Related Parties 105.97 515.75 

  Other Advance 51.58 0.10 

 Advances against Sales of Assets 108.25 155.99 

      

TOTAL 574.12 780.35 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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28. PROVISION (CURRENT)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Provision for Gratuity 21.50 - 

  Others 77.07 114.32 

      

TOTAL 98.57 114.32 

(INR in Lakhs) 

29. VALUE OF SALES AND SERVICES   

   (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Civil Contracts 36,477.16 42,134.88 

  Solar Power Generation Income 311.07 988.80 

  Operation & Maintenance Income 240.84 251.15 

 Machinery Rent Income 1.21 - 

      

TOTAL 37,030.29 43,374.84 

30. OTHER INCOME   

   (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Interest on Fixed Deposits 177.34 187.69 

 Interest on Sardar Sarovar Bond 2.03 4.77 

  Interest on Income Tax Refund 54.01 - 

  Insurance Claim received 35.92 6.14 

 Misc. Income 6.47 - 

 Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 2,542.86 29.15 

 Profit on Sale of Investment 39.88 9.26 

 Other Financial Assets measured at Authorised Cost 6.21 5.54 

 Foreign Exchange Gain - (0.11) 

 Investment carried at fair value through profit or loss 6.63 5.05 

    

TOTAL 2,871.35 247.49 

31. COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED   

   (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

  Stock at Commencement 4,501.17 2,530.08 

  Add :- Purchases 16,353.34 20,624.26 

  Total 20,854.50 23,154.34 

  Less:- Stock at Close 1,890.61 4,501.17 

      

TOTAL 18,963.89 18,653.17 

    

32. CHANGE IN  CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS   

   (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Opening  Stock  of work in progress 5,786.46 4,219.41 

  Less :- Closing stock of Work in progress 5,956.64 5,786.46 

      

TOTAL (170.17) (1,567.06) 
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33. CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES   

   (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Borewall construction 3.93 8.15 

  Civil Works 1,058.73 904.62 

  Electrical Expenses 48.41 55.04 

  Erection Works 92.56 84.48 

  
Mahinery Hire Charges 96.37 201.99 

  Repairs & Maintenance 631.54 1,004.82 

  Road Work Expense 4,245.66 11,721.95 

  
Steel Structure Work 12.15 10.17 

  
 Miscellaneous Site Exp. 522.31 156.62 

      

TOTAL 6,711.66 14,147.83 

34. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES   

   (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Salary and Wages 890.44 1,393.78 

  Contribution to Provident and other funds 30.93 29.03 

  Staff Welfare  Expense 227.64 272.22 

      

TOTAL 1,149.02 1,695.03 
 

   

35. FINANCE COST  (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Interest Expenses    

  Interest on Term Loan 901.94 1,304.96 

  Interest on Working Capital Loan 407.82 387.44 

  Interest -Others 114.26 394.37 

  
Borrowing cost Adjustment of Preferencial Shares(Ind AS) 85.11  

  Other Borrowing cost   

  Commission on BG & LC 540.98 480.20 

  Bank and Other Financial Charges 162.49 132.90 

    

TOTAL 2,212.61 2,699.87 

36. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE   

   (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

  Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment  1,056.54 1,449.20 

  Amortisation of Intangible assets  54.68 54.68 

       

TOTAL 1,111.22 1,503.88 
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37. OTHER EXPENSES   

   (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Insurance 109.12 103.02 

  Legal Expenses 63.22 19.29 

  Office Expenses 2.16 3.75 

  Office Rent 17.37 17.37 

  Professional &  Consultancy 223.99 158.90 

  Rate & Taxes 131.43 129.84 

  Telephone & Internet Charges 11.15 10.78 

  Travelling Expenses 60.18 30.77 

  Vehicle Expenses 14.79 99.16 

 Directors Sitting Fees 1.80 1.80 

 Provision for doubtful debtors 14.26 10.19 

 Discarded value of fixed assets 4.98 - 

 Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note 50) - 7.00 

 Miscellaneous Exp. 257.85 157.04 

 Payment to Auditors   

 Audit Fees 4.00 6.25 

 Tax Audit fees 3.00 0.75 

 Certification matters - 2.18 

    

TOTAL 919.30 758.09 

38. THE  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OTHER COMMITMENT ( TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR) 

     (INR in Lakhs) 

  
PARTICULARS 

YEAR ENDED   

31-03-2023 

YEAR ENDED   

31-03-2022 

  Guarantee issued by the Bank on behalf of the Company 17,282.66 19,432.81 

  Corporate guarantee (Given by Company to a bank in respect of loan taken by associate  

Companies 
5,857.81 12,474.41 

  Income Tax Demand (MSK Projects (India) (JV) Ltd.) - 203.97 

 Service Tax Demand 21.48  

 Tax Demand From VAT Dept. Maharastra 44.80  

 Tax Demand From VAT Dept. Madhyapradesh 32.09  

39. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS                                                       (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 

AS AT 31-03-2023 

Fair Value 

through P&L 

Fair Value 

through OCI 
Amortised Cost 

Financial Assets        

     Investments :-       

           In Equity Instruments (Quoted) 845.49                        -                          -    

           In Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 19.11                        -                             -    

           In Mutual Fund (Quoted) 115.23                        -    - 

     Trade receivables                        -                           -    14,897.39 

     Cash and cash equivalents                        -                           -    915.72 

     Other Balances with Banks                        -                           -    2,602.22 

     Loans and advances to employees                        -                           -    36.94 

     Others                        -                           -    2,302.44 

Total Financial Assets 979.82                        -    20,754.71 

Financial liabilities       

     Borrowings                        -                           -    18,241.05 

     Trade payables                        -                           -    9,432.15 

     Others                        -                           -    19.77 

    

Total Financial Liabilities                        -                           -    27,692.96 
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36. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY  

   

 This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)  
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial 

statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, it has classified its        
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows 

underneath the table. 

PARTICULARS 
AS AT 31-03-2023 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring 

basis at the end of each reporting period 
      

Financial Assets        

     Investments :-       

           In Equity Instruments (Quoted) 845.49                     -                         -    

           In Equity Instruments (Unquoted)                         -                     -    19.11 

           In Mutual Fund  115.23 - - 

     

PARTICULARS 
AS AT 31-03-2022 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring 

basis at the end of each reporting period 
      

Financial Assets        

     Investments :-       

           In Equity Instruments (Quoted) 3.18                     -                         -    

           In Equity Instruments (Unquoted)                         -                     -    25.11 

           In Mutual Fund 108.29 - - 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments 
that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing 
price as at the reporting period. 
 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This 
is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3. 
 
The investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy have been valued using the cost approach to arrive at their fair value. 

The cost of unquoted investments approximates the fair value because there is wide range of possible fair value measurements 
and the costs represents estimate of fair value within that range. 
 
The Management considers that the carrying amount of financials assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 

approximates their fair values. 

    

   (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 

AS AT 31-03-2022 

Fair Value 

through P&L 

Fair Value 

through OCI 
Amortised Cost 

Financial Assets        

     Investments :-       

           In Equity Instruments (Quoted) 3.18                        -                          -    

           In Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 25.11                        -                             -    

           In Mutual Fund (Quoted) 108.29                        -    - 

     Trade receivables                        -                           -    9,476.60 

     Cash and cash equivalents                        -                           -    246.59 

     Other Balances with Banks                        -                           -    4,214.35 

     Loans                        -                           -    70.59 

     Others                        -                           -    2,213.48 

Total Financial Assets 136.58                        -    16,221.61 

         

Financial liabilities       

     Borrowings                        -                           -    19,525.38 

     Trade payables                        -                           -    9,419.97 

     Others                        -                           -    34.34 

    

Total Financial Liabilities                        -                           -    28,979.70 
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT    
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 

Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the 
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment 
and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s 
activities. 

 
A) Credit Risk  
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt         

securities. The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure: 
 
a)  Trade and Receivables 
The Company has used Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For the purpose, the Company uses 

a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss amount. The provision matrix takes into account 

PARTICULARS 
AS AT  

31-03-2023 

AS AT  

31-03-2022 

Balance at the beginning of the year 55.57 45.38 

Provision made during the year  14.26 10.19 

Provision reversed during the year  - - 

Balance at the end of the year  69.83 55.57 

   

(INR in Lakhs) 

Liquidity risk    

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure 
as far as possible that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed 
condition, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company’s objective is to 

maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of surplus funds, bank overdrafts, bank loans, 
debentures and inter-corporate loans. 
 
The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has 

access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding. 
 
The company has un-utilised working capital lines from bank of Rs. 7760.50 lakh as on March 31, 2023, Rs. 6351.59 lakh as on 
March 31, 2022. 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities :   

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-3 years 
More than 3 

years 

As at  

 31-03-2023 

Borrowings 6,393.81 6,395.14 5,452.09 18,241.05 

Trade payables 9,432.15 - - 9,432.15 

Other financial liabilities 19.77 - - 19.77 

Total 15,845.73 6,395.14 5,452.09 27,692.96 

          

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-3 years 
More than 3 

years 
As at  

31-03-2022 

Borrowings 5,538.42 3,568.80 10,418.16 19,525.38 

Trade payables 9,419.97 - - 9,419.97 

Other financial liabilities 34.34 - - 34.34 

Total 14,992.73 3,568.80 10,418.16 28,979.69 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Market risk     

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market 
rates and prices (such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices) or in the price of market risk-
sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-
sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short term and long-term debt. The Company 

is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. 
 
Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of 

changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Interest rate risk is the 
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with     
floating interest rates.  

42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to: 

> Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits 
for other stakeholders, and 
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> Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
 
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face 
of the financial statements. The Company’s objective for capital management is to maintain an optimum overall financial structure. 

 
Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:  

PARTICULARS 
AS AT  

31-03-2023 

AS AT  

31-03-2022 

Gross Debt (includes non current, current borrowings and current maturities of long term debt) 18,241.05 19,525.38 

Less: -   

Cash and Cash Equivalent  915.72 246.59 

Other Bank Balance 2,602.22 4,214.35 

Net debt  (A) 14,723.11 15,064.45 

Total Equity (B) 16,534.04 13,628.04 

Net debt to equity ratio 0.89 1.11 

(INR in Lakhs) 

43. The Company is a partner in M/s. Aarav Developer, the details of the partners, their share in profit / loss and total capital of the 

partners of the firm as on 31-03-2023 are as under. 

(a)      

  Sr. No. Name of Partners Share (%) 

 i Subhash Mewaldas Khurana 23.50 

 ii Hemal Hareshkumar Shah 24.00 

 iii Manju Ashok Khurana 10.00 

 iv M/s. Madhav Infra Projects Ltd. 37.50 

 v Rakesh Hasmukhbhai Vakal 5.00 

(b) The  total Capital of the Partners is  Rs.24.05/- Lakhs. 

(c) The above details about investment and names of partners are based on the information, certified by a partners of Firm. 

  

44. LEASE 

    

(a) The company has taken on operating lease certain assets. The total lease rent paid on the same amounting to Rs.9.00 Lakhs 
(Previous year Rs.9.00 Lakhs) is included under the head Rent. The minimum future lease rentals payable in respect thereof are as 

follows: 

     (INR in Lakhs) 

  
Particulars 

Amount  Amount 

  2021-23 2020-22 

  Not later than one year 9.00 9.00 

  Later than one year but not later than five years 36.00 36.00 

  Later than Five years 48.75 66.75 

      

(b) The Company has obtained the  Lease contract of Chambal Hydel Project (3 x 600 kW) in Morena district of Madhya Pradesh, on 

"as is where is basis" for its operation and maintenance from Madhya Pradesh Madhya Kshetra Vidyut Vitaran Company Ltd. 

 In terms of the contract the ownership of the said property vests in the government immediately. Under the contract the company 
is entitled to Fixed amount of Lease, every  month  from commercial operation date i.e 13-03-2015, till the end of Lease period 

i.e.March'2045.  

 The Company has completed construction of said project during the earlier year. Having regard to the accounting policy followed by 
the company the entire expenditure incurred till the commencement of commercial operation is treated as BOT project expenditure. 

and proportionate amount of Rs.54.68 lakhs is amortised during the year. 

      

45. In respect of construction contract, the Company follows the percentage completion method for recognising profit/loss  but no     
provision is made for contingencies  in respect of contract in progress, consistent with the practice of the Company. Ind AS 115   
Construction Contracts  require that  an appropriate allowance be made for future unforeseeable factors. In the opinion of the   
Company, such a provision is not required and has no financial effect.  
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46. Assignment of Debts 
(a) The Company has entered into an arrangement vide Agreement dated 28th March 2023 executed by the Company as (“ The  
       Assignor”) with Associate Company Madhav (Sehora Silodi corridor) Highways Private Limited, (“The Assignee”)  having CIN    
       U45203GJ2012PTC072233. The  Company has assigned it’s outstanding Business Debt of Rs.9,98,81,294/- (Rupees Nine  

       Crores Ninety-Eight Lacs Eighty-One Thousand Two Hundred Ninety-Four Only) , whose details are as given in Table herein  
       under , to the Assignee Company, against the consideration of discharge of liability of Company against equivalent amount of  
       Outstanding Unsecured Intercorporate loan from the Assignee.  
 

(b) The Company has entered into an arrangement vide Agreement dated 28th March 2023 executed by the Company as  (“ The  
     Assignor”) with Associate Company Madhav (Phoolsagar Niwas Shahpura Corridor) Highways Private Limited, (“The Assignee”)  
     having CIN U45203GJ2013PTC073810. The Company has assigned the Business Debt of Rs.10,36,78,784/- (Rupees Ten Crores  
     Thirty Six Lakhs Seventy Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Eighty Four Only), whose details are as given in Table herein under ,  

     to the Assignee Company, against the consideration of discharge of liability of equivalent amount of Outstanding Unsecured  
     Intercorporate loan from the Assignee , lent to the company for an equal amount.   
      
      The said Debtors were outstanding for last more than a year and had arisen from normal business operations of the company.  

     The Inter-corporate Debt against whose repayment/discharge,  the assignment of said Outstanding Debtors of the company to   
      Assignee has taken place had been received by the company in the Financial year 2019-20  
      
     The transfer of Company’s Debt in discharge of and repayment of Outstanding Inter-corporate Unsecured loan has been done at    

     book values of the Debt and Outstanding intercorporate loan and no discount has been passed on against the transfer of Debt to  
     the Assignee and no premium has been charged from the Assignee against the transfer/ assignment of Debt.  

TABLE-1                                                                         (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Sr No. Name of the Debtors More than 6 Months Amount  Debt Assign to 

1 Eagle Infra India Limited - Madhav Infra 

Projects Ltd 

540.00 Madhav (Phoolsagar Niwas Shahpura Corridor) 

Highways Pvt. Ltd. 

2 Madhav Infra - Chetak Enterprises JV 28.51 Madhav (Phoolsagar Niwas Shahpura Corridor) 

Highways Pvt. Ltd. 

3 MIPL MS Khurana Engineering JV 468.28 Madhav (Phoolsagar Niwas Shahpura Corridor) 

Highways Pvt. Ltd. 

 Total (A) 1,036.79  

4 Madhav Infra Projects Ltd - Eagle Infra India 

Ltd JV 

894.22 Madhav (Sehora Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt. 

Ltd. 

5 MPRDC - Package I 98.90 Madhav (Sehora Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt. 

Ltd. 

6 Madhav Infra - Chetak Enterprises JV 5.70 Madhav (Sehora Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt. 

Ltd. 

 Total (B) 998.81  

 Total (A) + (B) 2,035.60  
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47. In respect of MSK Projects India (JV) Ltd. Amalgamated with the company, The Company has not accounted following claims: 

a The company has made earlier claim of approx. Rs.990.52 Lakhs, in which the Supreme Court has awarded Rs.26.34 Lakhs and 
balance matter was again referred back to Arbitral Tribunal for reconsideration. The Arbitral Tribunal has again awarded 
Rs.1055.34 Lakhs (Net of counter claim of Rs.354.75 Lakhs for incomplete work) for the job of Construction of Bharatpur Bypass 
on BOT Basis. The award has been upheld by District Court and also by High Court. The matter has been referred again to the  

Supreme Court by Government of Rajasthan. The decision is yet awaited. The awarded amount of Rs.26.34 Lakhs by Supreme 
Court has been refused by Government of Rajasthan. The matter of Rs.26.34 Lakhs is pending before the District Court.   

      

b The company has not accounted Claim of Rs.292.97 Lakhs being amount receivable from the Government of Rajasthan as per the 
Order of Honourable District Court in respect of loss suffered in Toll Collection in connection with construction of Road from     
Widening, Strengthening and Improvement of Nasirabad Kekri Road (SH 26) Km. 1 to 25 on B.O.T. Basis as the same is disputed by 
the Government of Rajasthan and same has been referred to the High Court for decision.  

      

c The company has not accounted Claim of Rs.749.30 Lakhs being amount receivable from the Government of Rajasthan as per the 
Order of Honourable District Court in respect of loss suffered in Toll Collection in connection with construction of Road from     
Construction of Sikar Byepass on “Built, Operate and Transfer (BOT)” Basis as the same is disputed by the Government of         
Rajasthan and same has been referred to the High Court for decision. 

48. SEGMENT REPORTING 

 The company is engaged in development , construction as well as operation & maintenance of Infrastructure Projects. The Company 
undertakes infrastructure developments projects directly or indirectly through Special Purpose Vehicle (SPVs), in terms of the    
concessional agreements. The company also engaged in the business of Power Generation Business i.e. solar & Hydro. In this   
business, the revenue was less than 10% of the main segment. Hence the activity of the Company relates to One segment. 

  

49. Confirmations of certain parties for amounts due from them as per accounts of the company are not obtained. Amount due from 
customers include amounts due/with held on account of various claims. The claims will be verified and necessary adjustments, if 
any, shall be made in the year of settlement. Subject to this, company is confident of recovering the dues and accordingly they have 
been classified as “debt considered good” and therefore no provision is consider necessary, there against. 

     

50. DISCLOSURE RELATED TO MICRO, SMALL & MEDIUM ENTERPRISES: 

 
On the basis of confirmation obtained from the supplier who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and       
Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (MSMED Act,2006) and based on the information available with the company 
the following are the details. 

51. The Equity Warrants Holders had applied for Equity shares during the year and allotted the 1,33, 52,600 equity shares of face value 
of Rs.1 each with premium of Rs.9 per Equity Share. 

PARTICULARS 
AS AT  

March 31, 2023 
AS AT  

March 31, 2022 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any       
supplier at the end of each accounting year 

64.48 126.42 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the 
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each           
accounting year 

 -  - 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises        
Development Act, 2006 

 -  - 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year; and  

 -  - 

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 
23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

 -  - 

(INR in Lakhs) 

52. EARNING PER SHARE     

      

  
PARTICULARS 

AS AT  
31-03-2023 

AS AT  
31-03-2022   

  a. Net Profit after Tax available for equity shareholders (Rs.in Lakhs) 3,209.41 741.58 

  b. Average No. of Equity Shares of Rs.1/-each outstanding during the year (No. in Lakhs) 2,678.26 2,562.29 

  c. Basic/ Diluted Earning Per Share (Rs. a/b)     1.20 0.29 
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(INR in Lakhs) 

53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS    

    

Disclosures as required by Ind AS -24 are given below:  

NAME OF RELATED PARTIES AND RELATIONS   

(A) SUBSIDIARY COMPANY     

Badi Bakatara Toll Pvt. Ltd.   

MI Solar India Pvt. Ltd.   

Madhav (Aaron Sindh Road) Pvt. Ltd.   

Seabird Explorariton Pvt. Ltd.   

(B) ASSOCIATES CONCERN     

Madhav (Phoolsagar Shahpura Niwas Corridor) Pvt. Ltd.   

Madhav (Sehora Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt. Ltd.   

Madhav Solar (Vadodara Rooftop) Pvt. Ltd.   

Mansha Textiles Pvt. Ltd.   

Madhav Power Pvt. Ltd.   

Madhav Vasistha Hydro Power Pvt. Ltd.   

Waa Solar Ltd.   

Madhav Infracon (Astha Kannod Corridor) Pvt. Ltd.   

Madhav Infracon (Bhopal Vidisha Corridor) Pvt. Ltd.   

Madhav Infracon (Vidisha Kurwai Corridor) Pvt. Ltd.   

MSK Infrastructure Private Limited   

Aspire Infracon Pvt. Ltd.   

Infinity Infrabuild Ltd.   

(C) JOINT VENTURE     

Madhav Infra Projects Ltd.-M S Khurana Engg. Ltd. - JV    

Eagle Infra India Ltd Madhav Infra Projects Ltd– JV   

Madhav Infra Projects Ltd-Eagle Infra India Ltd -JV   

(D) DIRECTORS / KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL & RELATEVES OF  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

Name of Related parties Nature of Relationship 

Ashok Khurana Chairman 

Ashok Khurana– HUF Chairman is Karta of HUF 

Amit Khurana Managing Director 

Neelakshi Khurana Wife of Managing Director 

Manju Khurana Wife of Chairman 

Rashika Chauhan Daughter of Chairman 

Pooja Shah Independent Director 

Jaini Jain Independent Director 

Heena Parikh Independent Director 

Gopal Shah Company Secretary 

Dharmesh Chauhan Company Secretary 

Tanmay Kabra Chief Financial Officer 

Rajendrasinh Rana Chief Financial Officer 

 Transaction during the year  
 Subsidiary 
Company  

 Subsidiary 
Company 
(Previous 

Year)  

 Associate 
Concern  

 Associate 
Concern 
(Previous 

Year)  

 Joint 
Venture  

 Joint 
Venture 
(Previous 

Year)  

 Key 
Management 
Personnel /
Relative of 

Key 
Managerial 
Personnel  

 Key 
Management 
Personnel / 

Relative of Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

(Previous Year)  

Loan Received  361.02 57.81 2,995.59 4,154.23 - - - 72.13 

Repayment of Loan  361.02 57.81 6,129.46 2,490.70 - - - 72.13 

Reimbursement of expenses  - - - - - - - - 

Loan Given  424.57 1,057.94 5,401.19 1,909.73 - - - - 

Loan received back  427.22 1,046.79 8,041.67 2,156.75 - - - - 

Advance  received against                  
contract  

- - - - - - - - 

Advance adjusted against Bill  570.00 855.00 281.57 - - - - - 

EPC Contract/ Sales (Income) ##  3,771.66 6,997.42 534.59 1,008.83 2,135.02 558.11 - - 

Purchase of  goods & services #  476.73 9.01 551.99 195.35 - - - - 

Redemption of Preference Shares - - - 621.26    714 
Advance repaid against Sales of 
Investment  

- - - - - - - - 

Shares Allotted  - 466.00 - - - - - - 

Sales of shares/investment  - - - - - - - - 

Interest Paid  - - - - - - - - 

Purchase of shares/investment  - - - - - - - - 

Remuneration paid /Provided  - - - - - - 42.07 36.94 
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Directors Sitting fees paid/
provided  

 -  - - - - -            1.80  1.80 

Office Rent                 -                   -               -               -         -         -               9.00             9.00  

Rent                 -                   -              -              -            -            -                  -                  -    

Payable  145.11 570.00 3,604.12 6,021.22         -            -                  -                  -    

Receivable  1,461.26 1,652.95 120.01 1,652.63 824.67 3,139.03               -                  -    

#    Material/Goods purchase from the following Subsidiary 
      MI Solar (I) Pvt. Ltd Rs. 385.57 Lakhs. 

      Badi Bakatara Toll Pvt.Ltd.Rs.91.17 Lakhs.           
#    Material/Goods purchase from the following Associates concern 

      Madhav Solar (Vadodara Rooftop) Private Limited Rs.375.55 Lacs 
       Waa Solar Ltd. Rs. 176.44 Lacs 

##  Services sold to the following Subsidiaries 

       Madhav (Aaron Sindh Road) Pvt.Ltd. Rs. 3771.67 Lacs 

##  Services sold to the following Associates concern 

       Madhav (Phoolsagar Shahpura Niwas Corridor) Pvt. Ltd. Rs.334.39 Lacs 
      Madhav (Sehora Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt.Ltd. Rs.200.21 Lakhs. 

##  Services sold to the following Joint Venture 

       Madhav Infra Projects Ltd.-M S Khurana Engg. Ltd.JV  Rs. 2096.43 Lacs 

      MS Khurana Engg Ltd Madhav Infra Projects Ltd-JV Rs. 38.59 Lakhs. 

54. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)  

    

 
PARTICULARS 

AS AT  

March 31, 2023 

AS AT  

March 31, 2022 

 1. Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year Nil Nil 

 2. Amount of expenditure incurred Nil                   7.00  

 3. Shortfall at the end of the year -                        -    

 4. Total of previous years shortfall -                       -    

 5. Reason for shortfall N.A. N.A. 

 
6. Nature of CSR activities N.A. 

Spending towards 
E d u c a t i o n  &    
Medical facilities 

 

7. Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by 

the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant AS 
N.A. 

Amount donated to 
Rama Memorial 
Foundation, a 
registered public 

trust, which was 
providing free   
education to the 
poor and needy 

children. 

 

8. Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a 

contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year should be 
shown separately. 

N.A. N.A. 

(INR in Lakhs) 

 The Board of Directors of the Company had at their meeting held on 13th August, 2022 inter alia approved the Scheme 
of Arrangement in nature of Amalgamation of  RB Real Estate Private Limited, Madhav Urja Private Limited, Madhav 
Heights Private Limited    (‘the Transferor Company’) with Madhav Infra Projects Limited (‘the Transferee Company’) and 

their respective shareholders (‘the Scheme’) with effect from the appointed date i.e. 1st April, 2021 has been sanctioned 
by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (‘NCLT’) vide its order dated 6th July, 2023.  The 
Scheme has become effective upon filing of the certified copy of order of the NCLT, sanctioning the Scheme with 
Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at Ahmedabad by way of filing required e-forms with Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ 
portal within One month. Basis the Order of NCLT approving the Scheme, these standalone financial result for the year 
ended March 31, 2023 are prepared and presented after giving effect to the Scheme. The Adjustments  on account of 
Scheme of arrangement  are as below: 

55. 
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56. Borrowings secured against current assets :  

 

The Company has borrowings from banks secured against Current Assets and quarterly returns filed for the same with the 

banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company. 

57. Other Disclosures    

     

A Shareholding of Promoters    

Promoter Name 

AS AT 31.03.2023 AS AT 31.03.2022 

No of shares 
% of total 

shares 

% change 
during the 

year 

No of shares 
% of total 

shares 

% change 
during the 

year 

Ashok Madhavdas Khurana 7,61,29,440 28.24 -       76,129,440     29.71                 

-    

Amit Ashok Khurana 47,91,240 1.78 -         4,791,240       1.87              -    

Khurana Neelakshi Amit 80,43,120 2.98 -         8,043,120     3.14             -    

Manju Ashok Khurana 1,31,96,970 4.90 (0.05)       13,212,000     5.16              -    

Bindiya Ashok Khurana 80,000 0.03 -             80,000    0.03             -    

Rasika Vikramsinh Chauhan 80,000 0.03 -              80,000   0.03              -    

Ashok Khurana- HUF 23,35,206 0.87 -         2,335,206        0.91        (0.05) 

Armaan Amit Trust [in the 

name of Trustee Shri Ashok M. 
Khurana] 

8,13,60,000 30.18 -       81,360,000           31.75             -    

Particular Rs. In Lakhs 

Assets:  

Cash 0.04 

Bank Balances 103.09 

Property, Plant and Equipments 484.18 

Investments 14.00 

Total Assets (A) 601.31 

Liabilities:  

Financial Liabilities Borrowings 168.06 

Provision 0.14 

Other Liabilities 226.93 

Total Liabilities (B) 395.13 

Net Assets (A-B) 206.17 

Adjustment from :  

Investment in Madhav Height Pvt.Ltd 40.00 

Investment Madhav Urja Pvt.Ltd 50.00 

Investment R B Real Estate  Pvt.Ltd 594.00 

Reserve on amalgamation -423.13 

Retain Earning -54.70 

 206.17 

Note: The Change in % of promoters share holding due to increase of total Equity share capital on allotment Equity shares 
to Equity warrant Holders. 
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B Trade Receivable ageing as on 31.03.2023 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 6 
Months 

6 Months - 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Years 
Total 

Undisputed Trade Receivable 

- Considered Good   
11,994.87 1,575.87 1,047.04 100.47 248.96 14,967.21 

Undisputed Trade Receivable 

- which have significant 
increase in credit risk 

             -              -                 -              -                 -                 -    

Undisputed Trade Receivable 

- credit impaired 
              -                 -               -               -                  -                   -    

Disputed Trade Receivable - 

Considered Good   
                 -                  -                 -                  -                     -                     -    

Disputed Trade Receivable - 

which have signif icant 
increase in credit risk 

                 -                      -                 -                  -                   -                    -    

Disputed Trade Receivable - 

credit impaired 
                   -                     -                  -                   -                   -                       -    

Total 11,994.87 1,575.87 1,047.04 100.47 248.96 14,967.21 

 Trade Receivable ageing as on 31.03.2022 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 6 
Months 

6 Months - 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Years 
Total 

Undisputed Trade Receivable 

- Considered Good   
5,103.59 724.19 1,541.27 1,694.21 468.90 9,532.16 

Undisputed Trade Receivable 

- which have significant 
increase in credit risk 

             -              -                 -              -                 -                 -    

Undisputed Trade Receivable 

- credit impaired 
              -                 -               -               -                  -                   -    

Disputed Trade Receivable - 

Considered Good   
                 -                  -                 -                  -                     -                     -    

Disputed Trade Receivable - 

which have signif icant 
increase in credit risk 

                 -                      -                 -                  -                   -                    -    

Disputed Trade Receivable - 

credit impaired 
                   -                     -                  -                   -                   -                       -    

Total 5,103.59 724.19 1,541.27 1,694.21 468.90 9,532.16 

C Trade Payable ageing as on 31.03.2023 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Years 
Total 

MSME 64.48 - - - 64.48 

Others 9,295.28 61.51 2.68 8.20 9,367.67 

Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - 

Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - 

Total 9,359.76 61.51 2.68 8.20 9,432.15 

 Trade Payable ageing as on 31.03.2022 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Years 
Total 

MSME 126.42 - - - 126.42 

Others 9,138.51 156.68 60.30 52.38 9,407.87 

Disputed Dues - MSME              -                        -                  -                        -                        -    

Disputed Dues - Others             -                        -                  -                        -                        -    

Total 9,264.93 156.68 60.30 52.38 9,534.29 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 



77
MIPL 

E Disclosure relating to Ratios 

Name of Ratio Formula F.Y. 2022-23 F.Y. 2021-22 
 % Change 

in ratios  

 Reason for 

Variances  

            

Current Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Current Assets 30,613.04 1.82      31,866.48     2.01  -9.16 % Due to 
decrease of 

Current 
Assets 

Current Liabilities 16,801.35 15,887.40 

          

Debt Equity Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Short term Debt + Long 
term Debt 

18,241.05 1.10      19,525.38  1.43  -23.00 % Due to sale 
of the land, 
short term 

debt 

reduced 

Share holder's equity 16,534.04   13,628.04  

           

Debt Service Coverage Ratio            
(No. of Times) 

Earnings available for 
debt service 

6,533.24 1.87        4,945.33  0.61  203.90 % Due to sale 
of the land, 
short term 

debt 

reduced 
  

Debt Service 3,496.94        8,044.26  

           

Return on Equity NPAT 3,209.41 0.19           741.58   0.05  256.71 % Profit after 
Tax has 

Increases 
Net worth 16,534.04      13,628.04  

Inventory Turnover Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Net Sales 32,195.10 3.55      38,668.45   4.54  -21.78 % Due to 
lower 

Turnover 
Average Inventory 9,067.44 8,518.56 

Trade Receivable turnover Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Net Sales 32,195.10 2.64      38,668.45    4.11  -35.80 % Raised the 
invoice of 

107.14 Cr 
Average Trade receivable 12,186.99        9,397.63  

Trade payable turnover Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Net Credit Purchase 16,353.34 1.92      20,624.26  3.60  -46.65 % Due to the 
Solar 

Project LC 
payable 

Increased 

Average Trade Payable 8,521.69        5,733.54  

          

Net Capital Turnover Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Net Sales 32,195.10 2.33     38,668.45    2.42  -3.68 % Profit after 
tax increas 

Working Capital 13,811.69      15,979.08  

Net Profit Ratio  NPAT 3,209.41 0.10           741.58     0.02  419.80 % Profit after 
tax increase 

Net Sales  32,195.10      38,668.45  

           

Return on Capital Employed Earning before interest 
and taxes 

6,381.54 0.39        3,725.00  0.27  41.21 % Profit after 
tax increase 

Capital Employed                                 16,534.04      13,628.04  

Return on Investment NPAT 3,209.41 0.07           741.58      
0.02  

331.23 %  -  

Total Asset 47,000.63      46,831.94  

(INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Years 
Total 

Projects in Progress 710.44 - - - 740.44 

Projects temporarily Suspended - - - - - 

Total 710.44 - - - 710.44 

D Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) as on 31.03.2023 (INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Years 
Total 

Projects in Progress - - - - - 

Projects temporarily Suspended - - - - - 

Total - - - - - 

 Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) as on 31.03.2022 (INR in Lakhs) 
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59. The Liabilities for Gratuity & leave encashment is neither ascertained nor provided by the Company. 

60. The previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to make it comparable with the current 

year. 

viii) The Company holds all the title deeds of immovable property in its name. 

ix) There is no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the      

Companies Act, 2013. 

x) The company is not  declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 

 

As per our Report of even date  

FOR BIPIN & CO.       FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD  

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS      

FIRM REGISTRATION NO.101509W      

     

   MANAGING DIRECTOR  CHAIRMAN 

(AMIT D SHAH - PARTNER)  AMIT A. KHURANA ASHOK M. KHURANA 

MEMBERSHIP NO.126337  [DIN: 00003626] [DIN:00003617] 

   

  

    COMPANY SECRETARY  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

Place: Vadodara  DHARMESH CHAUHAN  RAJENDRASINH RANA 

Date: 13/06/2023    

58. Other statutory information 

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the       

Company for holding any Benami property. 

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory    

period. 

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year. 

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign    
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 

with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

vii) The Company do not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts and that has been    
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, 

search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). 
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To 

The Board of Directors of 
Madhav Infra Projects Ltd. 
 

1. Opinion 

 We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Madhav Infra Projects Ltd  (hereinafter referred to as 
”the Holding Company”), and its Subsidiaries  (together referred to as “the Group”), and its Associates and Joint Ventures 
comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 

Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated 
Financial Statements”). 

  

 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at 31st March, 2023, the consolidated profit and 
consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on 
that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 

2. Emphasis of Matter  

We refer to note 55 of consolidated accompanying result, detailing the Scheme of Arrangement and it’s effect in these standalone 
accompanying result. The Board of Directors of the Company had at their meeting held on 13th August, 2022 inter alia approved 
the Scheme of Arrangement in nature of Amalgamation of  RB Real Estate Private Limited, Madhav Urja Private Limited, Madhav 
Heights Private Limited    (‘the Transferor Company’) with Madhav Infra Projects Limited (‘the Transferee Company’) and their 

respective shareholders (‘the Scheme’) with effect from the appointed date i.e. 1st April, 2021 has been sanctioned by the Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (‘NCLT’) vide its order dated 6th July, 2023.  The Scheme has become 
effective upon filing of the certified copy of order of the NCLT, sanctioning the Scheme with Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at 
Ahmedabad by way of filing required e-forms with Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ portal within one month. Basis the Order of NCLT 

approving the Scheme, these standalone financial result for the year ended March 31, 2023 are prepared and presented after 
giving effect to the Scheme. 
 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter. 
 

3. Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 

financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. 
 

4. Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, 
Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated 

financial statements, consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In 
connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard. 
 

5.  Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in terms 
of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the 

Consolidated Financial Position, Consolidated Financial Performance, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement of the Group including 
its associates and joint ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as 
amended. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associates and joint ventures are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group, 
its associates and joint ventures and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 

 

Independent  Auditor’s Report 
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and completeness of the accounting records,  relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been 
used for the purpose of presentation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid. 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and 

of its associates companies and joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates 
companies and joint ventures to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates 

companies and joint ventures are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate 
companies and joint ventures. 

 

6.  Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material     
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material  

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the       
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout 
the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal    

control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, if applicable, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such      
controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related       

disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit   

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 

draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are       
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 

the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be        
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in          
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial   

statements.  
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements       
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 

these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter of when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
  

7.  Other Matters 
We have relied on the audited financial statement of five subsidiary companies, which are audited by the other auditors. The 
financial statements of the subsidiary companies reflect total assets of Rs. 133.99 Crores as at 31st March,2023, total revenue of 

Rs. 190.90 crores for the year then ended and total Net profit of Rs. 4.48 Crores for the year ended 31st March, 2023. These 
financial statements as approved by the Board of Directors of the respective Company have been furnished to us by the 
management and our report in so far as it relates to amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries is based solely on such 
approved audited financial statements. 

 
We have relied upon the audited financial statements of one Associate, wherein Group's share of net loss after tax is Rs. 0.0471 
crores for the year ended March 31, 2023. These audited financial statements as approved by the board of Directors of the 
Associate have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the Statement in so far as it relates to the amounts 

and disclosures included in respect of this Associates is based solely on such approved audited financial statements. 
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We have relied upon the audited financial statements of four Joint Ventures, wherein Group's share of net loss after tax is Rs. 

0.62 crores for the year ended March 31, 2023. These audited financial statements as approved by the board of Directors of the 
Joint Ventures have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the Statement in so far as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these joint venture is based solely on such approved audited financial statements. 
 

We have relied upon the unaudited financial statements in respect of two Joint Ventures wherein Group’s share of Net Profit after 
tax is Rs. 0.18 crores for the year ended 31st March 2023. This unaudited financial statements as approved by the board of 
Directors of the company have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the statement in so far as it relates to 

the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary is based solely on such approved unaudited financial 
statements.  
 
Our report on the Statement is not modified in respect of our reliance on the financial information / results certified by the 

management. 
 

8. Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors 

on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, its associates and its joint 
ventures, as referred in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief   

    were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated   

    Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports of the     
    other auditors; 

 (c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow  

    Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of  
    preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements; 

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified    

    under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended;  

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31,  

    2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors  
    who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiaries, and its associates and joint ventures  
    incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group’s companies, its associates and joint ventures are  
    disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 (f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial     

   reporting of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, its associates and joint ventures incorporated in India, refer to  
   our separate report in “Annexure A“ to this report 

 (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the  

    Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to  
    the explanations given to us:  

 i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations and commitments on the  

   consolidated financial position of the Group. 

 ii) Provision has been made in the Consolidated Financial Statements, as required under the applicable law or  

    Indian accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative  
    contracts; 

 iii) There has been no delay in transferring the amount required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and  

    Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries companies, its associates and joint ventures  
    incorporated in India. 

 iv) 

 
i) The Holding Company Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,  no funds have  
   been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind  
   of funds) by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associates to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),    

   including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,  
   that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in  
  any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associates ("Ultimate   
  Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  
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  ii)  The Holding Company Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief,  no funds 

have been received by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associates from any person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associates shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
  

 iii) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,  

       nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and    
       ii) contain any material mis-statement. 

 V) There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company.  

2 With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 

(the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the 
Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued 
by us for the Company and its subsidiary and its associate and its joint venture included in the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no 

qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports. 

FOR BIPIN & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN.: 101509W 

 

 

  

AMIT D SHAH  

PARTNER 
MEMBERSHIP NO.: 126337 

 

UDIN: 23126337BGSPIE1981 

PLACE: Vadodara 

DATE: 13.06.2023 

ANNEXURE-A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of  
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Madhav Infra Projects Limited (“the Company”) and in 
respect of its subsidiary, associate, joint venture companies wherein such audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was carried out by other Auditors whose reports have been forwarded to us and have been appropriately dealt with by us in making 
this report as on 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the 

year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary company, associate company, joint venture company which are 

companies incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements of the Company that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company, based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements of the Company were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the company and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports 

referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,  the Company, its subsidiary company, 

its associate company and its joint venture company has, in all material respects, an internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements of the Company and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

31st March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Other Matters 

Our aforesaid reports under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to subsidiary company and associate companies, which are incorporated in 

India, are based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. 

 

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of above matter. 

FOR BIPIN & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN.: 101509W 

 

 

  

AMIT D SHAH  

PARTNER 
MEMBERSHIP NO.: 126337 

 

UDIN: 23126337BGSPIE1981 

PLACE: Vadodara 

DATE: 13.06.2023 
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  CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2023   

        

PARTICUALRS 
NOTE   AS AT   AS AT 

NO   31-03-2023   31-03-2022 

I ASSETS         

(1) Non Current Assets        

  (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 8,497.36  7,713.50  

  (b) Intangible Assets 3 4,666.86  1,842.50  

 (c) Capital Work in Progress  710.44    

 (d) Investment in subsidiaries & Associates 4 2,104.83  2,907.87  

 (e) Financial Assets      

  (i) Investments 5 979.82  136.58  

   (ii) Other Financial Assets 6 2,981.57  1,780.49  

 (f) Deferred tax Assets (Net) 7 15.14 19,956.03 251.09 14,632.03 

 (2)  Current Assets       

  (a) Inventories   8  9,534.69  10,367.49  

 (b) Financial Assets       

  (i) Trade Receivable 9 16,463.22  11,304.91  

  (ii) Cash and cash Equivalents 10 2,653.99  404.01  

  (iii) Other Balances with Banks 11 2,947.04  4,286.83  

  (iv) Loans 12 36.94  71.57  

  (iv) Other Financial Assets 13 194.68  435.21  

 (c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 -  1,091.82  

 (d) Other current Assets 15 5,594.04 37,424.60 6,575.29 34,537.14 

 TOTAL ASSETS   57,380.63  49,169.17 

        
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      

 Equity      

 (a) Equity Share Capital 16 2,695.82  6,352.29  

 (b) Equity Warrants  -  1,335.26  

 (c) Other Equity 17 13,965.90 16,661.72 5,833.27 13,520.82 

 Non Controlling Interest   381.62  160.12 

 Liabilities      

 Non Current Liabilities      

 (a) Financial Liabilities      

  (i) Borrowing 18 14,246.28  16,092.89  

  (ii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 1,051.54  1,780.57  

 (b) Other Non Current Liabilities 20 679.51  1,364.62  

 (c)  Provisions 21 80.16 16,057.50 - 19,238.08 

 Current Liabilities      

 (a) Financial Liabilities      

  (i) Borrowings 22 6,482.69  5,601.30  

  (ii) Trade Payable 23     

 
  (a) total outstanding due of Micro 

Enterprises and Small Enterprises 
 205.56  126.42  

 

 (b) total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than  Micro Enterprises and Small 
Enterprises 

 15,736.33  9,317.81  

  (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 24 21.24  36.08  

 (b) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 25 121.63  -  

 (c) Other Current Liabilities 26 1,494.37  1,054.21  

 (d) Provisions 27 217.97 24,279.80 114.32 16,250.16 

 TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES    57,380.63  49,169.17 

  Significant Accounting Policies and  1 TO      

  Notes on Financial Statements   58        

  As per our Report of even date      

 FOR BIPIN & CO.       FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD  

  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS      

  FIRM REGISTRATION NO.101509W      

       
     MANAGING DIRECTOR  CHAIRMAN 

  (AMIT D SHAH - PARTNER)  AMIT A. KHURANA ASHOK M. KHURANA 

  MEMBERSHIP NO.126337  [DIN: 00003626] [DIN:00003617] 

     Place: Vadodara  

  Date Date: 13/06/2023     COMPANY SECRETARY  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

    DHARMESH CHAUHAN  RAJENDRASINH RANA 

                            

(INR in Lakhs) 
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 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023   

      (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICUALRS 
NOTE   YEAR ENDED   YEAR ENDED 

NO   31-03-2023   31-03-2022 

I  INCOME         

  Value of Sales & Services 28 56,104.94  50,712.95  

  Less: GST Recovered  (4,835.19)  (4,706.39)  

  Revenue from Operation  51,269.75  46,006.56   

  Other Income 29 2,885.22  255.69   

  Total Revenue     54,154.97   46,262.25 

II  EXPENCES       

   Cost of Materials Consumed 30 21,317.00  18,685.97   

   Changes in Construction Work in  Progress 31 (426.48)  (1,638.09)   

   Construction Expenses 32 21,907.05  21,232.34   

  Employee Benefits Expenses 33 1,542.68  1,742.09   

  Finance Costs 34 2,524.65  2,841.96   

  Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 35 1,316.59  1,573.50   

  Other Expenses 36 1,173.18  875.68   

   Total Expenses   49,354.68   45,313.45 

III  Profit Before Exceptional Items & Tax (I-II)    4,800.29   948.81 

IV  Exceptional Items   -  - 

V  Profit Before Tax (III-IV)   4,800.29  948.81 

VI  Tax Expense:         

  1 Current tax   1,020.93  306.11   

 2 Earlier years' Tax  (113.98)  0.05  

  3 Deferred tax   235.95 1,142.91 (27.14) 279.02 

VII  Profit for the year before share of profit /(loss) of 

joint ventures (V-VI) 
 
  

 
3,657.38 

  
669.79 

VIII  Share of profit of Associates & Joint ventures   (44.30)  (37.08) 

IX  Profit for the year  before non-controlling 

interests (VII + VIII) 
  

3,613.08 
 

632.71 

X  Non– Controlling interests   221.01  9.14 

XI  Profit for the year attribute to owners of the 

Company (IX - X) 
  

3,392.07  623.57 

XII  Other Comprehensive Income      

 A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   845.50  - 

 B Items that will  be reclassified to profit or loss   -  - 

  Total Comprehensive Income for the period    4,237.56  623.57 

XIII  Earnings per equity share of face value of  

Rs.10 each  
          

  1 Basic     1.58   0.24 

 2 Diluted     1.58   0.24 

   Significant Accounting Policies and 1 TO          

    Notes on Financial Statements 55         

               

  As per our Report of even date      

 FOR BIPIN & CO.       FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD  

  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS      

  FIRM REGISTRATION NO.101509W      

        

     MANAGING DIRECTOR  CHAIRMAN 

  (AMIT D SHAH - PARTNER)  AMIT A. KHURANA ASHOK M. KHURANA 

  MEMBERSHIP NO.126337  
[DIN: 00003626] [DIN:00003617] 

       

      COMPANY SECRETARY  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

  Place: Vadodara  RAJENDRASINH RANA DHARMESH CHAUHAN  

  Date: 13/06/2023          



86
MIPL 

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY   

(INR in Lakhs) A- Equity Share Capital      

PARTICULARS Nos. Amount  (INR) 

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid     

Balance as at  1st April, 2021 25,62,28,960 2562.29 

Change in Equity share capital during the year - - 

Sub Division of Face Value of Equity Shares i.e Rs. 10 to Rs. 1 each  - - 

Balance as at  31st March, 2022 25,62,28,960 2,562.29 

Balance as at  1st April, 2022 25,62,28,960 2,562.29 

Change in Equity share capital during the year                  

1,33,52,600    133.53 

Balance as at  31st March, 2023 26,95,81,560 2,695.82 

Equity Warrant of Rs.10/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid     

Balance as at  1st April, 2022 1,33,52,600 1,335.26 

Equity Warrants converted into share capital during the year  (1,33,52,600) (1,335.26) 

Balance as at  31st March, 2023 - - 

Non-Cumulative- Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each 
issued, subscribed and fully paid  

  

Balance as at  1st April, 2021 5,12,52,600 5,125.26 

Redemption of Preferance share Capital during the year  (1,33,52,600) (1,335.26) 

Balance as at  31st March, 2022 3,79,00,000 3,790.00 

Balance as at  1st April, 2022 3,79,00,000 3,790.00 

Change in preferance share capital during the year  (3,79,00,000) (3,790.00) 

Balance as at  31st March, 2023 - - 

               

  As per our Report of even date      

 FOR BIPIN & CO.       FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD  

  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS      

  FIRM REGISTRATION NO.101509W      

        

     MANAGING DIRECTOR  CHAIRMAN 

  (AMIT D SHAH - PARTNER)  AMIT A. KHURANA ASHOK M. KHURANA 

  MEMBERSHIP NO.126337  [DIN: 00003626] [DIN:00003617] 

       

      COMPANY SECRETARY  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

  Place: Vadodara  RRAJENDRASINH RANA DHARMESH CHAUHAN 

  Date: 13/06/2023        

B– Other Equity-Attributable to Owners                                                                                                      (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars  Reserve and Surplus Total 

Reserve on 
Amalgamation 

Reserve on 
Consolidati
on 

Financial 
Instrument 
Reserve 

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve 

Retained 
Earing 

Investment in 
Equity Reserve 

Balance as at  1st April,2021 
Adjustment during the year 
Loss for the year  

423.13 
- 
- 

8.00 
(8.00) 

- 

- 
- 
- 

409.83 
- 
- 

4,442.79 
(66.04) 
623.57 

- 
- 
- 

5,283.74 
(74.04) 
623.57 

Balance as on March 31, 2022 423.13  - 409.83 5,000.32 - 5,833.27 

Balance as at  1st April,2022 
Adjustment During the year  

423.13 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

409.83 
- 

5,000.32 
52.24 

- 
- 

5,833.27 
52.24 

On Preference Share liabilities - - 3,118.93 - - - 3,118.93 

 Received on Conversion of 
Equity Warrants in to Equity 
Shares 

- - - 1,201.73 - - 1,201.73 

Addition during the year (423.13) - - - (54.70) 845.49 367.66 

Profit for the year - - - - 3,392.07 - 3,392.07 

Balance as on March 31, 2023 - - 3,118.93 1,611.56 8,389.93 845.49 13,965.90 
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023   

  PARTICUALRS 
YEAR ENDED  
31-03-2023 

YEAR ENDED  
31-03-2022 

        
A  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

  Net Profit before Tax and Extraordinary Items 4,800.29 948.81 

  Adjustments for :   

  - Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1,316.59 1,573.50 

  - Interest paid 2,524.65 2,841.96 

  - Interest Received (247.17) (196.19) 

  - Profit on Sales of Assets (2,542.86) (29.15) 

 - Capital Gain on Sale of Investment (39.88) (11.37) 

    1,011.35 4,178.75 

  OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 5,811.62 5,127.56 

  Adjustments for :    

  - (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 832.80 (3,609.18) 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (5,158.31) (2,849.24) 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in Financial Asset (925.92) 369.61 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in Other Asset 981.25 (432.13) 

 - Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 6,283.34 4,935.64 

 - Increase/(Decrease) in Financial Liabilities (743.87) 703.47 

 - Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities (244.95) (4,149.28) 

  1,024.34 (5,031.11) 

  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATION 6,835.96 96.45 

  - Income Tax  498.86 (894.24) 

  NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7,334.82 (797.79) 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

  - Purchase of Fixed Assets (6,708.43) (102.64) 

  - Sales of Fixed Assets 2,907.83 6,104.81 

 - (Purchase)/ Sales of Investments (40.20) 120.37 

 - Capital Subsidies received - 158.25 

 - Adjustment of Assets –Liabilities– admission & omission of Subsidiaries 437.37 1,104.87 

  - Interest Received 247.17 196.19 

 - (increase)/Decrease in Term Deposits 1,339.79 (1,028.97) 
                                         

  NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,816.47) 6,552.52 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

 - Non Controlling Interest 221.50 9.14 

 - Issue of Warrants - 1,335.26 

 - Redemption of Non Cumulative Preference Shares - (1,335.26) 

  - Borrowings (Long term) (1,846.61) (1,129.57) 

 - Borrowings (Short term) 881.39 (2,395.99) 

  - Interest paid (2,524.65) (2,841.96) 

  NET CASH  IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3,268.37) (6,358.38) 

  NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,249.98 (603.65) 

  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31ST, March ( Opening Bal.) 404.01 1,007.67 

  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31ST, March ( Closing Bal.) 2,653.99 404.01 

        

(INR in Lakhs) 

  As per our Report of even date      

 FOR BIPIN & CO.       FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD  

  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS      

  FIRM REGISTRATION NO.101509W      

        

     MANAGING DIRECTOR  CHAIRMAN 

  (AMIT D SHAH - PARTNER)  AMIT A. KHURANA ASHOK M. KHURANA 

  MEMBERSHIP NO.126337  
[DIN: 00003626] [DIN:00003617] 

  Place: Vadodara     

    COMPANY SECRETARY  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER Date: 13/06/2023    

    DHARMESH CHAUHAN  RAJENDRASINH RANA 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 

 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies for the year ended March 31, 2023           
 

 GENERAL INFORMATION  

Madhav Infra Projects Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in India (CIN: L45200GJ1992PLC018392) 
having its registered office in Vadodara. The Company operates in the fields of Highways, Urban Infrastructure, Real Estate and 
Energy.  
These standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors vide its  

resolution dated 13/06/2023 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
1.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

 The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2016, read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (as amended time to time). 
 

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities 
(including financial instruments) which have been measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained in the 
accounting policies stated below.  

 

1.3 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION 
 Consolidation Procedure: 

 

a. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with the requirements of Indian         

Accounting Standard -110 (Consolidated Financial Statements) & Indian  Accounting Standard -28 (Investments in 

Associates and Joint Ventures) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Consolidated Financial 

Statements have been prepared on the following basis. 
 

i. The Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiary Companies are combined on a line by line basis by 
adding together the book value of the like item of assets, liabilities, income  and expenses after fully eliminating intra 

group balances and intra group transactions resulting in unrealised profit. 
 

ii.  Investment in Joint Ventures has been accounted under the Equity Method as per Ind AS 28 – Investments in 
Associates and Joint Ventures.  

 

iii. The difference between the Company’s cost of investments in the subsidiaries over its position of equity at the time of 

acquisition of the shares is recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statement as Goodwill or Capital Reserves as the 
case may be. 

 

iv.  The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared by adopting uniform accounting policies for like transactions 
and other events in similar circumstances and presented to the extent possible, in the financial statements. 

 

b. The subsidiary Companies considered in the consolidated financial statements are : 

Name of the Company 
Country Of 

Incorporation 

% of Ownership 
interest as on   

31st March, 2022 

Badi Baktara Toll Private Limited India 99.99% 

Madhav (Aaron Sindh Road) Private Limited India 99.99% 

MI Solar (India) Private Limited India 51.66% 

Seabird Exploration Pvt. Ltd. India 51.00 % 

c.   The significant Joint Ventures considered in the Consolidated Financial Statement. 

Name of the Joint Venture 
Country Of 
Incorporati

on 

% of Ownership 
interest as on  

31st March, 2022 

M/s. Madhav Infra Projects Ltd – M/S. M S Khurana Engineering Ltd- JV India 70.00% 

M/S. Eagle Infra India Limited - M/S. Madhav Infra Projects Ltd – JV India 49.00% 

M/s. Madhav Infra Projects Ltd- M/S. Eagle Infra India Limited – JV India 70.00% 

M/s. Madhav Infra Projects Ltd—M/s. Chetak Enterprise Limited India 50.00% 

M/s. M S Khurana Engineering Ltd -Madhav Infra Projects Ltd-JV  India 30.00% 

M/s. SCIW-MIPL-MSKEL-JV  India 35.00 % 

1.4 OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 These are set out under “Significant Accounting Policies” as given in the Company’s separate statements. 

Name of the Associates 
Country Of 

Incorporation 

% of Ownership 
interest as on  

31st March, 2022 

Mansha Textiles Private Limited India 21.57% 

d.   The significant Associates considered in the Consolidated Financial Statement. 
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4. INVESTMENT IN  SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATES    

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      
INVESTMENT IN EQUITY     

  In Associate Companies     

  UN QUOTED,  AT COST     

 10,000 ( Previous year 10,000  )Equity Shares of Mansha Textiles Pvt. Ltd. Of Rs.100/-
each Fully Paid up 

10.00 10.00 

  Less:-Provision for Diminution of Value of Investment (10.00) (10.00) 

  140,000 ( Previous year : 140,000 ) Equity Shares of  Vikrama Architecture & Design Pvt. 
Ltd. Of Rs.10 Fully Paid up 

14.00 14.00 

  12800 (previous year :Nil) Equity Shares of Madhav Power Pvt. Ltd. Of Rs. 10/- each 316.93   

INVESTMENT IN PREFERENCE  SHARE    

  In Associates Companies    

  UN QUOTED,  AT COST    

 94,92,000 (Previous year 94,92,000) Redeemable Preference Shares of Madhav (PNS   
Corridor) Highways Pvt. Ltd. Of Rs.10 Fully Paid up 

949.20 949.20 

  82,47,000 (Previous year 82,47,000) Redeemable Preference Shares of Madhav (Sehora-
Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt. Ltd. Of Rs.10 Fully Paid up 

824.70 824.70 

    
  In Partnership Firm   

  Aarav Developer - 1,119.97 

TOTAL 2,104.83 2,907.87 

    
5. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS-  INVESTMENT   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY     

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

   QUOTED ,NON TRADE,AT COST 
   

  Nil  (Previous Year :100) Equity Shares of MSK Projects (I) Ltd. Of Rs.10 Fully Paid up - 0.07 

  Nil  (Previous Year: 130000) Equity Shares of Pressure  Sensitive Systems (I)  Ltd. Of 
Rs.10/- each  Fully Paid up - 13.00 

 1,35,93,008 (Previous year : Nil) Equity Share of Pressure Sensitive Systems (I) Ltd. Or 
Rs. 1/- each Fully paid up 

845.49  

  Nil (Previous Year: 118) Equity Shares of Reliance Industries Ltd. Of Rs.214/-each Fully 
Paid up 

- 3.11 

 200000 (Previous Year: 200000) Equity Shares of Punjab Lease Financing Ltd. Of 
Rs.10/- each  Fully Paid up 

20.00 20.00 

 Less:-Provision for Diminution of Value of Investment (20.00) (33.00) 

     
  UN QUOTED , TRADE, AT COST   

  In Other Companies    

  181,000 (Previous Year: 181,000) Equity Shares of Gadhidham Developers (P) Ltd. Of 
Rs.10 Fully Paid up 

18.10 18.10 

  10,000 (Previous Year: 10,000) Equity Shares of New Millenium Mica Ltd. Of Rs.10/-
each Fully Paid up 

1.00 1.00 

  Nil (Previous Year: 3,000) Equity Shares of Baroda Slim Easy Pvt. ltd. Of Rs.10 each, 
Fully Paid up 

- 6.00 

 100 (Previous Year: 100) Equity Shares of  Prestige Infrastructure Pvt. ltd. of Rs.10 
each, Fully Paid up 

0.01 0.01 

Investment in Mutual Fund   

 DSRA-Aditya Birla Sun Life Credit Risk Fund 115.23 108.29 

 DSRA-Aditya Birla Sun Life Banking of PSU Debt Fund  - 
      

TOTAL 979.82 136.58 
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(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

    
6.  NON-CURRENT OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      
  Security Deposits 1,785.98 1,043.52 
 Fixed Deposit having maturity more than 12 months 740.49 204.70 

 Deffered Lease Long term 75.36 83.74 
 Others 379.74 448.54 
      

TOTAL 2,981.57 1,780.49 

8. CURRENT ASSETS -INVENTORIES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

INVENTORIES     

       

  Work-In-Progress  6,292.80 5,866.32 

  Raw materials 3,241.89 4,501.17 

       

TOTAL 9,534.69 10,367.49 

    
9. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS-TRADE RECEIVABLES   

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       
  Trade Receivables considered Good-Secured   - 
  Trade Receivables considered Good-Unsecured  - - 

  Receivable from Related Parties  741.78 3,139.03 

 Others 15,721.44 8,165.87 

  16,463.22 11,304.91 

 Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 77.69 55.57 

 Trade Receivables credit impaired - - 

 Sub Total 16,540.91 11,360.47 

 Less : Expected Credit Loss Allowance 77.69 55.57 

    
TOTAL 16,463.22 11,304.91 

 
 

  
10. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS -CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      
  Cash on hand 17.19 40.74 

  Balances in current accounts with banks 2,636.81 363.27 

     
TOTAL 2,653.99 404.01 

7. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

     

 Deferred Tax Assets 459.78 601.47 

 MAT credit entitlement - - 

 Unabsorbed depreciation/ carried forward losses 459.78 601.47 

    

  Deferred Tax liability   

  Depreciation 359.42 349.56 

 Fair Valuation of Equity Shares 85.21 0.81 

  444.64 350.58 

    
TOTAL 15.14 251.09 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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11. OTHER BALANCES WITH BANKS    

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

CASH AND BANK BALANCES     

# Balances in deposits accounts with banks 2947.04 4,286.83 

      

TOTAL 2947.04 4,286.83 

    
# Balances in deposits accounts with banks held as margin money deposits against Guarantee, Letter of Credit or as Debt service    

reserve account  

    
12. FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT) (LOANS)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD     

  Loans and advances to employees 36.94 71.57 

      

TOTAL 36.94 71.57 

    

13. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

    

 Accrued Interest on FDR 11.78 57.04 

  Earnest Money Deposits 38.98 254.00 

 Deffered Lease Short term 8.37 8.37 

 Sundry Deposits 135.55 115.80 

      

TOTAL 194.68 435.21 

    

14. CURRENT TAX  ASSETS (NET)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Tax paid - 1,402.12 

  Less: Provision for Tax - (310.30) 

      

TOTAL - 1,091.82 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

 (INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 
15. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD    

 Advances to Suppliers & Service providers 224.74 635.61 

 Advances to related parties 342.91 1,871.42 

 Pre-Paid Expenses 704.29 386.52 

 Income Receivable 409.14 53.70 

 Retention Money 3,234.92 2,708.37 

 Balance with Statutory Authorities 613.55 850.19 

 Withheld by MPRDC 64.49 69.49 

    

TOTAL 5,594.04 6,575.29 

16. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       
AUTHORISED CAPITAL     

  38,00,00,000 (Previous year : 30,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each 3,800.00 3,000.00 

  5,20,00,000 (Previous year : 5,55,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs.10/-each 5,200.00 5,200.00 

   9,000.00 8,200.00 

 (INR in Lakhs) 
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ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED, AND PAID-UP CAPITAL       

        
   26,95,81,560 (Previous year : 25,62,28,960) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each fully paid 2,695.82 2,562.29 

  Out of the Above :-    

 19,21,71,720  Bonus Equity Shares of Rs.1/- Each fully paid up, issued out of Security 
Premium account 

  

  22,60,200 Equity Shares issued to Share Holders of Aashka Construction Pvt. Ltd. on 
amalgamation during the year 2012-13 

   

  831,750 Equity Shares issued to Share Holders of Elia Construction Pvt. Ltd. on    
amalgamation during the year 2012-13 

   

  129,414 Equity Shares issued to Share Holders of Madhav Infra Projects Pvt. Ltd. on 
amalgamation during the year 2012-13 

   

  174,360 Equity Shares issued to Share Holders of MSK Finance Ltd. on amalgamation 
during the year 2012-13 

   

  Nil (Previous year : 3,79,00,000) 1% non-Cumulative-Convertible Preference Shares of 
Rs.10/- each fully paid up 

- 3,790.00 

TOTAL 2,695.82 6,352.29 

 16.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding  
  

PARTICULARS 
AS AT AS AT 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

Number of shares at the beginning   25,62,28,960 25,62,28,960 

Add:- Increased due to Conversion of Equity Warrants in to Equity Shares 1,33,52,600 - 

Number of shares at the end 26,95,81,560 25,62,28,960 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Preference Share     

Number of shares at the beginning 3,79,00,000 5,12,52,600 

Less:- Redemption of Preference Shares 3,79,00,000 1,33,52,600 

Number of shares at the end - 3,79,00,000 

    

16. Details of the share holders holding more than 5% shares in company   

    

Name of Share holders 

AS AT                       

31-03-2023        

AS AT                       

31-03-2022         

No. of Shares                  

% of Holding 

No. of Shares                  

% of Holding 

 # Ashok A Khurana 7,61,29,440 7,61,29,440 

    28.24% 29.71% 

  Armaan Amit Trust 8,13,60,000 8,13,60,000 

    30.18% 31.75% 

  Nilmesh Infrabuild Pvt. Ltd. - - 

    - - 

  Manju A Khurana 1,32,12,000 1,32,12,000 

    4.90% 5.16% 

# Refer note no. 52A 

16.3 Term/rights of  Share holders 

 The Company has Two kind of Share Capital namely Equity & Preference. 

 a) Equity 

 The company has one class of equity share of Rs.10 per share, each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.  

 b) Preference 

 The company has one class of Non-Cumulative , non- voting  Compulsorily Convertible preference share of Rs.10 per share 

17. OTHER EQUITY   

    

AS AT             AS AT             
PARTICULARS  

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

    

 Security Premium Reserve 409.83 409.83 

 Add: Received on Conversion of Equity warrants in to Equity Shares 1,201.73 - 

  1,611.57 409.83 

 Finacial Instrument reserve 3,118.93 - 

 Investment in Equity reserve 845.49 - 

    

 Reserve on Amalgamtion 423.13 423.13 

 Add : - During the year  - - 
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 Less: - Amalgamtion during the year  (423.13) - 
    
    
 Retained Earnings   

  As per the Previous year Balance Sheet 5,000.31 4,442.78 
 Adjustment during the year 52.24 (66.04) 
 Share of Associate in Deficit (54.70) - 
 Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 3,392.07 623.57 
  8,389.92 5,000.31 

  TOTAL 13,965.90 5,833.27 

(INR in Lakhs) 18. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS     

PARTICULARS 
AS AT              AS AT             

31-03-2023  31-03-2022 

 Non Current Current Non Current Current 

         

  3,79,00,000 ( Previous year : 3,79,00,000) Non Cumulative Preferance Shares of  756.18 - - - 

  Ra. 10/- Each Fully paid up       

SECURED— TERMS LOAN       

  Mahindra & Mahindra Fin Ser. Ltd. - 8.98 8.98 141.05 

  Security :- (i)  first charge by way of hypothecation of the Company's  assets 
(Construction Equipment's) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors 

      

  Yes Bank Ltd.  - - 0.42 64.41 

  Security :- (i)  first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  assets 
(Construction Equipment's) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors 

      

  SIDBI 803.00 184.78 1,001.85 156.28 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of Plant, 
Machinery , Equipment, tools, spares , accessories and all other assets which hav 

been or proposed to be acquired under the Project. (ii) Joint & several Personal 
Guarantee of Directors (iii) The loan shall be repayable in 108 monthly 

instalments, commencing from Dec'16 

      

  State Bank of India 482.70 90.00 573.66 90.00 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of Gross Margin 
of the Chambal Project (ii) Joint & several Personal Guarantee of Directors (iii) 

The loan shall be repayable in 160 monthly instalments, commencing from 
Dec'15 

      

 State Bank of India 2,205.99 44.00 1,875.00 - 

 Security :- a) First charge /assignment of security interest on the company's 
rights under the Concession Agreement, Project Documents, Contracts, licenses, 

permits, approvals, consents in respect of the captioned Projects, including step 
in rights of the project covered by Tri-partite agreement (substitution agreement) 

that shall be executed by the company with MPRDC. b)  A first mortgage on 
Company's all immovable assets (if any) and first charge by way of hypothecation 

on all movable assets (including but not limited to all current/ non-current 
assets) both present and future. c). A first charge/ assignment on all the 

intangible assets of the company, including but not limited to the goodwill, 
rights, undertakings and uncalled capital both present and future .d ) A first 
charge on all the company's bank accounts including , without limitation, the 

Escrow Account and the Debt Service Reserve Account to be ,established by the 
Borrower and each of the other accounts as required to be created by the 

Borrower under any Project Document. Provided that the charge on the Escrow 
Account mentioned above shall always be in the manner and only to the extent of 

order of priorities of payment as permitted under the Escrow Agreement and the 
Detailed Mandates. e)  Assignment of contractor guarantees, liquidated damages, 

letter of credit, guarantee or performance bond and insurance policies pertaining 
tp the project on pari-passu crisis, and noting the interest of the lenders. The 

primary security would be created by executing suitable bilateral and tripartite 
agreements like Substitution Agreements, Escrow Agreements, etc. as so ested b 

lenders Le al Counsel. 

    

  Axis Bank Ltd. 282.42 137.44 134.34 213.12 

  Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors (iii) The loan shall be repayable in 36 monthly 
instalments,. 

      

  HDFC Bank Ltd. 64.31 34.04 59.92 121.45 

 Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal Guarantee of     

Directors  

      

 Shriram City Union Finance Ltd 0.00 0.019 0.00 0.19 

 Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

    

 Shriram Housing Finance Ltd 104.50 106.79 94.33 59.66 

 Security :- (i) Registered Mortgage of the immovable residential property of    
Director for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal Guarantee of Directors  
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 ICICI Bank Ltd. 252.65 489.79 404.92 312.28 

 

Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

      

 Tata Motor Finance Solutions Ltd. 107.68 70.21 141.35 85.10 

 

Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

      

 TVS Credit Services Limited 232.25 136.50 72.87 - 

 

Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's  
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors 

    

  Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd  - - - 5.38 

  

Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's 
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

    

  HDB Financial Services Ltd. 16.83 130.52 153.29 116.98 

  

Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's 
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

    

 Bajaj Finance Ltd. 8.30 30.75 - - 

 

Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's 
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

    

 Cholamandalam Inv. And Fin. Co. Ltd 182.04 75.77   

 

Security :- (i) a pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of the company's 
assets (Vehicle & Plant & Machinery) for Loan sought (ii) Joint & several Personal 

Guarantee of Directors  

    

  IFCI Ltd. - - 370.90 363.38 

  

Security :- (i) Exclusive charge on immovable  properties of M/S. R B Real estate 
Pvt. Ltd.& Approx.25293 Sq.mtr.NA Land at Chapad, Vadodara (ii) Joint & 

several Personal Guarantee of Promoters 

      

 Union Bank of India - - 928.19 - 

 

(i) Secured by way of an exclusive charge, on all immovable  assets of the 
company, , both present and future ; (ii) an Exclusive charge by way of 

hypothication of the company's entire movable , including movable machinery, 
machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture and  fixtures, vehicles and all 

other movable assets both , present and future; (iii) an exclusive charge on  the 
company's book-debts, operating cash flows, receivables, commission, revenues 

of  whatsoever nature and wherever arising from intangible assets including 
goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future; and  (iv) Joint & Several personally 

guaranted by Shri Ashok Khurana, Shri Amit Khurana & Smt. Neelakshi 
Khurana Repayment :-  Term Loan shall be payable in 145 structured Monthly 
instalments, commencing from March, 2019. 

    

 Aditya Birla Finance Ltd 1,336.73 641.41 2,046.50 663.62 

 

(i) Secured by way of Second charge, on book debts, operating cash flows, 
receivables, commissions, revenues, any other current  assets of whatsoever 

nature arising of  the company, , both present and future ; (ii) Collateral of 
Corporate Guarantee of RB Real Estate Private Ltd.in the form of land property to 

the extent of 1X of the loan amount.  (iii) Unconditional  & irrevacable personally  
guaranted by Shri Ashok Khurana, Shri Amit Khurana & Smt. Neelakshi 

Khurana (iv) Demand Promissory Note for the entire loan amount executed under 
the common seal of the company  Repayment :-  Term Loan shall be payable in 

84 structured monthly instalments, commencing from May,2019. Rate of Interest 
shall be 12.00% floating. 

    

 Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd (1 Crore)  49.74 46.73   

  SIDBI 186.05 44.88 224.93 38.88 

  Secured by: (i) A first mortgage on all immovable  assets and , first charge by way 
of hypothecation on all movable assets of the company , both present and future ;  

(ii) a first charge/assignment on all  the intangible assets of the company , 
including but not limited to the goodwill, rights, undertakings and uncalled 

capital both present and future.(iii) A first charge on all the company's bank 
accounts including, without limitation , the Ecrow Account and the Debt Service 

Revenue Account  (iv) First charge/ assignment of security interest on the 
company's right under the concession agreement, Project Documents, Contracts, 

Licenses, permits, approvals, consents in respect of the captioned projects ; (v) 
Assignment of contactor guarantees , liquidated damages, letter of credit, 
guarantee or performance bond and insurance policies pertaining to the project 

on pari-passu basis, and noting the interest of the lenders. (vi) Assignment of toll 
collection right along with escrow on future toll collection, The aforesaid security 

would rank pari-passu with all the senior lenders joined to finance the project 
under consortium arrangement .(vii) Personal guarantee of the Directors of the 

Company Mr. Amit Khurana  & Smt.Neelakshi Khurana. Repayment:-Repayment 
of Principle amount to be paid in 51 monthly instalments to commence from Jan, 

2016. 

      

 Working Capital Term Loan     

 BOB Working Capital Term Loan - - - 3.30 

 UBI Working Capital Term Loan 889.44 38.75 - 2.78 

 SBI - WCCT - A/c No - 40279714678 249.63 115.25 374.54 - 

 IDBI WCCT A/c No.0375672200001175 149.92 64.25 214.17 - 

 Indian Bank Working Capital Term Loan - - 1.62 20.00 
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20. OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

    

  Other advances  679.51 1,364.62 

    

TOTAL 679.51 1,364.62 

21. PROVISIONS (NON– CURRENT)  

PARTICULARS AS AT 
31-03-2023             

AS AT           
31-03-2022 

Provison for Gratuity                           80.16 - 

TOTAL 80.16 - 

    

22. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

SECURED      

  Working Capital Loans from Banks    

  Bank of Baroda /Dena Bank 490.72 316.07 

  IDBI Bank Ltd 1,492.30 996.14 

 Indian Bank, Gotri A/c-6598528989 408.71 363.17 

 State Bank of India 1,116.00 1,127.45 

 Union Bank of India 483.92 158.23 

 SIDBI Bank Ltd. Through IDBI Bank Ltd.   

 (Secured by (i) First pari-passu charge on the current assets and the unencumbered movable 
fixed assets of the company. (ii) Collaterally secured by (a)  first pari-passu charge in form of 

equitable mortgage of immovable properties /FDs  (iii) Secured by personal Guarantees given by 
Mr. Ashok Khurana, Mr. Amit Khurana & Mrs. Neelakshi Khurana. 

    

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

  Current Maturity of Long Term Debts (Refer Note No. 18) 2,491.04 2,640.24 

UNSECURED     

 Inter-corporate Loan -  - 

      

TOTAL 6,482.69 5,601.30 

    

23. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES -TRADE PAYABLES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       
  Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMED) 205.56 126.42 
     
  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than  Micro Enterprises and Small  Enterprises   
 Trade Payable    
  Against Supplies 8,509.41 8,298.01 
  Against expenses 6,909.84 959.84 

  Against Capital Expenditure 317.08 59.97 
   15,736.33 9,317.81 
     

TOTAL 15,941.89 9,444.24 

    
24. CURRENTS OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES   

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

  Interest Payable  21.24 36.08 

TOTAL 21.24 36.08 

(INR in Lakhs) 

 SIDBI  - - 6.00 24.00 
 

     

UNSECURED      

 Inter-corporate Loan 5,885.97 - 7,405.10 - 

      

 TOTAL 14,246.28 2,491.04 16,092.89 2,481.87 

19. OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

  Security deposit from sub contractor 1,051.54 1,780.57 

    

TOTAL 1,051.54 1,780.57 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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26. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

  Statutory Liabilities 638.82 80.10 

  Advances from Customers 298.10 47.74 

  Advances from Related Parties 397.62 543.40 

  Other Advance 51.58 0.10 

 Advances against Sales of Assets 108.25 382.87 

      

TOTAL 1,494.37 1,054.21 

(INR in Lakhs) 

25. CURRENT TAX  LIABILITIES (NET)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

 Provision for Tax 1024.89 - 

 Less: Tax Paid (903.26) - 

    

    

      

TOTAL 121.63 - 

(INR in Lakhs) 

27. PROVISIONS (CURRENT)   

    

PARTICULARS 
AS AT             AS AT             

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

  Provision for Grauity 21.50 - 

 Others 196.47 114.32 

    

    

    

      

TOTAL 217.97 114.32 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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(INR in Lakhs) 
28. VALUE OF SALES AND SERVICES   

    

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       
  Civil Contracts 39,969.95 48,711.41 

 Vessel Contract receipt 14,388.86 - 

  Solar Power Generation Income 373.28 1,049.63 

  Operation & Maintenance Income 240.84 251.15 

 Sale of Goods 77.34 7.48 

  Machinery Rent Income 1.21 - 

 Annuity Income 172.55 - 

 Interest on Balance annuity 198.76 - 

 Utility Revenue 178.91 224.31 

  Toll Collection 503.24 468.96 

      

TOTAL 56,104.94 50,712.95 

(INR in Lakhs) 
29. OTHER INCOME   

    

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 
       

  Interest on Fixed Deposits 186.14 191.21 

  Interest on Income Tax Refund 59.00 0.20 

  Foreign Exchange Gain  - (0.11) 

  Insurance Claim received 35.92 6.14 

  Misc. Income 6.55 2.36 

  Interest on Sardar Sarovar Bond 2.03 4.77 

  Profit on sales of investments 39.88 11.37 

  Other Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost 6.21 5.54 

 Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 2,542.86 29.15 

 Investment carried at fair value through profit or loss 6.63 5.05 
    
      

TOTAL 2,885.22 255.69 

        
30. COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED   

    

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       
  Stock at Commencement 4,501.17 2,530.08 

  Add :- Purchases 20,057.72 20,657.06 

  Total 24,558.89 23,187.13 

  Less:- Stock at Close 3,241.89 4,501.17 

      
TOTAL 21,317.00 18,685.97 

31. CHANGE IN  CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS   

    

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

     

  Opening  Stock  of work in progress 5,866.32 4,228.23 

  Less :- Closing stock of Work in progress 6,292.80 5,866.32 

     

TOTAL (426.48) (1,638.09) 

    

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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(INR in Lakhs) 

       
  Borewall construction 3.93 8.15 

  Civil Works 1,150.08 907.13 

  Electrical Expenses 49.13 56.39 

  Erection Works 168.35 84.48 

  Machinery Hire Charges 130.89 206.71 

  Repairs & Maintenance 658.01 1,012.71 

  Road Work Expense 4,466.76 12,200.87 

  Steel Structure Work 12.15 10.17 

 Sub-Contracting Expenses 3,142.85 6,356.57 

 Utility Shifting Expenses 178.91 224.31 

  Miscellaneous Site Exp. 667.51 164.86 

  Project Management Expences                           718.97 - 

 Mobilisation Fee                           522.98 - 

 Selsmic Survey Expences                       10,036.53 - 

TOTAL 21,907.05 21,232.34 

    
33. EMPLOYEE  BENEFIT EXPENSES   

    

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 
31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       
  Salary and Wages 1,050.74 1,434.36 
  Staff Welfare Expense 460.82 278.53 
 Contribution to Provident and other funds 31.13 29.20 
      

TOTAL 1,542.68 1,742.09 

32. CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES  
 

    

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

34. FINANCE COST   

    

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Interest Expenses:    

  Interest on Term Loan 1,174.80 1,426.30 

  Interest on Working Capital Loan 407.82 387.44 

  Interest -Others 130.54 399.81 

  Borrowing cost Adjustment of Preferential Shares (IND AS) 85.11  

  Other Borrowing cost:   

  Commission on Bank Guarantee & Letter of Credit 549.06 492.65 
  Bank and other Financial Charges 177.33 135.76 

      
TOTAL 2,524.65 2,841.96 

   35. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE   

    

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

      

  Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment  1,088.22 1,480.84 

  Amortisation of Intangible assets  228.37 92.66 
     

TOTAL 1,316.59 1,573.50 

    
36. OTHER EXPENSES   

    

PARTICULARS 
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

       

  Insurance 123.52 109.08 

 Legal Expenses 67.97 19.92 

 Office Expenses 2.92 4.40 

 Office Rent 17.37 17.37 

 Professional &  Consultancy 271.98 176.54 

 Rate & Taxes 154.48 195.41 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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 Telephone & Internet Charges 11.31 11.93 

 Listing Expenses - - 

 Travelling Expenses 90.84 32.41 

 Vehicle Expenses 15.44 99.57 

  Operation & Maintenance Charge 64.30 11.73 

  Directors Sitting Fees 1.80 1.80 

  Concession fees to MPRDC 3.08 2.80 

  Provision for doubtful debtors 22.13 10.19 

  Discarded Value of Fixed assets 4.98 - 

 Loss on sale of Investment  - 

 Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note No. 50) - 7.00 
  Miscellaneous Exp. 303.59 165.24 
     

  Payment to Auditors   

  Audit Fees 12.72 7.36 

  Tax Audit fees 4.75 0.75 

  Certification matters - 2.18 
      

TOTAL 1,173.18 875.68 

37. THE  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OTHER COMMITMENT ( TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR) 

  
PARTICULARS 

AS AT  
31-03-2023 

AS AT  
31-03-2022 

 Guarantee issued by the Bank on behalf of the Company 17,282.66 19,432.81 

 Corporate guarantee (Given by Company to a bank in respect of loan taken by      
associate companies 

5,857.81 12,474.41 

 Income Tax Demand (MSK Projects (I) (JV) Ltd.) -           203.97 

 Service tax Demand 21.48  

 Tax Demand from VAT Dept. Maharastra 44.80  

 Tax Demand from VAT Dept. Madhyapradesh 32.09  

38. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS    
     (INR in Lakhs) 

 

PARTICULARS 

AS AT  31-03-2023 

 Fair Value through 

Profit or Loss 
Fair Value through  

OCI 
Amortised Cost 

 Financial Assets        

      Investments :-       
            In Equity Instruments (Quoted) 845.49 - - 

            In Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 19.11 - - 

            In Mutual Fund (Quoted) 115.23 - - 

      Trade receivables - - 16,463.22 

      Cash and cash equivalents - - 2,653.99 

      Other Balance with Banks - - 2,947.04 

      Loans and advances to employees - - 36.94 

      Others - - 3,176.25 

 Total Financial Assets 979.82  25,277.44 

       
 Financial liabilities    

      Borrowings - - 20,728.98 

      Trade payables - - 15,941.89 

      Others - - 21.24 

 Total Financial Liabilities - - 36,692.11 

     (INR in Lakhs) 

 

PARTICULARS 

AS AT  31-03-2022 

 Fair Value through 

Profit or Loss 
Fair Value through  

OCI 
Amortised Cost 

 Financial Assets        

      Investments :-       
            In Equity Instruments (Quoted) 3.18                        -                             -    

            In Equity Instruments (Unquoted)             25.11                        -                             -    

            In Mutual Fund (Quoted) 108.29                         -       - 
      Trade receivables                        -                           -    11,304.91 
      Cash and cash equivalents                        -                           -    404.01 

      Other Balance with Banks                        -                           -    4,286.83 
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      Loans                         -                           -    71.57 

      Others                        -                           -    2,215.71 

 Total Financial Assets 136.58                        -    18,283.03 

          
 Financial liabilities       

      Borrowings                        -                           -    21,694.19 

      Trade payables                        -                           -    9,444.24 

      Others                         -                           -    36.08 

 Total Financial Liabilities                        -                           -    31,174.51 

39.    FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY  
      
 This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)       

recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial 
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, it has classified its financial 
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the 

table. 

     (INR in Lakhs) 

 
PARTICULARS 

AS AT 31-03-2023 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on 

a recurring basis at the end of each reporting period       

 Financial Assets        

      Investments :-       

            In Equity Instruments (Quoted) 845.49                        -                             -    

            In Equity Instruments (Unquoted)                        -                           -   19.11 

            In Mutual Fund (Quoted) 115.23 -  

      
 

PARTICULARS 
AS AT 31-03-2022 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on 

a recurring basis at the end of each reporting period 
      

 Financial Assets        

      Investments :-       

            In Equity Instruments (Quoted) 3.18                        -                             -    

            In Equity Instruments (Unquoted)                        -                           -    25.11 

            In Mutual Fund (Quoted 108.29 -  

      
 Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments 
that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing 
price as at the reporting period. 

 

 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This 
is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.  

 The investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy have been valued using the cost approach to arrive at their fair value. 
The cost of unquoted investments approximates the fair value because there is wide range of possible fair value measurements and 
the costs represents estimate of fair value within that range.  

 The Management considers that the carrying amount of financials assets and financial liabilities carried at amortized cost 
approximates their fair values. 

      
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT    

      
 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s 

risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and 
management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. 

      
 A) Credit Risk     

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities. 
The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure: 

 a) Trade and Other Receivables    

 The Company has used Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For the purpose, the Company uses a 
provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss amount. The provision matrix takes into account external and internal risk 
factors and historical data to credit losses from various customers.  
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     (INR in Lakhs) 

 
PARTICULARS  

As At  

31-03-2023 

As At  

31-03-2022 

 Balance at the beginning of the year 55.56 45.38 

 Provision made during the year  22.13 10.19 

 Provision reversed during the year  - - 

 Balance at the end of the year  77.69 55.56 

 Liquidity risk     

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as 
possible that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed condition, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company’s objective is to maintain a 

balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of surplus funds, bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures 
and inter-corporate loans. 

 The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has 
access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding. 

 The company has un-utilised working capital lines from bank of Rs.7760.50 lakhs as on March 31, 2023, Rs. 6351.59 Lakhs as on 
March 31, 2022. 

      

 The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities :         (INR in Lakhs)

 Particulars Less than 1 year 1-3 years More than 3 years As At  31-03-2023 

           
 Borrowings 6,482.69 6,565.78 7,680.50 20,728.98 

 Trade payables 15,941.89 - - 15,941.89 

 Other financial liabilities 21.24 - - 21.24 

       
 Total 22,445.83 6,565.78 7,680.50 36,692.11 

           

 Particulars Less than 1 year 1-3 years More than 3 years As At  31-03-2022 

           
 Borrowings 5,601.30 3,739.44 12,353.45 21,694.19 

 Trade payables 9,444.24 -  -  9,444.24 

 Other financial liabilities 36.08 -  -  36.08 

           
 Total 15,081.62 3,739.44 12,353.45 31,174.51 

       
 Market risk     

 Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market 
rates and prices (such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices) or in the price of market risk-
sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-
sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short term and long-term debt. The Company 

is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. 

      
 Interest rate risk     

 Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of 
changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Interest rate risk is the risk 
that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating 

interest rates.  

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT   

    
 The company’s objectives when managing capital are to: 

 > Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits 
for other stakeholders, and 

 > Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

 The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face 
of the financial statements. The Company’s objective for capital management is to maintain an optimum overall financial structure. 

  
 Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:  

    
 Particulars As At 31-03-2023 As At 31-03-2022 

 Gross Debt  (includes non current, current borrowings and current maturities 
of long term debt) 

20,728.98 21,694.19 

 Less: - - - 

 Cash and Cash Equivalent  2,653.99 404.01 

 Other Bank Balance 2,947.04 4,286.83 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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(a)      

  Sr. No. Name of Partners Share (%) 

 i Subhash Mewaldas Khurana 23.50 

 ii Hemal Hareshkumar Shah 24.00 

 iii Manju Ashok Khurana 10.00 

 iv M/s. Madhav Infra Projects Ltd. 37.50 

 v Rakesh Hasmukhbhai Vakal 5.00 

Net debt  (A) 15,127.94 17,003.34 

Total Equity (B) 16,661.72 13,520.82 

Net debt to equity ratio 0.91 1.26 

   
The Company is a partner in M/s. Aarav Developer, the details of the partners, their share in profit / loss and total capital of the   
partners of the firm as on 31-03-2023 are as under. 

(b) The  total Capital of the Partners is Rs.24.05 Lakhs. 

(c) The above details about investment and names of partners are based on the information, certified by a partner. 

43. LEASE     

a The company has taken on operating lease certain assets. The total lease rent paid on the same amounting to Rs.9.00 Lakhs
(Previous year Rs.9.00 Lakhs) is included under the head Rent. The minimum future lease rentals payable in respect thereof are 
as follows: 

     (INR in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS   2022-23 2021-22 

  Not later than one year 9.00 9.00 

  Later than one year but not later than five years 36.00 36.00 

  Later than Five years 48.75 57.75 

b The Company has obtained the  Lease contract of Chambal Hydel Project (3 x 600 kW) in Morena district of Madhya Pradesh, on    
"as is where is basis" for its operation and maintenance from Madhya Pradesh Madhya Kshetra Vidyut Vitaran Company Ltd. 

 In terms of the contract the ownership of the said property vests in the government immediately. Under the contract the company 
is entitled to Fixed amount of Lease, every  month  from commercial operation date i.e 13-03-2015, till the end of Lease period i.e. 

March' 2045.  

 The Company has completed construction of said project during the earlier year. Having regard to the accounting policy followed 
by the company the entire expenditure incurred till the commencement of commercial operation is treated as BOT project        
expenditure. and proportionate amount of Rs.54.68 lakhs is amortized during the year. 

44. In respect of construction contract, the Company follows the percentage completion method for recognising profit/loss but no    
provision is made for contingencies  in respect of contract in progress, consistent with the practice of the Company. Ind AS 115 
Construction Contracts  require that  an appropriate allowance be made for future unforeseeable factors. In the opinion of the 
Company, such a provision is not required and has no financial effect.  

  
  

  

42. 
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45. Assignment of Debts 
(a) The Company has entered into an arrangement vide Agreement dated 28th March 2023 executed by the Company as (“ The  
       Assignor”) with Associate Company Madhav (Sehora Silodi corridor) Highways Private Limited, (“The Assignee”)  having CIN    
       U45203GJ2012PTC072233. The  Company has assigned it’s outstanding Business Debt of Rs.9,98,81,294/- (Rupees Nine  

       Crores Ninety-Eight Lacs Eighty-One Thousand Two Hundred Ninety-Four Only) , whose details are as given in Table herein  
       under , to the Assignee Company, against the consideration of discharge of liability of Company against equivalent amount of  
       Outstanding Unsecured Intercorporate loan from the Assignee.  
 

(b) The Company has entered into an arrangement vide Agreement dated 28th March 2023 executed by the Company as  (“ The  
     Assignor”) with Associate Company Madhav (Phoolsagar Niwas Shahpura Corridor) Highways Private Limited, (“The Assignee”)  
     having CIN U45203GJ2013PTC073810. The Company has assigned the Business Debt of Rs.10,36,78,784/- (Rupees Ten Crores  
     Thirty Six Lakhs Seventy Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Eighty Four Only), whose details are as given in Table herein under ,  

     to the Assignee Company, against the consideration of discharge of liability of equivalent amount of Outstanding Unsecured  
     Intercorporate loan from the Assignee , lent to the company for an equal amount.   
      
      The said Debtors were outstanding for last more than a year and had arisen from normal business operations of the company.  

     The Inter-corporate Debt against whose repayment/discharge,  the assignment of said Outstanding Debtors of the company to   
      Assignee has taken place had been received by the company in the Financial year 2019-20  
      
     The transfer of Company’s Debt in discharge of and repayment of Outstanding Inter-corporate Unsecured loan has been done at    

     book values of the Debt and Outstanding intercorporate loan and no discount has been passed on against the transfer of Debt to  
     the Assignee and no premium has been charged from the Assignee against the transfer/ assignment of Debt.  

TABLE-1                                                                         (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Sr No. Name of the Debtors More than 6 Months Amount  Debt Assign to 

1 Eagle Infra India Limited - Madhav Infra 

Projects Ltd 

540.00 Madhav (Phoolsagar Niwas Shahpura Corridor) 

Highways Pvt. Ltd. 

2 Madhav Infra - Chetak Enterprises JV 28.51 Madhav (Phoolsagar Niwas Shahpura Corridor) 

Highways Pvt. Ltd. 

3 MIPL MS Khurana Engineering JV 468.28 Madhav (Phoolsagar Niwas Shahpura Corridor) 

Highways Pvt. Ltd. 

 Total (A) 1,036.79  

4 Madhav Infra Projects Ltd - Eagle Infra India 

Ltd JV 

894.22 Madhav (Sehora Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt. 

Ltd. 

5 MPRDC - Package I 98.90 Madhav (Sehora Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt. 

Ltd. 

6 Madhav Infra - Chetak Enterprises JV 5.70 Madhav (Sehora Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt. 

Ltd. 

 Total (B) 998.81  

 Total (A) + (B) 2,035.60  

  

46. In respect of MSK Projects India (JV) Ltd. Amalgamated with the company, The Company has not accounted following claims:  

a The company has made earlier claim of approx. Rs.990.52 Lakhs, in which the Supreme Court has awarded Rs.26.34 Lakhs and 
balance matter was again referred back to Arbitral Tribunal for reconsideration. The Arbitral Tribunal has again awarded 
Rs.1055.34 Lakhs (Net of counter claim of Rs.354.75 Lakhs for incomplete work) for the job of Construction of Bharatpur Bypass 
on BOT Basis. The award has been upheld by District Court and also by High Court. The matter has been referred again to the 

Supreme Court by Government of Rajasthan. The decision is yet awaited. The awarded amount of Rs.26.34 Lakhs by Supreme 
Court has been refused by Government of Rajasthan. The matter of Rs.26.34 Lakhs is pending before the District Court. 

      
b The company has not accounted Claim of Rs.292.97 Lakhs being amount receivable from the Government of Rajasthan as per the 

Order of Honourable District Court in respect of loss suffered in Toll Collection in connection with construction of Road from     
Widening, Strengthening and Improvement of Nasirabad Kekri Road (SH 26) Km. 1 to 25 on B.O.T. Basis as the same is disputed 
by the Government of Rajasthan and same has been referred to the High Court for decision.  

      
c The company has not accounted Claim of Rs.749.30 Lakhs being amount receivable from the Government of Rajasthan as per the 

Order of Honourable District Court in respect of loss suffered in Toll Collection in connection with construction of Road from      
Construction of Sikar Byepass on “Built, Operate and Transfer (BOT)” Basis as the same is disputed by the Government of        
Rajasthan and same has been referred to the High Court for decision. 
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47. SEGMENT REPORTING 

 The company is engaged in development, construction as well as operation & maintenance of Infrastructure Projects. The Company 
undertakes infrastructure developments projects directly or indirectly through Special Purpose Vehicle (SPVs), in terms of the    
concessional agreements. The company also engaged in the business of Power Generation Business i.e. solar & Hydro. In this   
business, the revenue was less than 10% of the main segment. Hence the activity of the Company relates to One segment. 

48. Confirmations of certain parties for amounts due from them as per accounts of the company are not obtained. Amount due from 
customers include amounts due/with held on account of various claims. The claims will be verified and necessary adjustments, if 
any, shall be made in the year of settlement. Subject to this, company is confident of recovering the dues and accordingly they have 
been classified as “debt considered good” and therefore no provision is consider necessary, there against. 

49. Disclosure related to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises:    

 On the basis of confirmation obtained from the supplier who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act,2006) and based on the information available with the company the following are 
the details. 

PARTICULARS 
AS AT  

March 31, 2023 
AS AT  

March 31, 2022 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 
at the end of each accounting year 

205.56 126.42 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount 
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each 
accounting year 

 -  - 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 

 -  - 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year; and  

 -  - 

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 
23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

 -  - 

50. The Equity Warrants Holders had applied for Equity shares during the year and allotted the 1,33,56,600 equity shares for face 
value of Rs. 1 each with premium of Rs. 9 per equity shares  

  

  

51. EARNING PER SHARE     

      
  PARTICULARS   2022-23 2021-22 

  a. Net Profit after Tax available for equity shareholders (Rs.in lakhs) 4,237.56 623.57 

  b. Number of Equity Shares of Rs.1/-each outstanding during the year (Nos. in Lakhs) 2,678.26 2,562.29 

  c. Basic/ Diluted Earning Per Share (Rs. a/b)     1.58 0.24 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:  

Disclosures as required by Accounting Standard -24 are given below: 

(A) ASSOCIATES CONCERN 

Madhav (Phoolsagar Shahpura Niwas Corridor) Pvt. Ltd. 

Madhav (Sehora Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt. Ltd. 

Madhav Solar (Vadodara Rooftop) Pvt. Ltd. 

Mansha Textiles Pvt. Ltd. 

Madhav Power Pvt. Ltd. 

Madhav Vasistha Hydro Power Pvt. Ltd. 

Waa Solar Ltd. 

Solkar Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. 

Madhav Infracon (Astha Kannod Corridor) Pvt. Ltd. 

Madhav Infracon (Bhopal Vidisha Corridor) Pvt. Ltd. 

Madhav Infracon (Vidisha Kurwai Corridor) Pvt. Ltd. 

MSK Infrastructure Private Limited 

Aspire Infracon Pvt. Ltd. 

Infinity Infrabuild Ltd. 

 52. 

(B) DIRECTORS / KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL &  

     RELATEVES OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL  

Name of Related parties Nature of Relationship 

Ashok Khurana Chairman 

Amit Khurana Managing Director 

Neelakshi Khurana Wife of Managing Director 

Manju Khurana Wife of Chairman 

Rashika Chauhan Daughter of Chairman 

Pooja Shah Independent Director 

Jaini Jain Independent Director 

Heena Parikh Independent Director 

Dharmesh Chauhan Company Secretary 

Gopal Shah Company Secretary 

Rajendrasinh Rana Chief Financial Officer 

Tanmay Kabra Chief Financial Officer 
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    (INR in Lakhs) 

Transaction during the year Associate Concern 
Associate Concern 

(Previous Year) 

Key Management 

Personnel /Relative 
of Key Managerial 

Personnel 

Key Management 

Personnel / Relative of 
Key Managerial 

Personnel (Previous 
Year) 

Loan Received 3,173.59 4,162.23 - 72.13 

Repayment of Loan 6,420.46 2,498.70 - 72.13 

Reimbursement of expenses - - - - 

Loan Given 5,401.19 1,909.73 - - 

Loan received back 8,154.52 2,224.75 - - 

Purchase of Shares/ Investments - - - - 

Redemption of Preference Shares - 621.00 - 714.00 

Purchase of Goods & Services # 551.99 195.32 - - 

Advance repaid against sale of Investment - - - - 

Sale of Shares/ Investments - - - - 

Advance adjusted against bill 281.57 - - - 

EPC Contract/ Sales (Income) ## 534.59 1,008.83 - - 

Interest Paid - - - - 

Remuneration Paid/ Provided - - 42.07 36.94 

Director’s Sitting Fees Paid/ Provided - - 1.80 1.80 

Office Rent - - 9.00 9.00 

Payable 3,809.77 6,048.87 - - 

Receivable 120.01 1,765.48 - - 
# Material/Goods purchased from the following Associates concern . 

           Madhav Solar (Vadodara Rooftop) Pvt. Ltd. Rs.375.55 Lakhs. 

## Services sold to the following Associates concern 

           Madhav (Phoolsagar Shahpura Niwas Corridor) Pvt. Ltd. Rs.334.39 Lacs 

           Madhav (Sehora Silodi Corridor) Highways Pvt. Ltd. Rs.200.21 Lacs 

 

53. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)  

    

 
PARTICULARS 

AS AT  

March 31, 2023 

AS AT  

March 31, 2022 

 1. Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year Nil Nil 

 2. Amount of expenditure incurred Nil                   7.00  

 3. Shortfall at the end of the year -                        -    

 4. Total of previous years shortfall -                       -    

 5. Reason for shortfall N.A. N.A. 

 
6. Nature of CSR activities N.A. 

Spending towards 
E d u c a t i o n  &    
Medical facilities 

 

7. Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the  

company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant AS 
N.A. 

Amount donated to 
Rama Memorial 
Foundation, a 
registered public 

trust, which was 
providing free   
education to the 
poor and needy 

children. 

 

8. Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a 
contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year should be shown 
separately. 

N.A. N.A. 

 

 N.A.  

(INR in Lakhs) 
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 The Board of Directors of the Company had at their meeting held on 13th August, 2022 inter alia approved the Scheme 
of Arrangement in nature of Amalgamation of  RB Real Estate Private Limited, Madhav Urja Private Limited, Madhav 
Heights Private Limited    (‘the Transferor Company’) with Madhav Infra Projects Limited (‘the Transferee Company’) and 

their respective shareholders (‘the Scheme’) with effect from the appointed date i.e. 1st April, 2021 has been sanctioned 
by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (‘NCLT’) vide its order dated 6th July, 2023.  The 
Scheme has become effective upon filing of the certified copy of order of the NCLT, sanctioning the Scheme with 
Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at Ahmedabad by way of filing required e-forms with Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ 
portal within One month. Basis the Order of NCLT approving the Scheme, these standalone financial result for the year 
ended March 31, 2023 are prepared and presented after giving effect to the Scheme. The Adjustments  on account of 
Scheme of arrangement  are as below: 

Particular Rs. In Lakhs 

Assets:  

Cash 0.04 

Bank Balances 103.09 

Property, Plant and Equipments 484.18 

Investments 14.00 

Total Assets (A) 601.31 

Liabilities:  

Financial Liabilities Borrowings 168.06 

Provision 0.14 

Other Liabilities 226.93 

Total Liabilities (B) 395.13 

Net Assets (A-B) 206.17 

Adjustment from :  

Investment in Madhav Height Pvt.Ltd 40.00 

Investment Madhav Urja Pvt.Ltd 50.00 

Investment R B Real Estate  Pvt.Ltd 594.00 

Reserve on amalgamation -423.13 

Retain Earning -54.70 

 206.17 

54. 

56. Other Disclosures       

A Shareholding of Promoters       

 

Promoter Name 

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

 

No of shares 
% of total 

shares 

% change 

during the 
year 

No of shares 
% of total 

shares 

% change 

during the 
year 

 Ashok Madhavdas Khurana 7,61,29,440 28.24 -     7,61,29,440      29.71                      -    

 Amit Ashok Khurana 47,91,240 1.78 -       47,91,240             1.87                      -    

 Khurana Neelakshi Amit 80,43,120 2.98 -       80,43,120           3.14                      -    

 Manju Ashok Khurana 1,31,96,970 4.90 (0.005)     1,32,12,000              5.16                      -    

 Bindiya Ashok Khurana 80,000 0.03 -            80,000              0.03                      -    

 Rasika Vikramsinh Chauhan 80,000 0.03 -            80,000             0.03                      -    

 Ashok Khurana- HUF 23,35,206 0.87 -       23,35,206            0.91               (0.05) 

 Armaan Amit Trust [in the name of 

Trustee Shri Ashok M. Khurana] 

8,13,60,000 30.18 -     8,13,60,000            31.75                      -    

55. Borrowings secured against current assets :   

 The Company has borrowings from banks secured against Current Assets and quarterly returns filed for the same with the banks 

are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company. 
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B Trade Receivable ageing as on 31.03.2023 

 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 Less than 6 

Months 

6 Months - 

1 year 
1-2 years 2-3 Years 

More than 3 

Years 
Total 

 Undisputed Trade Receivable -      
Considered Good   

13,463.57 1,575.87 1,047.04 100.47 276.27 16,463.22 

 Undisputed Trade Receivable - which 
have significant increase in credit risk 

                   -                     -                          -                        -                        -                       -    

 Undisputed Trade Receivable -       
credit impaired 

                    -                     -                          -                        -                        -                       -    

 Disputed Trade Receivable -          
Considered Good   

                    -                     -                          -                        -                        -                       -    

 Disputed Trade Receivable - which 
have significant increase in credit risk 

                    -                      -                          -                        -                        -                        -    

 Disputed Trade Receivable -           
credit impaired 

                    -                      -                          -                        -                        -                       -    

 Total 13,463.57 1,575.87 1,047.04 100.47 276.27 16,463.22 

        

 Trade Receivable ageing as on 31.03.2022 

        

 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 Less than 6 

Months 

6 Months - 

1 year 
1-2 years 2-3 Years 

More than 3 

Years 
Total 

 Undisputed Trade Receivable -       
Considered Good   

6,890.97 725.30 1,530.13 1,689.94 524.14 11,360.47 

 Undisputed Trade Receivable - which 
have significant increase in credit risk 

                   -                    -                          -                       -                        -                       -    

 Undisputed Trade Receivable -      
credit impaired 

                   -                     -                          -                        -                        -                       -    

 Disputed Trade Receivable -           
Considered Good   

                    -                     -                          -                        -                        -                       -    

 Disputed Trade Receivable - which 
have significant increase in credit risk 

                    -                     -                          -                        -                        -                       -    

 Disputed Trade Receivable -           
credit impaired 

                    -                     -                          -                        -                        -                        -    

 Total 6,890.97 725.30 1,530.13 1,689.94 524.14 11,360.47 

        

C Trade Payable ageing as on 31.03.2023 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Years 
Total 

MSME 205.56 - - - 205.56 

Others 15,663.94 61.51 2.68 8.20 15,736.33 

Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - 

Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - 

Total 15,869.50 61.51 2.68 8.20 15,941.89 

 Trade Payable ageing as on 31.03.2022 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Years 
Total 

MSME 126.42 - - - 126.42 

Others 9,160.02 156.68 63.05 52.38 9,432.13 

Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - 

Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - 

Total 9,286.45 156.68 63.05 52.38 9,558.56 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

D Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)  as on 31.03.2023 

  

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Years 
Total 

Projects in Progress 710.44 - - - 710.44 

Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - - - 

Total 710.44 - - - 710.44 

(INR in Lakhs) 
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E Disclosure relating to Ratios 

Name of Ratio Formula F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21 
 % Change 

in ratios  
 Reason for Variances  

             

Current Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Current Assets 37,424.60 1.54 34,537.14    
2.13  

-27.48% Due to decrease of current 
Assets Current Liabilities 24,279.80 16,250.16 

         

Debt Equity Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Short term Debt + 
Long term Debt 

20,728.98 1.24 21,694.19 1.60  -22.46%  Due to sale of Land, short 
term debt reduced 

Share holder's 
equity 

16,661.72 13,520.82 

          

Debt Service Coverage Ratio            
(No. of Times) 

Earnings available 
for debt service 

7,233.32 2.07 5,039.03 0.79  161.19% Due to sale of Land, short 
term debt reduced 
  Debt Service 3,489.87 6,367.52 

          

Return on Equity NPAT 3,392.07 0.20 623.57  0.05  341.43% Profit after tax has 
increased due to 
Consideration of 25.96 cr. 
Capital gain 

Net worth 16,661.72 13,520.82 

          

Inventory Turnover Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Net Sales 51,269.75 5.15 46,006.56  5.37  -4.11% Due to lower Turnover 

Average Inventory 9,951.09 8,562.90 

          

Trade Receivable turnover Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Net Sales 51,269.75 3.69 46,006.56   
4.66  

-20.70% The company has raised the 
Invoice Average Trade 

receivable 
13,884.06 9,880.29 

          

Trade payable turnover Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Net Credit Purchase 20,057.72 2.34 20,657.06 3.60  -35.00% Due to Solar Projects LC 
payable Increased  Average Trade 

Payable 
8,569.70 5,736.69 

          

Net Capital Turnover Ratio  
(No. of Times) 

Net Sales 51,269.75 3.90 46,006.56   
2.52  

55.03% Profit after tax has 
increased due to 
Consideration of 25.96 cr. 
Capital gain 

Working Capital 13,144.81 18,286.98 

          

Net Profit Ratio  NPAT 3,392.07 0.07 623.57    
0.01  

388.13% Profit after tax has 
increased due to 
Consideration of 25.96 cr. 
Capital gain 

Net Sales  51,269.75 46,006.56 

          

Return on Capital Employed Earning before 
interest and taxes 

7,059.53 0.42 3,744.55 0.28  52.99% Profit after tax has 
increased due to 
Consideration of 25.96 cr. 
Capital gain 

Capital Employed                                 16,661.72 13,520.82 

          

Return on Investment NPAT 3,392.07 0.06 623.57     
0.01  

366.13% Profit after tax has 
increased due to 
Consideration of 25.96 cr. 
Capital gain 

Total Asset 57,380.63 49,169.17 
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(x) The Company is not  declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 

xi) There is no Capital Work in Progress as on 31.03.2022 and 31.03.2021.  

      

58. The Liabilities for Gratuity & leave encashment is neither ascertained nor provided by the Company. 

  

59. The previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to make it comparable with the current year. 

As per our Report of even date  
FOR BIPIN & CO.       FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD  

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS      

FIRM REGISTRATION NO.101509W      

     

   MANAGING DIRECTOR  CHAIRMAN 

(AMIT D SHAH - PARTNER)  AMIT A. KHURANA ASHOK M. KHURANA 

MEMBERSHIP NO.126337  [DIN: 00003626] [DIN:00003617] 

   

  

    COMPANY SECRETARY  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

Place: Vadodara  DHARMESH CHAUHAN RAJENDRASINH RANA 

Date: 13/06/2023    

57. Other statutory information  

 

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for 

holding any Benami property. 

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year. 

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or 

the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

vii) The Company do not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts and that has been surrendered 

or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any 

other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961) 

viii) The Company holds all the title deeds of immovable property in its name. 

ix)  There is no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 
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